Securities and Exchange Commission

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q

(Mark One)

■ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003, or

□ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from

Commission file number 001-15451

United Parcel Service, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware (State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization) **58-2480149** (IRS Employer Identification No.)

55 Glenlake Parkway, NE Atlanta, Georgia (Address of Principal Executive Offices)

30328 (Zip Code)

(404) 828-6000

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes \blacksquare No \square

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes 🗵 No 🛘

There were 611,794,819 Class A shares, and 513,488,981 Class B shares, with a par value of \$0.01 per share, outstanding at May 13, 2003.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS March 31, 2003 (unaudited) and December 31, 2002 (In millions, except per share amounts)

March 31, December 31, 2003 2002 Assets Current Assets: Cash & cash equivalents 2,135 2,211 Marketable securities & short-term investments 880 803 Accounts receivable, net 3,659 3,756 930 Finance receivables, net 868 406 Deferred income taxes 268 944 832 Other current assets 8,954 Total Current Assets 8,738 Property, Plant & Equipment - at cost, net of accumulated depreciation & amortization of \$12,020 and \$11,749 in 2003 and 2002 13,808 13,612 Prepaid Pension Costs 1,896 1,932 Other Assets 2,092 2,075 26,750 26,357 Liabilities & Shareowners' Equity Current Liabilities: \$ Current maturities of long-term debt and commerical paper 598 1,107 Accounts payable 1,944 1,908 1,084 Accrued wages & withholdings 1,340 Dividends payable 212 381 19 Income taxes payable Other current liabilities 1,297 1,225

Total Current Liabilities	5,560	5,555
Long-Term Debt	3,467	3,495
Accumulated Postretirement Benefit Obligation, Net	1,304	1,251
Deferred Taxes, Credits & Other Liabilities	3,606	3,601
Shareowners' Equity:		
Preferred stock, no par value, authorized 200 shares, none issued	_	_
Class A common stock, par value \$.01 per share, authorized 4,600 shares, issued 618 and 642 in 2003 and		
2002	6	7
Class B common stock, par value \$.01 per share, authorized 5,600 shares, issued 503 and 482 in 2003 and		
2002	5	4
Additional paid-in capital	289	387
Retained earnings	12,869	12,495
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(356)	(438)
Deferred compensation arrangements	85	84
	12,898	12,539
Less: Treasury stock (1 shares in 2003 and 2002)	(85)	(84)
	12,813	12,455
	\$ 26,750	\$ 26,357

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

2

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME Three Months Ended March 31, 2003 and 2002 (In millions, except per share amounts) (unaudited)

Three Months Ended

March 31, 2003 2002 7,579 Revenue Operating Expenses: Compensation and benefits 4,708 4,449 2,183 Other 2,362 7,070 6,632 Operating Profit 945 947 Other Income and (Expense): (38) 12 Investment income (loss) Interest expense (25)(43)(63) (31) Income Before Income Taxes And Cumulative Effect of Change In Accounting Principle 882 916 Income Taxes 271 353 Income Before Cumulative Effect of Change In Accounting Principle 611 563 Cumulative Effect of Change In The Method of Accounting For Goodwill, Net of Taxes (72)611 491 Net Income Basic Earnings Per Share Before Cumulative Effect of Change 0.50 In Accounting Principle 0.54 Basic Earnings Per Share 0.54 0.44 Diluted Earnings Per Share Before Cumulative Effect of Change 0.54 0.50 In Accounting Principle Diluted Earnings Per Share 0.54 0.43

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Class A Common Stock		200		2002				
Beginning blashee 642 \$ 7 722 \$ Common stock bruchases 2 — 66 6 Common stock busumees — 7 — 1 —	Class A Common Stock	Shares	Dollars	Shares	Dollars			
Common stock issuances		642	\$ 7	772	8			
Conversion of Clask A to Clask B common stock		(2)	_	(6)	_			
Ending balance	Common stock issuances	_	_	1	_			
Ass B Common Stock Segriming balance 482		(22)	(1)		(1			
Beginning balance	Ending balance	618	6	732	7			
Beginning balance	lass B Common Stock							
Common stock purchases		482	4	349	3			
Conversions of Class A to Class B common stock			_	_	_			
Ending balance S03 5 384			1	35	1			
Beginning balance 387 Common stock purchases (154) Common stock purchases 31 Ending balance 289 etailed Earnings 12,495 1 Reginning balance 611 1 Net income 611 237 Ending balance (237) 1 Ending balance 3280 1 Common stock purchases (237) 1 Ending balance (237) 1 Ending balance 3280 3 Ereding uncomparity translation adjustment 328 8 Ending balance (270) 2 Ending balance (328) 8 Ending balance (34) 4 Ending balance (34) 4 Ending balance (34) 4 Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of \$3 and \$1(1)) (5) 6 Ending balance (50) 4 Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of \$6 and \$17) 10 6 <					4			
Beginning balance 387 Stock award plans, including stock-based compensation expense (154) Common stock purchases (31) Ending balance 289 ctomes stock sward planse 12,495 1 Beginning balance 611 237 Net income 611 237 Ending balance 12,869 1 Torvigen currency translation adjustments 2280 2 Foreign currency translation adjustments 88 5 Foreign currency translation adjustment 88 6 Foreign currency translation adjustment 88 6 Reginning balance (220) 2 Linealized gain (los) on marketable securities, net of tax 88 6 Foreign currency translation adjustment (328) 8 Reginning balance (14) 4 Current perod changes in fair value (net of tax effect of \$23 and \$10) (5) 6 Reging balance (26) 6 Current perod changes in fair value (net of tax effect of \$4 and \$17) 10 6 <t< td=""><td>dditional Daid In Conital</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	dditional Daid In Conital							
Common stock purchases (154) Common stock issuances 3 Endine Dalance 289 Seplaning balance 12,495 1 Net income 611 2 Ending balance (213) 1 Ending balance 12,869 1 Common stock (SQ2) and \$0.19 per share) (237) 1 Ending balance (328) 1 Common stock (SQ2) and \$0.19 per share) (328) 1 Common stock (SQ2) and \$0.19 per share) (328) 1 Common stock (SQ2) and \$0.19 per share) 5 5 Ending balance (328) 5 Correct per common stock (SQ2) 5 5 Agency and adjustment (329) 5 Ending balance (34) 4 6 Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of \$(3) and \$(1)) (3 6 6 Ending balance (36) (36) 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 <			387		414			
Common stock purchases (154) Common stock issuances 3 Endine Balance 289 Reginning balance 12,495 1 Net income 611 2 Ending balance 12,869 1 Ending balance 12,869 1 Education balance 12,869 1 Ecountated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 38 5 Energing translation adjustment 8 5 Foreign currency translation adjustment 58 5 Agency and adjustment 58 5 Ending balance 34 5 Current period in the securities, net of tax effect of \$3 and \$4(1) 6 6 Current period in the period of tax effect of \$21 and \$1) 36 6 Reclaiming balance (26) 6 Current period in the period of tax effect of \$6 and \$17) 10<			25		23			
Common stock issuances			(154)		(363			
Ending balance 289			. ,		26			
Beginning balance 12,495 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1				_	100			
Beginning balance 12,495 1 Net income 611 1 Dividends (S0.21 and \$0.19 per share) (237) 1 Ending balance 12,869 1 commanded Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Foreign currency translation adjustment: 388 4 Beginning balance (34) 2 Aggregate alignsteent (34) 3 Ending balance (34) 3 Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of \$5(3) and \$1(1)) (5) 6 Reclassification to carnings (net of tax effect of \$21 and \$1) (5) 6 Beginning balance (36) 3 6 Unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedges, net of tax 2 6 6 6 6 Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of \$6 and \$17) 10 6 <td>vatainad Farnings</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	vatainad Farnings							
Net income 611 1 2,869 2 3 2,869 1 1 2,869 1 1 2,869			12 405		10,162			
Divident's (\$0.21 and \$0.19 per share) 12,869 1 1 12,869 1 1 12,869 1 1 12,869 1 1 12,869 1 1 12,869 1 1 12,869 1 1 12,869 1 1 12,869 1 1 12,869 1 1 12,869 1 1 12,869 1 1 12,869 1 1 12,869 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1					491			
Ending balance 12,869					(213			
Foreign currency translation adjustment: Beginning balance (328) Aggregate adjustment 58 Ending balance (34) Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of \$(3) and \$(1)) Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of \$(3) and \$(1)) Ending balance (26) Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities, net of tax: Beginning balance (34) Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of \$(3) and \$(1)) Ending balance (26) Unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedges, net of tax: Beginning balance (26) Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of \$6 and \$17) Reclassification to earnings (net of tax effect of \$6 and \$17) Reclassification to earnings (net of tax effect of \$6 and \$17) Ending balance (50) Additional minimum pension liability, net of tax: Beginning balance (50) Minimum pension liability, net of tax: Beginning balance (50) Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) Ending balance 84 Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements 1 Ending balance (1) (84) (1) Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements (1) (85) (1) Ending balance (1) (85) (1) En					10,440			
Foreign currency translation adjustment: Aggregate adjustment	Ending balance		12,809	_	10,440			
Beginning balance 328								
Aggregate adjustment 58 (270)	Foreign currency translation adjustment:		()					
Ending balance (270)			. ,		(269			
Durnealized gain (loss) on marketable securities, net of tax: Beginning balance				_	(26			
Beginning balance	Ending balance		(270)	<u>-</u>	(295			
Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of \$(3) and \$(1))	Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities, net of tax:							
Reclassification to earnings (net of tax effect of \$21 and \$1) 36 Ending balance	Beginning balance		(34)		(21			
Ending balance (3)	Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of \$(3) and \$(1))		(5)		(2			
Unrealized gain (loss) on eash flow hedges, net of tax: Beginning balance Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of \$6 and \$17) Reclassification to earnings (net of tax effect of \$(10) and \$1) Ending balance Additional minimum pension liability, net of tax: Beginning balance Additional minimum pension liability adjustment Ending balance Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) Ending balance	Reclassification to earnings (net of tax effect of \$21 and \$1)		36		2			
Beginning balance	Ending balance		(3)	_	(21			
Beginning balance	Unraglized gain (loss) on each flow hadges, not of tay							
Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of \$6 and \$17)			(26)		(49			
Reclassification to earnings (net of tax effect of \$(10) and \$1)			(20)		(4)			
Ending balance (50) Additional minimum pension liability, net of tax: Beginning balance (50) Minimum pension liability adjustment — (50) Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (356) Ending balance 84 Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements 1 1 Ending balance (1) (84) (1) —	Current period changes in fair value (net of tax effect of 50 and 517)		10		28			
Additional minimum pension liability, net of tax: Beginning balance (50) Minimum pension liability adjustment — Ending balance (50) Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (356) Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (356) Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (356) Ending balance 84 Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements 1 1					2			
Beginning balance Minimum pension liability adjustment Ending balance Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) Ending balance Beginning balance 84 Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements Ending balance 1 Ending	Ending balance		(33)	-	(19			
Beginning balance Minimum pension liability adjustment Ending balance Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) Ending balance Beginning balance 84 Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements Ending balance 1 Ending	Additional minimum pension liability, net of tax:							
Minimum pension liability adjustment Ending balance Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) Eferred Compensation Obligations Beginning balance Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements Ending balance Ending balance Teasury Stock Beginning balance (1) (84) (1) Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements Ending balance (1) (84) (1) Ending balance (1) (85) (1) Inding Total Shareowners' Equity \$ 12,813 \$ 1			(50)		_			
Ending balance (50) Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (356) Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (356) Ending balance 84 Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements 1 Ending balance 85 Freasury Stock Beginning balance (1) (84) (1) Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements — (1) — Ending balance (1) (85) (1) Ending Total Shareowners' Equity \$ 12,813 \$ 1	Minimum pension liability adjustment							
Deferred Compensation Obligations Beginning balance Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements Ending balance Treasury Stock Beginning balance Beginning balance (1) (84) (1) Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements — (1) — Ending balance (1) (85) (1) Inding Total Shareowners' Equity \$ 12,813 \$ 1	Ending balance		(50)		_			
Beginning balance	Ending accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)		(356)	_	(335			
Beginning balance	Actional Communication Obligati							
Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements 1 Ending balance 85 Greasury Stock (1) (84) (1) Beginning balance (1) (84) (1) Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements — (1) — Ending balance (1) (85) (1) Inding Total Shareowners' Equity \$ 12,813 \$ 1			0.4		4.5			
Ending balance 85					47			
Beginning balance (1) (84) (1) Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements - (1) -					47			
Beginning balance (1) (84) (1) Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements - (1) (85) (1) Ending balance (1) (85) (1) Inding Total Shareowners' Equity \$ 12,813								
Common stock held for deferred compensation arrangements — (1) — Ending balance (1) (85) (1) — (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)		(*)	(0.4)	743				
Ending balance (1) (85) (1) nding Total Shareowners' Equity \$ 12,813 \$ 1		(1)		(1)	(47			
nding Total Shareowners' Equity \$ 12,813 \$ 1					_			
	Ending balance	(1)	(85)	(1)	(47			
	nding Total Shareowners' Equity		\$ 12,813		10,216			
omprehensive Income \$ 693 \$				``	-,-10			
φ 0/3	omprehensive Income		\$ 693		\$ 495			

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

		Three Months Ended March 31,					
		2003		2002			
Cash flows from operating activities:							
Net income	\$	611	\$	491			
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:							
Depreciation and amortization		387		351			
Postretirement benefits		53		42			
Deferred taxes, credits and other		(148)		(24)			
Stock award plans		124		140			
Impairment of investments		61		_			
Impairment of goodwill		_		72			
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions:							
Accounts receivable, net		97		182			
Prepaid health and welfare benefit costs		_		185			
Other current assets		(127)		212			
Prepaid pension costs		36		3			
Accounts payable		1		(143)			
Accrued wages and withholdings		156		187			
Dividends payable		(212)		(212)			
Income taxes payable		362		208			
Other current liabilities		72		24			
Net cash from operating activities		1,473	-	1,718			
1 5		,	-	, , ,			
Cash flows from investing activities:							
Capital expenditures		(600)		(624)			
Disposals of property, plant and equipment		40		72			
Purchases of marketable securities and short-term investments				(484)			
Sales and maturities of marketable securities and short-term investments		(1,123) 1,038		357			
Finance receivables, net		1,038					
				(31)			
Other asset receipts (payments)		(38)	_	(700)			
Net cash used in investing activities		(679)		(700)			
Cash flows from financing activities:							
Proceeds from borrowings		147		136			
Repayments of borrowings		(662)		(312)			
Purchases of common stock		(154)		(363)			
Issuances of common stock pursuant to stock awards and employee stock purchase plans		26		27			
Dividends		(237)		(213)			
Other transactions		1		_			
Net cash used in financing activities		(879)		(725)			
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash		9		(9)			
2.1000 of olderlange fact older				(2)			
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		(76)		284			
Cash and cash equivalents:		(70)		204			
Beginning of period		2 21 1		050			
End of period	Φ.	2,211	\$	858 1.142			
	\$	2,133	Ф	1,142			
Cash paid during the period for:		2.0	Ф				
Interest (net of amount capitalized)	\$	26	\$	55			

See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements.

5

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

Income taxes

In our opinion, the accompanying interim, unaudited, consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) necessary to present fairly our financial position as of March 31, 2003, our results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, and cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002. The results reported in these consolidated financial statements should not be regarded as necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for the entire year. The interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

For interim consolidated financial statement purposes, we compute our tax provision on the basis of our estimated annual effective income tax rate, and provide for accruals under our various employee benefit plans for each three month period based on one quarter of the estimated annual expense.

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

Note 2. New Accounting Pronouncements

On January 1, 2002, we adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 142 "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" ("FAS 142"). Upon adoption of FAS 142, we were required to test all existing goodwill for impairment as of January 1, 2002, using a fair value approach. An impairment charge is recognized for the amount, if any, by which the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its fair value. Fair values are established using discounted cash flows. We recorded a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of \$72 million (\$0.07 per diluted share) related to our Mail Technologies business. This charge is reported as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle and resulted in a restatement of our first quarter 2002 quarterly financial statements. The primary factor resulting in the impairment charge was the lower than anticipated growth experienced in the expedited mail delivery business. Amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets ceased upon the implementation of FAS 142 on January 1, 2002.

On January 1, 2003, we adopted FASB interpretation No. 45 "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others" ("FIN 45"). FIN 45 requires that a liability be recognized at fair value at the inception of certain guarantees for the obligations undertaken by the guarantor. FIN 45 also requires additional disclosures for certain guarantee contracts. The adoption of FIN 45 was not material to our results of operations or financial condition.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities" ("FIN 46"). FIN 46 addresses consolidation by a business of variable interest entities in which it is the primary beneficiary. FIN 46 is effective immediately for certain disclosure requirements and variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003, and effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2003 for existing variable interest entities. We anticipate the effects of adopting FIN 46 will not be material to our results of operations or financial condition.

In April 2003, the FASB issued Statement No. 149 "Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" ("FAS 149"). FAS 149 amends FAS 133 for certain decisions made by the FASB as part of the Derivatives Implementation Group process. FAS 149 also amends FAS 133 to incorporate clarifications of the definition of a derivative. FAS 149 is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, with certain exceptions, and requires prospective

6

application. We anticipate the effects of adopting FAS 149 will not be material to our results of operations or financial condition.

Note 3. Other Assets

Other assets as of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 consist of the following (in millions):

	M	larch 31, 2003	December 31, 2002			
Goodwill	\$	1,091	\$	1,070		
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization		107		110		
Non-current finance receivables, net of allowance for credit losses		590		616		
Other non-current assets		304		279		
Consolidated	\$	2,092	\$	2,075		

The following table indicates the allocation of goodwill by reportable segment, as of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 (in millions):

	December 31, 2002		Goodwill Acquired	Currency/ Other		N	March 31, 2003
Goodwill by Segment:							
U.S. domestic package	\$ —	- 5	\$ —	\$	_	\$	_
International package	102		_		(2)		100
Non-package	968	;	2		21		991
Consolidated	\$ 1,070) 5	\$ 2	\$	19	\$	1,091

The following is a summary of intangible assets as of March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 (in millions):

	Franchise Rights, Licenses, Patents, Trademarks, and Other	Intangible Pension Asset	Total Intangible Assets
March 31, 2003:			
Gross carrying amount	\$ 116	\$ 7	\$ 123
Accumulated amortization	(16)		(16)
Net carrying value	<u>\$ 100</u>	\$ 7	\$ 107
December 31, 2002:			
Gross carrying amount	\$ 118	\$ 7	\$ 125
Accumulated amortization	(15)		(15)
Net carrying value	\$ 103	\$ 7	\$ 110
		\$ <u> </u>	

Note 4. Legal Proceedings and Contingencies

We are named as a defendant in twenty-three pending lawsuits that seek to hold us liable for the collection of premiums for excess value ("EV") insurance in connection with package shipments since 1984. Based on state and federal tort, contract and statutory claims, these cases generally claim that we failed to remit collected EV premiums to an independent insurer; we failed to provide promised EV insurance; we acted

7

as an insurer without complying with state insurance laws and regulations; and the price for EV insurance was excessive.

These actions all were filed after the August 9, 1999 United States Tax Court decision, in which the Tax Court held that we were liable for tax on income of Overseas Partners Ltd., a Bermuda company that had reinsured EV insurance purchased by our customers beginning in 1984, and that we were liable for additional tax for the 1983 and 1984 tax years. On June 20, 2001, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit ruled in our favor and reversed the Tax Court decision. In January 2003, we and the IRS finalized settlement of all outstanding tax issues relating to EV package insurance.

These twenty-three cases have been consolidated for pre-trial purposes in a multi-district litigation proceeding ("MDL Proceeding") in federal court in New York. The Court has granted our motions to dismiss with respect to all of the plaintiffs' tort claims and all of their breach of contract claims prior to August 26, 1994. Claims asserted under specific federal statutes, and breach of contract claims commencing on August 26, 1994, are proceeding. We intend to continue to seek dismissal of these remaining claims.

The defendants in the MDL Proceeding, including UPS, have stipulated to conditional certification of a plaintiff class in most of the lawsuits challenging the EV insurance program for our shippers. Class certification is a procedural step that allows claims to be resolved at one time as to all potential claimants; it does not depend on or reflect the merits of the underlying claims. Defendants may move later to set aside or modify the class certification.

The cases subject to the class certification stipulation will proceed to a single trial before the federal court presiding over the MDL Proceeding, instead of being returned for trial to the numerous federal courts around the country from which they were transferred. In addition, plaintiffs in the five cases with pending motions to remand to state court have withdrawn these motions.

In addition to the cases in which UPS is named as a defendant, there also is an action, Smith v. Mail Boxes Etc., against Mail Boxes Etc. and its franchisees relating to UPS EV insurance purchased through Mail Boxes Etc. centers. This case also has been consolidated into the MDL Proceeding. The plaintiff has moved to have the case remanded back to state court.

We believe that the allegations in these cases have no merit and intend to continue to defend them vigorously. The ultimate resolution of these cases cannot presently be determined.

In addition, we are a defendant in various other lawsuits that arose in the normal course of business. We believe that the eventual resolution of these cases will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

8

Note 5. Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2003, we adopted the fair value measurement provisions of FASB Statement No. 123 "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" ("FAS 123"). Under the provisions of FASB Statement No. 148 "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure," we have elected to adopt the measurement provisions of FAS 123 using the prospective method. Under this approach, all stock-based compensation granted subsequent to January 1, 2003 has been expensed to compensation and benefits over the vesting period based on the fair value at the date the stock-based compensation is granted.

The following pro forma information provides information as to the impact on net income and earnings per share if we had used the fair value measurement provisions of FAS 123 to account for all previous stock-based compensation awards granted prior to January 1, 2003. The pro forma information is as follows for the three months ended March 31 (in millions, except per share amounts):

		Three Mont	hs Ended		
		March 31,			
	2	003		2002	
Net income	\$	611	\$	491	
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in ne	t				
income, net of tax effects		2		_	
Less: Total pro-forma stock-based employee compensation expens	se, net of				
tax effects		(15)		(13)	
Pro-forma net income	\$	598	\$	478	
Basic earnings per share					
As reported	\$	0.54	\$	0.44	
Pro forma	\$	0.53	\$	0.43	
Diluted earnings per share					
As reported	\$	0.54	\$	0.43	
Pro forma	\$	0.53	\$	0.42	

Note 6. Segment Information

We report our operations in three segments: U.S. domestic package operations, international package operations and non-package operations, as follows:

U.S. Domestic Package - Domestic package operations include the time-definite delivery of letters, documents, and packages throughout the United States.

International Package - International package operations include delivery to more than 200 countries and territories worldwide, including shipments wholly outside the U.S. as well as shipments with either origin or distribution outside the U.S.

Non-Package - Non-package operations include the UPS Supply Chain Solutions Group, Mail Boxes Etc., and our excess value package insurance business. The UPS Supply Chain Solutions Group provides supply chain design and management, freight forwarding, customs brokerage, mail services, multi-modal transportation, consulting and financial services.

9

Segment information for the three months ended March 31 is as follows (in millions):

	Three Months Ended						
	March 31,						
	2003		2002				
Revenue:							
U.S. domestic package	\$ 6,020	\$	5,903				
International package	1,302		1,054				
Non-package	693		622				
Consolidated	\$ 8,015	\$	7,579				
Operating profit:							
U.S. domestic package	\$ 704	\$	862				
International package	134		30				
Non-package	107		55				
Consolidated	\$ 945	\$	947				

Non-package operating profit included \$28 million for both of the three months ended March 31, 2003 and 2002, of intersegment profit, with a corresponding amount of operating expense, which reduces operating profit, included in the U.S. domestic package segment.

Note 7. Other Operating Expenses

The major components of other operating expenses for the three months ended March 31 are as follows (in millions):

	Three Months Ended March 31,						
	 2003		2002				
Repairs and maintenance	\$ 279	\$	259				
Depreciation and amortization	387		351				
Purchased transportation	398		358				
Fuel	264		196				
Other occupancy	158		139				
Other expenses	876		880				
Consolidated	\$ 2,362	\$	2,183				

10

Note 8. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (in millions, except per share amounts):

	Three Months Ended March 31,							
		2003		2002				
Numerator:								
Net income before the cumulative effect of change in accounting principle	\$	611	\$	563				
Cumulative effect of accounting change				(72)				
Net income, as reported	\$	611	\$	491				
		_		_				
Denominator:								
Weighted-average shares		1,123		1,118				
Deferred compensation arrangements		1		1				
Denominator for basic earnings per share		1,124		1,119				
	'							
Effect of dilutive securities:								
Contingent shares -								
Management incentive awards		3		3				
Stock option plans		9		12				
Denominator for diluted earnings per share		1,136		1,134				
Basic Earnings Per Share Before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle	\$	0.54	\$	0.50				
Less: Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change		_		(0.06)				
Basic Earnings Per Share	\$	0.54	\$	0.44				
Diluted Earnings Per Share Before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle	\$	0.54	\$	0.50				
Less: Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change		_		(0.07)				
Diluted Earnings Per Share	\$	0.54	\$	0.43				

Note 9. Restructuring Charge and Related Expenses

In the fourth quarter of 2002, we initiated a restructuring program to combine UPS Freight Services and the UPS Logistics Group into a single business unit ("Supply Chain Solutions"), as well as to integrate the activities of UPS Capital and First International Bank. The program is designed to facilitate business growth, streamline management decision-making, reduce the cost structure, and provide higher levels of service to our customers. The program will be completed by the end of 2003.

The total cost of the program is estimated at \$127 million, of which \$106 million was recorded in 2002 and \$2 million in the first quarter of 2003. Costs of the program include employee severance costs, asset impairments, costs associated with the consolidation of facilities, and other costs directly related to the restructuring program. The costs incurred with this program are classified in other operating expenses in the income statement.

11

We initially established a liability for the restructuring charge and related expenses in the fourth quarter of 2002. Set forth below is a summary of activity related to the restructuring program liability for the quarter ended March 31, 2003 (in millions):

	Employee		Facility		
	Severance		Consolidation	Other	Total
Balance at December 31, 2002	\$	15	\$ 17	\$ 12	\$ 44
Cash spent		(1)	_	_	(1)
Balance at March 31, 2003	\$	14	\$ 17	\$ 12	\$ 43

Revenue, Volume and Revenue Per Piece

The following tables set forth information showing the change in revenue, average daily package volume and average revenue per piece, both in dollars or amounts and in percentage terms:

	Three Months Ended March 31,				Change				
	-	2003	,	2002		\$	%		
Revenue (in millions):									
U.S. domestic package:									
Next Day Air	\$	1,353	\$	1,313	\$	40	3.0%		
Deferred		698		700		(2)	(0.3)		
Ground		3,969		3,890		79	2.0		
Total U.S. domestic package		6,020		5,903		117	2.0		
International package:									
Domestic		266		222		44	19.8		
Export		940		737		203	27.5		
Cargo		96		95		1	1.1		
Total International package		1,302		1,054		248	23.5		
Non-package:		-,		-,					
UPS Supply Chain Solutions		500		460		40	8.7		
Other		193		162		31	19.1		
Total Non-package		693	_	622		71	11.4		
Consolidated	\$	8,015	\$	7,579	\$	436	5.8%		
Consonance	-	0,012	Ψ	7,572	Ψ		3.0 70		
Average Daily Package Volume (in thousands):						#			
U.S. domestic package:									
Next Day Air		1,135		1,092		43	3.9%		
Deferred		845		880		(35)	(4.0)		
Ground		9,881		10,034		(153)	(1.5)		
Total U.S. domestic package	-	11,861	_	12,006		(145)	(1.2)		
International package:		11,001		12,000		(143)	(1.2)		
Domestic		776		780		(4)	(0.5)		
Export		471		427		44	10.3		
Total International package		1.247		1.207		40	3.3		
Consolidated		13,108	_	13,213		(105)	(0.8)%		
Consolidated		13,108		13,213		(103)	(0.8)%		
Operating days in period		63		63					
Average Revenue Per Piece:		03		05					
U.S. domestic package:						\$			
Next Day Air	\$	18.92	\$	19.09	\$	(0.17)	(0.9)%		
Deferred	Ψ	13.11	Ψ	12.63	Ψ	0.48	3.8		
Ground		6.38		6.15		0.23	3.7		
Total U.S. domestic package		8.06		7.80		0.26	3.3		
International:		8.00		7.60		0.20	5.5		
Domestic		5.44		4.52		0.92	20.4		
Export		31.68		27.40		4.28	15.6		
						2.74			
Total International package Consolidated	¢	15.35	e	12.61	¢.		21.7		
	\$	8.75	\$	8.24	\$	0.51	6.2 %		

Operating Profit

The following tables set forth information showing the change in operating profit, both in dollars (in millions) and in percentage terms:

Three Months Ended							
Operating Segment		March 31, Change					
		2003		2002		\$	%
U.S. domestic package	\$	704	\$	862	\$	(158)	(18.3)
International package		134		30		104	346.7
Non-package		107		55		52	94.5
Consolidated Operating Profit	\$	945	\$	947	\$	(2)	(0.2)

U.S. Domestic Package Operations

U.S. domestic package revenue increased \$117 million, or 2.0%, for the quarter. This increase was driven by a 3.3% increase in revenue per piece, and partially offset by a 1.2% decline in average daily package volume. The decline in volume was primarily due to adverse weather conditions and the continued weakness in the U.S. economy. The improvement in revenue per piece was primarily due to the rate increase that became effective in January, with some additional benefit from the fuel surcharge.

On January 6, 2003, we increased rates for standard ground shipments an average of 3.9% for commercial deliveries. The ground residential surcharge increased \$0.05 to \$1.15 over the commercial ground rate. The additional delivery area surcharge added to residential deliveries in certain less accessible areas increased \$0.25 to \$1.75. Rates for UPS Hundredweight increased 5.9%. In addition, we increased rates for UPS Next Day Air an average of 3.4% and increased rates for deferred services by 4.5%.

Rates for international shipments originating in the United States (UPS Worldwide Express, UPS Worldwide Express Plus, UPS Worldwide Expedited and UPS Standard service) increased an average of 3.9%. Rate changes for shipments originating outside the United States generally are made throughout the year and vary by geographic market.

The index-based fuel surcharge resets on a monthly basis and is based on the National U.S. Average On-Highway Diesel Fuel Prices as reported by the U.S.

Department of Energy. Based on published rates, the average fuel surcharge increased to 1.33% in the first quarter of 2003 from 0.59% in the first quarter of 2002, resulting in an increase in fuel surcharge revenue of \$40 million.

U.S. domestic package operating profit decreased \$158 million, or 18.3%, for the quarter primarily due to the decrease in average daily volume discussed previously and an increase in operating expenses (discussed further below under the section titled "operating expenses and operating margin").

International Package Operations

For the first quarter, international package revenue improved \$248 million, or 23.5%, due primarily to the 10.3% volume growth for our export products and strong revenue per piece improvements, a portion of which can be attributed to the impact of currency. This volume growth in our export products was strong throughout the world, with all international regions (Asia, Europe, Canada, and the Americas) showing double-digit export volume growth. In total, international package average daily volume increased 3.3% and average revenue per piece increased 21.7% (9.5% currency-adjusted).

14

The improvement in operating profit for our international package operations was \$104 million for the quarter, \$27 million of which was due to favorable currency fluctuations. This increase in operating profit was primarily due to the strong export volume growth and revenue per piece increases described previously.

Non-Package Operations

Non-package revenue increased \$71 million, or 11.4%, for the quarter. UPS Supply Chain Solutions, which comprises our former UPS Freight Services and UPS Logistics Group businesses, increased revenue by 8.7% during the quarter. Revenue growth was adversely affected by the absence of \$9 million in revenue from the FedEx brokerage business that was sold during 2002, which reduced Supply Chain Solutions revenue growth in 2003 by 2.0%. The remainder of our non-package operations, which includes Mail Boxes Etc., UPS Capital Corp., our mail and consulting services, and our excess value package insurance business, increased revenue by 19.1%.

Non-package operating profit was \$107 million for the quarter, nearly double the \$55 million operating profit achieved during the first quarter of 2002. This increase was primarily due to higher operating profit from our Supply Chain Solutions unit, which was driven by the increase in revenue as well as the cost savings produced by our integration and restructuring program.

Operating Expenses and Operating Margin

Consolidated operating expenses increased by \$438 million, or 6.6%, for the quarter. Compensation and benefits increased by 5.8% during the quarter, primarily due to increased costs associated with health and retirement benefits. Other operating expenses increased by 8.2% during the quarter, largely due to a price-driven 34.7% increase in fuel expense, an 11.2% increase in purchased transportation, a 10.3% increase in depreciation and amortization expense, and a 13.7% increase in other occupancy expense. The increase in purchased transportation was largely due to growth in our international package business and the impact of currency. The increase in depreciation and amortization expense reflects the addition of new aircraft, the completion of facilities projects (including UPS Worldport), and increased amortization of capitalized software. The increase in other occupancy expense was primarily weather-related increases in energy and snow removal costs.

Our operating margin, defined as operating profit as a percentage of revenue, decreased to 11.8% during the first quarter of 2003 from 12.5% during the first quarter of 2002. This decline is primarily due to a 290 basis point decline in the operating margin for our U.S. domestic package segment. The declining margin in this segment was primarily due to the impact of adverse weather conditions, and increased fuel, pension, health care and other benefit expense increases. The operating margin for our international package segment increased to 10.3% in 2003 from 2.8% in 2002, while the non-package operating margin increased to 15.4% in 2003 from 8.8% in 2002.

Investment Income/Interest Expense

The decrease in investment income of \$50 million for the first quarter of 2003 is primarily due to a \$58 million impairment charge recognized during the first quarter of 2003. We periodically review our investments for indications of other than temporary impairment considering many factors, including the extent and duration to which a security's fair value has been less than its cost, overall economic and market conditions, and the financial condition and specific prospects for the issuer. During 2003, after considering the continued decline in the U.S. equity markets, we recognized an impairment charge of \$58 million, primarily related to our investment in S&P 500 equity portfolios.

The \$18 million decline in interest expense for the first quarter is primarily the result of lower commercial paper balances outstanding and lower interest rates on variable rate debt.

15

Net Income and Earnings Per Share

Net income for the first quarter of 2003 was \$611 million, an increase of \$120 million from \$491 million in the first quarter of 2002, resulting in an increase in diluted earnings per share from \$0.43 in 2002 to \$0.54 in 2003. The 2002 results reflect the cumulative effect of an accounting change due to our adoption of FAS 142, resulting in an after-tax charge of \$72 million (\$0.07 per share). The comparison between 2003 and 2002 was also affected by the \$58 million investment impairment charge described previously, a \$55 million reduction to income tax expense in 2003 resulting from the resolution of various tax issues with the Internal Revenue Service, and a lower effective tax rate (37.0% and 38.5% in 2003 and 2002, respectively).

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary source of liquidity is our cash flow from operations. We maintain significant cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and short-term investments, amounting to \$3.015 billion at March 31, 2003.

As part of our continuing share repurchase program, \$1.0 billion was authorized for share repurchases in February 2002, of which \$562 million was still available as of March 31, 2003.

We maintain two commercial paper programs under which we are authorized to borrow up to \$7.0 billion. Approximately \$527 million was outstanding under these programs as of March 31, 2003. The entire balance outstanding has been classified as a current liability in our balance sheet. The average interest rate on the amount outstanding at March 31, 2003 was 1.22%. In addition, we maintain an extendible commercial notes program under which we are authorized to borrow up to \$500 million. No amounts were outstanding under this program at March 31, 2003.

We maintain two credit agreements with a consortium of banks. These agreements provide revolving credit facilities of \$1.0 billion each, with one expiring on April 22, 2004 and the other on April 24, 2008. Interest on any amounts we borrow under these facilities would be charged at 90-day LIBOR plus 15 basis points. There were no borrowings under either of these agreements as of March 31, 2003.

We also maintain a \$1.0 billion European medium-term note program. Under this program, we may issue notes from time to time, denominated in a variety of currencies. No amounts were outstanding under this program at March 31, 2003.

We have a \$2.0 billion shelf registration statement under which we may issue debt securities in the United States. There was approximately \$1.699 billion issued under this shelf registration statement at March 31, 2003. During the first quarter of 2003, \$47 million of UPS Notes were issued, while \$122 million of UPS Notes were called. Also during the first quarter, a \$100 million floating rate note was issued which matures in 2053.

We are named as a defendant in twenty-three pending lawsuits that seek to hold us liable for the collection of premiums for excess value ("EV") insurance in connection with package shipments since 1984. Based on state and federal tort, contract and statutory claims, these cases generally claim that we failed to remit collected EV premiums to an independent insurer; we failed to provide promised EV insurance; we acted as an insurer without complying with state insurance laws and regulations; and the price for EV insurance was excessive.

These actions all were filed after the August 9, 1999 United States Tax Court decision, in which the Tax Court held that we were liable for tax on income of Overseas Partners Ltd., a Bermuda company that had reinsured EV insurance purchased by our customers beginning in 1984, and that we were liable for additional tax for the 1983 and 1984 tax years. On June 20, 2001, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Eleventh Circuit ruled in our favor and reversed the Tax Court decision. In January 2003, we and the IRS finalized settlement of all outstanding tax issues relating to EV package insurance.

16

These twenty-three cases have been consolidated for pre-trial purposes in a multi-district litigation proceeding ("MDL Proceeding") in federal court in New York. The Court has granted our motions to dismiss with respect to all of the plaintiffs' tort claims and all of their breach of contract claims prior to August 26, 1994. Claims asserted under specific federal statutes, and breach of contract claims commencing on August 26, 1994, are proceeding. We intend to continue to seek dismissal of these remaining claims.

The defendants in the MDL Proceeding, including UPS, have stipulated to conditional certification of a plaintiff class in most of the lawsuits challenging the EV insurance program for our shippers. Class certification is a procedural step that allows claims to be resolved at one time as to all potential claimants; it does not depend on or reflect the merits of the underlying claims. Defendants may move later to set aside or modify the class certification.

The cases subject to the class certification stipulation will proceed to a single trial before the federal court presiding over the MDL Proceeding, instead of being returned for trial to the numerous federal courts around the country from which they were transferred. In addition, plaintiffs in the five cases with pending motions to remand to state court have withdrawn these motions.

In addition to the cases in which UPS is named as a defendant, there also is an action, Smith v. Mail Boxes Etc., against Mail Boxes Etc. and its franchisees relating to UPS EV insurance purchased through Mail Boxes Etc. centers. This case also has been consolidated into the MDL Proceeding. The plaintiff has moved to have the case remanded back to state court.

We believe that the allegations in these cases have no merit and intend to continue to defend them vigorously. The ultimate resolution of these cases cannot presently be determined.

In addition, we are a defendant in various other lawsuits that arose in the normal course of business. We believe that the eventual resolution of these cases will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

Due to the events of September 11, 2001, increased security requirements for air carriers may be forthcoming; however, we do not anticipate that such measures will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity. In addition, our insurance premiums have risen and we have taken several actions, including self-insuring certain risks, to mitigate the expense increase.

As of December 31, 2002, we had approximately 230,000 employees (64% of our total employees) employed under a national master agreement and various supplemental agreements with local unions affiliated with the International Brotherhood of Teamsters ("Teamsters"). On October 7, 2002, the Teamsters ratified a new master agreement with UPS that runs through July 31, 2008. The new agreement is retroactive to August 1, 2002. The majority of our pilots are employed under a collective bargaining agreement with the Independent Pilots Association, which becomes amendable January 1, 2004. Our airline mechanics are covered by a collective bargaining agreement with Teamsters Local 2727, which becomes amendable on November 1, 2006. In addition, the majority of our ground mechanics who are not employed under agreements with the Teamsters are employed under collective bargaining agreements with the International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers. These agreements run through July 31, 2009.

We believe that funds from operations and borrowing programs will provide adequate sources of liquidity and capital resources to meet our expected long-term needs for the operation of our business, including anticipated capital expenditures such as commitments for aircraft purchases, through 2009.

At March 31, 2003, we had unfunded loan commitments totaling \$752 million, consisting of standby letters of credit of \$63 million and other unfunded lending commitments of \$689 million.

17

New Accounting Pronouncements

On January 1, 2002, we adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 142 "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" ("FAS 142"). Upon adoption of FAS 142, we were required to test all existing goodwill for impairment as of January 1, 2002, using a fair value approach. An impairment charge is recognized for the amount, if any, by which the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its fair value. Fair values are established using discounted cash flows. We recorded a non-cash goodwill impairment charge of \$72 million (\$0.07 per diluted share) related to our Mail Technologies business. This charge is reported as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle and resulted in a restatement of our first quarter 2002 quarterly financial statements. The primary factor resulting in the impairment charge was the lower than anticipated growth experienced in the expedited mail delivery business. Amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets ceased upon the implementation of FAS 142 on January 1, 2002.

On January 1, 2003, we adopted FASB interpretation No. 45 "Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others" ("FIN 45"). FIN 45 requires that a liability be recognized at fair value at the inception of certain guarantees for the obligations undertaken by the guarantor. FIN 45 also requires additional disclosures for certain guarantee contracts. The adoption of FIN 45 was not material to our results of operations or financial condition

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities" ("FIN 46"). FIN 46 addresses consolidation by a business of variable interest entities in which it is the primary beneficiary. FIN 46 is effective immediately for certain disclosure requirements and variable interest entities created after

January 31, 2003, and effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2003 for existing variable interest entities. We anticipate the effects of adopting FIN 46 will not be material to our results of operations or financial condition.

In April 2003, the FASB issued Statement No. 149 "Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" ("FAS 149"). FAS 149 amends FAS 133 for certain decisions made by the FASB as part of the Derivatives Implementation Group process. FAS 149 also amends FAS 133 to incorporate clarifications of the definition of a derivative. FAS 149 is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, with certain exceptions, and requires prospective application. We anticipate the effects of adopting FAS 149 will not be material to our results of operations or financial condition.

Forward-Looking Statements

Except for historical information contained herein, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," "Liquidity and Capital Resources" and other parts of this report contain "forward-looking" statements about matters that inherently are difficult to predict. These statements include statements regarding our intent, belief and current expectations regarding strategic direction, prospects and future results. Certain factors may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in the forward-looking statements, including economic and other conditions in the markets in which we operate, strikes, work stoppages and slowdowns, governmental regulations, our competitive environment, increases in aviation and motor fuel prices, cyclical and seasonal fluctuations in our operating results, and other risks discussed in our Form 10-K and other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, which discussions are incorporated herein by reference.

18

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices, and certain commodity prices. All of this market risk arises in the normal course of business, as we do not engage in speculative trading activities. In order to manage the risk arising from these exposures, we utilize a variety of foreign exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity forward contracts, options, and swaps.

The total fair value asset (liability) of our derivative financial instruments, including derivatives added during the first three months of 2003, is summarized in the following table (in millions):

	Marc 20	,	December 31, 2002
Energy Derivatives	\$	61 \$	34
Currency Derivatives		3	(3)
Interest Rate Derivatives		(74)	(62)
Investment Derivatives		_	219
	\$	(10) \$	188

Our market risks, hedging strategies, and financial instrument positions at March 31, 2003 are similar to those disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002. During the first three months of 2003, we issued a total of \$47 million of fixed rate notes with various maturities under our UPS Notes program. All of these fixed rate notes were effectively converted to floating interest rates using interest rate swaps. The notes are callable at various stated times after issuance, and \$122 million of the notes were called in the first three months of 2003. A \$100 million floating rate note was issued in the first quarter, maturing in 2053 and paying interest at LIBOR less 45 basis points. Additionally, a large investment derivative used to hedge equity price risk settled during the first three months of 2003 (which resulted in UPS receiving cash of \$222 million) accounting for the decline in value of our investment derivatives since December 31, 2002.

The forward contracts, swaps, and options previously discussed contain an element of risk that the counterparties may be unable to meet the terms of the agreements. However, we minimize such risk exposures for these instruments by limiting the counterparties to large banks and financial institutions that meet established credit guidelines. We do not expect to incur any losses as a result of counterparty default.

The information concerning market risk under the sub-caption "Market Risk" of the caption "Management's Discussion and Analysis" on pages 26-28 of our consolidated financial statements contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, is hereby incorporated by reference in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

19

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

During the 90-day period prior to the filing date of this report, management, including the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon, and as of the date of, that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective, in all material respects, to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports the Company files and submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported as and when required.

There have been no significant changes in the Company's internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date the Company carried out its evaluation. There were no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses identified in the evaluation and therefore, no corrective actions were taken.

20

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

For a discussion of legal proceedings affecting us and our subsidiaries, please see Note 4 to our unaudited consolidated financial statements contained herein.

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K

(A) Exhibits:

- 3.1 Form of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of United Parcel Service, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Form 10-Q for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2002).
- 3.2 Form of Bylaws of United Parcel Service, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 on Form S-4 (No. 333-83349), filed on July 21, 1999, as amended).

10 - Material Contracts

- (a) Credit Agreement (364-Day Facility) dated April 24, 2003 among United Parcel Service, Inc., the initial lenders named therein, Citigroup Global Markets Inc. as Arranger and Bank of America, N.A., and Bank One, NA, as Co-Documentation Agents and Citibank, N.A. as Administrative and Syndication Agent.
- (b) Credit Agreement (Five-Year Facility) dated April 24, 2003 among United Parcel Service, Inc., the initial lenders named therein, Citigroup Global Markets Inc. as Arranger and Bank of America, N.A., and Bank One, NA, as Co-Documentation Agents and Citibank, N.A. as Administrative and Syndication Agent.
- 99.1 Certificate of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 99.2 Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

(B) Reports on Form 8-K:

The Company filed a Form 8-K Current Report on February 21, 2003 (Date of Earliest Event Reported: January 28, 2003), announcing its fourth quarter and annual financial results for the three months and year ended December 31, 2002.

The Company filed a Form 8-K Current Report on April 24, 2003 (Date of Earliest Event Reported: April 22, 2003), announcing its first quarter financial results for the three months ended March 31, 2003.

22

EXHIBIT INDEX

10 - Material Contracts

- (a) Credit Agreement (364-Day Facility) dated April 24, 2003 among United Parcel Service, Inc., the initial lenders named therein, Citigroup Global Markets Inc. as Arranger and Bank of America, N.A., and Bank One, NA, as Co-Documentation Agents and Citibank, N.A. as Administrative and Syndication Agent.
- (b) Credit Agreement (Five-Year Facility) dated April 24, 2003 among United Parcel Service, Inc., the initial lenders named therein, Citigroup Global Markets Inc. as Arranger and Bank of America, N.A., and Bank One, NA, as Co-Documentation Agents and Citibank, N.A. as Administrative and Syndication Agent.
- 99.1 Certificate of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 99.2 Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

23

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC. (Registrant)

Date: May 15, 2003 By: <u>/s/ D. Scott Davis</u>

D. Scott Davis
Senior Vice President,
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
(Duly Authorized Officer and
Principal Financial Officer)

24

I, Michael L. Eskew, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of United Parcel Service, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:
 - a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;
 - b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosures controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this quarterly report (the "Evaluation Date"); and
 - c. presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date:
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):
 - all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and
 - b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

25

6. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have indicated in this quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: May 15, 2003

/s/ Michael L. Eskew

Michael L. Eskew

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

26

United Parcel Service, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Certifications

I, D. Scott Davis, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of United Parcel Service, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:
 - a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;
 - b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosures controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this quarterly report (the "Evaluation Date"); and
 - c. presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):
 - a. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant's auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and
 - b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal controls; and

6. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have indicated in this quarterly report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: May 15, 2003

/s/ D. Scott Davis D. Scott Davis

Chief Financial Officer

U.S. \$1,000,000,000

SEVENTH AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT

(364-Day Facility)

Dated as of April 24, 2003

Among

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC.

as Borrower

and

THE INITIAL LENDERS NAMED HEREIN

as Initial Lenders

and

CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS INC.

as Arranger

and

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.

and

BANK ONE, NA

as Co-Documentation Agents

and

CITIBANK, N.A.

as Administrative Agent and Syndication Agent

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>ARTICLE I</u>

DEFINITIONS AND ACCOUNTING TERMS

SECTION 1.01.	Certain Defined Terms
SECTION 1.02.	Computation of Time Periods
SECTION 1.03.	Accounting Terms

ARTICLE II

AMOUNTS AND TERMS OF THE ADVANCES

SECTION 2.01.	The Revolving Credit Advances
SECTION 2.02.	Making the Revolving Credit Advances
SECTION 2.03.	The Competitive Bid Advances
SECTION 2.04.	Fees
SECTION 2.05.	Termination or Reduction of the Commitments
SECTION 2.06.	Repayment of Revolving Credit Advances
SECTION 2.07.	Interest on Revolving Credit Advances
SECTION 2.08.	Interest Rate Determination
SECTION 2.09.	Optional Conversion of Revolving Credit Advances
SECTION 2.10.	Optional Prepayments of Advances
SECTION 2.11.	Increased Costs
SECTION 2.12.	Illegality
SECTION 2.13.	Payments and Computations
SECTION 2.14.	Taxes
SECTION 2.15.	Sharing of Payments, Etc
SECTION 2.16.	Extensions of Termination Date and Final Maturity Date
SECTION 2.17.	Substitution of Lender

CONDITIONS TO EFFECTIVENESS AND LENDING

CONDITIONS TO EFFECTIVENESS AND LENDING				
SECTION 3.01.	Conditions Precedent to Effectiveness of Sections 2.01 and 2.03			
SECTION 3.02.	Conditions Precedent to Each Revolving Credit Borrowing and to Extension of the Final Maturity Date			
SECTION 3.03.	Conditions Precedent to Each Competitive Bid Borrowing			
SECTION 3.04. SECTION 3.05.	Determinations Under Section 3.01 Labor Dispute			
<u>52011014 5.05.</u>	<u>Lucor Dispute</u>			
	ARTICLE IV			
	DEDDEGENITATIONS AND WARD ANTINES			
	REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES			
SECTION 4.01.	Representations and Warranties of the Borrower			
	ARTICLE V			
	COVENANTS OF THE BORROWER			
SECTION 5.01. SECTION 5.02.	Affirmative Covenants Negative Covenants			
SECTION 5.02.	inegative Covenants			
	ARTICLE VI			
	EVENTS OF DEFAULT			
SECTION 6.01.	Events of Default			
	ARTICLE VII			
	THE AGENTS			
	THE AGENTS			
SECTION 7.01.	Authorization and Action			
SECTION 7.02. SECTION 7.03.	The Agents' Reliance, Etc Citibank, B of A, Bank One and Their Affiliates			
SECTION 7.04.	Lender Credit Decision			
<u>SECTION 7.05.</u> SECTION 7.06.	Indemnification Successor Agents			
<u>SECTION 7.00.</u> <u>SECTION 7.07.</u>	Documentation Agent			
	ARTICLE VIII			
	MISCELLANEOUS			
SECTION 8.01.	Amendments, Etc			
SECTION 8.02. SECTION 8.03.	Notices, Etc No Waiver; Remedies			
SECTION 8.04.	Costs and Expenses			
SECTION 8.05. SECTION 8.06.	Right of Setoff Binding Effect			
SECTION 8.07.	Assignments, Designations and Participations			
SECTION 8.08. SECTION 8.09.	Confidentiality Governing La w			
SECTION 8.10.	Execution in Counterparts			
SECTION 8.11.	Jurisdiction, Etc			
SCHEDULE				
	SCHEDULE			
Schedule I —	Commitments and Applicable Lending Offices			
EVHIDITE				
	EXHIBITS			
Exhibit A-1 —	Form of Revolving Credit Note			
Exhibit A-2 —	Form of Competitive Bid Note Form of Notice of Revolving Credit Borrowing			
Exhibit B-1 — Exhibit B-2 —	Form of Notice of Revolving Credit Borrowing Form of Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing			
Exhibit C —	Form of Assignment and Acceptance			
Exhibit D — Exhibit E —	Form of Designation Agreement Form of Guaranty			
Exhibit F —	Form of Indemnity Agreement			
Exhibit G —	Form of Opinion of Counsel for the Borrower Debenture Indenture			
Exhibit H —	December indentale			

SEVENTH AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT

(364-Day Facility)

Dated as of April 24, 2003

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC., a Delaware corporation (the "Borrower"), the banks, financial institutions and other institutional lenders (collectively, the "Initial Lenders") listed on the signature pages hereof, Citibank, N.A. ('Citibank''), as administrative agent (in such capacity, the "Administrative Agent') and as syndication agent (in such capacity, the "Syndication Agent") for the Lenders (as hereinafter defined), Bank of America, N.A. ('B of A'') and Bank One, NA ('Bank One''), as co-documentation agents (in such capacity, the "Co-Documentation Agents') for such Lenders, and Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as sole arranger and book manager (in such capacity, the "Arranger") under the Loan Documents (as hereinafter defined), agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND ACCOUNTING TERMS

SECTION 1.01. <u>Certain Defined Terms</u>. As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings (such meanings to be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of the terms defined):

"Administrative Agent" has the meaning specified in the recital of parties to this Agreement.

"Administrative Agent's Account" means the account of the Administrative Agent maintained by the Administrative Agent at Citibank with its office at 399 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10043, Account No. 36852248, Attention: Lee Tang.

"Advance" means a Revolving Credit Advance or a Competitive Bid Advance, as the context may require.

"Affiliate" means, as to any Person, any other Person that, directly or indirectly, controls, is controlled by or is under common control with such Person; provided, however, that Overseas Partners shall not be deemed to be an Affiliate of the Borrower.

"Agent" means the Administrative Agent or the Documentation Agent, as the context may require.

"Applicable Fee Percentage" means, as of any date, a percentage per annum determined by reference to the Public Debt Rating in effect on such date as set forth below:

Public Debt Rating	Applicable
S&P/Moody's	FeePercentage
<u>Level 1</u>	
AA- / Aa3 or above	0.050 %
Level 2	
Lower than Level 1 but at least A- / A3	0.075 %
Level 3	
Lower than Level 2	0.100 %

"Applicable Lending Office" means, with respect to each Lender, such Lender's Domestic Lending Office in the case of a Base Rate Advance and such Lender's Eurodollar Lending Office in the case of a Eurodollar Rate Advance and, in the case of a Competitive Bid Advance, the office of such Lender notified by such Lender to the Administrative Agent and the Borrower as its Applicable Lending Office with respect to such Competitive Bid Advance.

"Applicable Margin" means (a) as of any date up to the Termination Date, 0.00% per annum for Base Rate Advances and 0.12% per annum for Eurodollar Rate Advances and (b) as of any date from and after the Termination Date, a percentage per annum determined by reference to the Public Debt Rating in effect on such date as set forth below:

Public Debt Rating S&P/Moody's	Applicable Margin for Base Rate Advances	Applicable Margin for Eurodollar Rate Advances
Level 1		
AA- / Aa3 or above	0.00 %	0.300%
<u>Level 2</u>		
Lower than Level 1 but at least A- / A3	0.00%	0.500 %
Level 3		
Lower than Level 2	0.00 %	0.725 %

provided, however, that if as of any date of determination the aggregate principal amount of Advances outstanding exceeds 33% of the aggregate Commitments (without giving effect to any termination thereof, with respect to any period following the Termination

2

Date), the Applicable Margin for such date shall be the percentage per annum determined in accordance with clause (a) or (b) abovplus 0.05%.

"Arranger" has the meaning specified in the recital of parties to this Agreement.

"Assignment and Acceptance" means an assignment and acceptance entered into by a Lender and an Eligible Assignee, and accepted by the Administrative Agent, in substantially the form of Exhibit C hereto.

- "Attributable Debt" has the meaning specified in the Debenture Indenture.
- "B of A" has the meaning specified in the recital of parties to this Agreement.
- "Bank One" has the meaning specified in the recital of parties to this Agreement.
- "Base Rate" means a fluctuating interest rate per annum in effect from time to time, which rate per annum shall at all times be equal to the highest of:
 - (a) the rate of interest announced publicly by Citibank in New York, New York, from time to time, as Citibank's prime rate;
- (b) the sum (adjusted to the nearest 1/16 of 1% or, if there is no nearest 1/16 of 1%, to the next higher 1/16 of 1%) of (i) 1/2 of 1% per annum plus (ii) the rate obtained by dividing (A) the latest three-week moving average of secondary market morning offering rates in the United States for three-month certificates of deposit of major United States money market banks, such three-week moving average (adjusted to the basis of a year of 360 days) being determined weekly on each Monday (or, if such day is not a Business Day, on the next succeeding Business Day) for the three-week period ending on the previous Friday by Citibank on the basis of such rates reported by certificate of deposit dealers to and published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York or, if such publication shall be suspended or terminated, on the basis of quotations for such rates received by Citibank from three New York certificate of deposit dealers of recognized standing selected by Citibank, by (B) a percentage equal to 100% minus the average of the daily percentages specified during such three-week period by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (or any successor) for determining the maximum reserve requirement (including, ton the liabilities) three-month Dollar nonpersonal time deposits in the United States, plus (iii) the average during such three-week period of the annual assessment rates estimated by Citibank for determining the then current annual assessment payable by Citibank to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (or any successor) for insuring Dollar deposits of Citibank in the United States; and
 - (c) 1/2 of 1% per annum above the Federal Funds Rate.

3

- "Base Rate Advance" means a Revolving Credit Advance that bears interest as provided in Section 2.07(a)(i).
- "Beneficial Ownership" means beneficial ownership as determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 of the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act, as in effect on the date hereof.
 - "Borrower" has the meaning specified in the recital of parties to this Agreement.
 - "Borrower's Account" means the account of the Borrower designated in writing by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent from time to time.
 - "Borrowing" means a Revolving Credit Borrowing or a Competitive Bid Borrowing, as the context may require.
- "Business Day" means a day of the year (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks are not required or authorized by law to close in New York City and, if the applicable Business Day relates to any Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances, on which dealings are carried on in the London interbank market.
- "Capital Lease Obligations" of any Person means all obligations of such Person to pay rent or other amounts under any lease of (or other arrangement conveying the right to use) real or personal property, or a combination thereof, which obligations are required to be classified and accounted for as capital leases on a balance sheet of such Person under GAAP.
 - "Change of Control" means the occurrence of any of the following:
 - (a) any Person or two or more Persons acting in concert other than a Permitted Person shall have acquired Beneficial Ownership, directly or indirectly, through a purchase, merger or other transaction or series of transactions or otherwise, of (i) 10% or more of the shares of common stock of the Borrower or (ii) Voting Stock of the Borrower to which 10% or more of the total Voting Power of the Borrower is attributable; or
 - (b) Permitted Persons shall not have Beneficial Ownership of (i) 75% or more of the shares of common stock of the Borrower or (ii) Voting Stock of the Borrower to which 75% or more of the total Voting Power of the Borrower is attributable.
 - "Citibank" has the meaning specified in the recital of parties to this Agreement.
 - "Co-Documentation Agents" has the meaning specified in the recital of parties to this Agreement.
 - "Commitment" has the meaning specified in Section 2.01.

4

- "Competitive Bid Advance" means an advance by a Lender to the Borrower as part of a Competitive Bid Borrowing resulting from the auction bidding procedure described in Section 2.03 and refers to a Fixed Rate Advance or a LIBO Rate Advance, as the context may require.
- "Competitive Bid Borrowing" means a borrowing consisting of simultaneous Competitive Bid Advances from each of the Lenders whose offer to make one or more Competitive Bid Advances as part of such borrowing has been accepted by the Borrower under the auction bidding procedure described in Section 2.03.
- "Competitive Bid Note" means a promissory note of the Borrower payable to the order of any Lender, in substantially the form of Exhibit A-2 hereto, evidencing the indebtedness of the Borrower to such Lender resulting from a Competitive Bid Advance made by such Lender.
 - "Competitive Bid Reduction" has the meaning specified in Section 2.01.
- "Confidential Information" means information that the Borrower furnishes to an Agent or any Lender in a writing designated as confidential, but does not include any such information that is or becomes generally available to the public or that is or becomes available to an Agent or such Lender from a source other than the Borrower (unless such Agent or such Lender knows that such information is not generally available to the public).
 - "Consolidated" refers to the consolidation of accounts in accordance with GAAP.
 - "Consolidated Net Tangible Assets" has the meaning specified in the Debenture Indenture.

"Consolidated Net Worth" means the shareholders' equity of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, computed in accordance with GAAP.

"Convert", "Conversion" and "Converted" each refers to a conversion of Revolving Credit Advances of one Type into Revolving Credit Advances of the other Type pursuant to Section 2.08 or 2.09.

"Debenture Indenture" means the Indenture, dated as of December 1, 1989, between United Parcel Service of America, Inc. and Chemical Bank pursuant to which the 8-3/8% Debentures Due April 1, 2020 were issued, as in effect on the date of this Agreement (without giving effect to any amendment, supplement or other modification thereto, any repayment or covenant defeasance thereunder or any termination thereof), a copy of which is attached as Exhibit H hereto.

"Debt" of any Person means, without duplication, (a) all obligations of such Person for borrowed money, or with respect to deposits with or advances of any kind to such Person, (b) all obligations of such Person evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or similar instruments, (c) all obligations of such Person upon which interest charges are customarily paid, (d) all obligations of such Person under conditional sale or other title

5

retention agreements relating to property or assets purchased by such Person, (e) all obligations of such Person issued or assumed as the deferred purchase price of property or services, (f) all Debt of others secured by (or for which the holder of such Debt has an existing right, contingent or otherwise, to be secured by) any Lien on property or assets owned or acquired by such Person (other than Non-Recourse Debt), (g) all Guarantees by such Person of Debt of others, (h) all Capital Lease Obligations of such Person in respect of Hedge Agreements; provided, however, that at any given time the term "obligations" as used in this clause (i) shall only include the net amounts due and payable at such time under any such agreements or arrangements and (j) all obligations of such Person as an account party in respect of letters of credit and bankers' acceptances. The Debt of any Person shall include the Debt of any partnership in which such Person is a general partner.

"Declining Lender" has the meaning specified in Section 2.16(a).

"Default" means any Event of Default or any event that would constitute an Event of Default but for the requirement that notice be given or time elapse or both.

"Designated Bidder" means (a) an Eligible Assignee or (b) a special purpose corporation that is engaged in making, purchasing or otherwise investing in commercial loans in the ordinary course of its business and that issues (or the parent of which issues) commercial paper rated at least "Prime-1" (or the then equivalent grade) by Moody's or "A-1" (or the then equivalent grade) by S&P that, in either case, (i) is organized under the laws of the United States or any state thereof or the District of Columbia, (ii) shall have become a party to this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.07(d), (e) and (f) and (iii) is not otherwise a Lender.

"Designation Agreement" means a designation agreement entered into by a Lender (other than a Designated Bidder) and a Designated Bidder, and accepted by the Administrative Agent, in substantially the form of Exhibit D hereto.

"Documentation Agent" means the Co-Documentation Agents.

"Dollars" and the sign "\$" mean lawful currency of the United States of America.

"Domestic Lending Office" means, with respect to any Lender, the office of such Lender specified as its "Domestic Lending Office" opposite its name on Schedule I hereto or in the Assignment and Acceptance pursuant to which it became a Lender, or such other office of such Lender as such Lender may from time to time specify to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent.

"Effective Date" has the meaning specified in Section 3.01.

"Eligible Assignee" means (i) a Lender; (ii) an Affiliate of a Lender that is otherwise an Eligible Assignee; (iii) a commercial bank organized under the laws of the United States, or any state thereof, and having total assets in excess of \$1,000,000,000, calculated in accordance with the accounting principles prescribed by the regulatory authority applicable to such bank in its jurisdiction of organization; (iv) a commercial

6

bank organized under the laws of any other country that is a member of the OECD, or a political subdivision of any such country, and having total assets in excess of \$1,000,000,000, calculated in accordance with the accounting principles prescribed by the regulatory authority applicable to such bank in its jurisdiction of organization, so long as such bank is acting through a branch or agency located in the country in which it is organized or another country that is described in this clause (iv); (v) the central bank of any country that is a member of the OECD; (vi) a finance company, insurance company or other financial institution or fund (whether a corporation, partnership, trust or other entity) organized under the laws of the United States, or any state thereof, that is engaged in making, purchasing or otherwise investing in commercial loans in the ordinary course of its business and having total assets in excess of \$1,000,000,000, calculated in accordance with the accounting principles prescribed by the regulatory authority applicable to such entity in its jurisdiction of organization; provided, however, that neither the Borrower nor an Affiliate of the Borrower shall qualify as an Eligible Assignee.

"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from time to time, and the regulations promulgated and rulings issued thereunder.

"ERISA Affiliate" means any trade or business (whether or not incorporated) that is a member of a group of which the Borrower is a member and which is treated as a single employer under Section 414 of the Internal Revenue Code.

"Eurocurrency Liabilities" has the meaning assigned to that term in Regulation D.

"Eurodollar Lending Office" means, with respect to any Lender, the office of such Lender specified as its "Eurodollar Lending Office" opposite its name on Schedule I hereto or in the Assignment and Acceptance pursuant to which it became a Lender (or, if no such office is specified, its Domestic Lending Office), or such other office of such Lender as such Lender may from time to time specify to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent.

"Eurodollar Rate" means, for any Interest Period for each Eurodollar Rate Advance comprising part of the same Revolving Credit Borrowing, an interest rate per annum equal to the rate per annum obtained by dividing (a) the average (rounded upward to the nearest whole multiple of 1/16 of 1% per annum, if such average is not such a multiple) of the rate per annum at which deposits in Dollars are offered by the principal office of each of the Reference Banks in London, England to prime banks in the London interbank market at 11:00 A.M. (London time) two Business Days before the first day of such Interest Period in an amount substantially equal to such Reference Bank's Eurodollar Rate Advance comprising part of such Revolving Credit Borrowing to be outstanding during such Interest Period and for a period equal to such Interest Period by (b) a percentage equal to 100% minus the Eurodollar Rate Reserve Percentage for such Interest Period. The Eurodollar Rate for any

the Administrative Agent from the Reference Banks two Business Days before the first day of such Interest Period, subject, however, to the provisions of Section 2.08(e).

"Eurodollar Rate Advance" means a Revolving Credit Advance that bears interest as provided in Section 2.07(a)(ii).

"Eurodollar Rate Reserve Percentage" means, for any Interest Period for all Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances comprising part of the same Borrowing, the reserve percentage applicable two Business Days before the first day of such Interest Period under regulations issued from time to time by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (or any successor) for determining the maximum reserve requirement (including, without limitation, any emergency, supplemental or other marginal reserve requirement) for a member bank of the Federal Reserve System in New York City with respect to liabilities or assets consisting of or including Eurocurrency Liabilities (or with respect to any other category of liabilities that includes deposits by reference to which the interest rate on Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances is determined) having a term equal to such Interest Period.

"Event of Default" has the meaning specified in Section 6.01.

"Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from time to time, and the regulations promulgated and rulings issued thereunder.

"Existing Credit Facilities" means the credit facilities provided pursuant to (a) the Sixth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (364-Day Facility), dated as of April 25, 2002, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time prior to the date hereof, among United Parcel Service, Inc., a Delaware corporation, the banks, financial institutions and other institutional lenders parties thereto, Citibank, as administrative agent and syndication agent, Bank of America, N.A. and Bank One, NA as co-documentation agents, and Salomon Smith Barney Inc., as arranger thereunder and (b) the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (Five-year Facility) dated as of April 26, 2001, among United Parcel Service, Inc., a Delaware corporation, the banks, financial institutions and other institutional lenders parties thereto, Citibank, as administrative agent and syndication agent, Salomon Smith Barney Inc. and Banc of America Securities LLC, as coarrangers, and Bank of America, N.A. as documentation agent thereunder.

"Extending Lender" has the meaning specified in Section 2.16(a).

"Federal Funds Rate" means, for any period, a fluctuating interest rate per annum equal for each day during such period to the weighted average of the rates on overnight federal funds transactions with members of the Federal Reserve System arranged by federal funds brokers, as published for such day (or, if such day is not a Business Day, for the next preceding Business Day) by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or, if such rate is not so published for any day that is a Business Day, the average of the quotations for such day on such transactions received by the Administrative Agent from three federal funds brokers of recognized standing selected by it.

8

"Final Maturity Date" means (a) the Termination Date or (b) if extended pursuant to Section 2.16(b), the date requested by the Borrower pursuant to Section 2.16(b), but in no event shall such date be later than the third anniversary of the then scheduled Termination Date.

"Financial Officer" of any corporation means the chief financial officer, principal accounting officer, treasurer, assistant treasurer or controller of such corporation.

"Fiscal Year" means, with respect to any Person, the period commencing on January 1 and ending on December 31 of any calendar year.

"Fixed Rate Advances" has the meaning specified in Section 2.03(a)(i).

"GAAP" has the meaning specified in Section 1.03.

"Governmental Authority" means any federal, state, local or foreign court or governmental agency, authority, instrumentality or regulatory body.

"Guarantee" of or by any Person means any obligation, contingent or otherwise, of such Person guaranteeing or having the economic effect of guaranteeing any Debt of any other Person (the "primary obligor") in any manner, whether directly or indirectly, and including, without limitation, any obligation of such Person, direct or indirect, (a) to purchase or pay (or advance or supply funds for the purchase or) any security for the payment of such Debt, (b) to purchase property, securities or services for the purpose of assuring the owner of such debt of the payment of such Debt or (c) to maintain working capital, equity capital or other financial statement condition or liquidity of the primary obligor so as to enable the primary obligor to pay such Debt; provided, however, that the term "Guarantee" shall not include endorsements for collection or deposit, in either case in the ordinary course of business.

"Guarantor" means each of UPSCO, UPSNY and UPSO.

"Guaranty" has the meaning specified in Section 3.01(e)(ii).

"Hedge Agreements" means interest rate swap, cap or collar agreements, interest rate future or option contracts, currency swap agreements, currency future or option contracts and other similar agreements.

"Incurrence" has the meaning specified in Section 5.02(a).

"Indemnified Matters" has the meaning specified in Section 8.04(b).

"Indemnified Party" has the meaning specified in Section 8.04(b).

"Indemnity Agreement" has the meaning specified in Section 3.01(e)(iii).

"Initial Lender" has the meaning specified in the recital of parties to this Agreement.

"Interest Period" means, for each Eurodollar Rate Advance comprising part of the same Revolving Credit Borrowing and each LIBO Rate Advance comprising part of the same Competitive Bid Borrowing, the period commencing on the date of such Eurodollar Rate Advance or LIBO Rate Advance or the date of the Conversion of any Base Rate Advance into such Eurodollar Rate Advance and ending on the last day of the period selected by the Borrower pursuant to the provisions below and, thereafter, each subsequent period commencing on the last day of the immediately preceding Interest Period and ending on the last day of the period selected by the Borrower pursuant to the provisions below. The duration of each such Interest Period shall be (a) in the case of Eurodollar Rate Advances, one, two, three or six months, as the Borrower may, upon notice received by the Administrative Agent not later than 11:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the third Business Day prior to the first day of such Interest Period, select and (b) in the case of LIBO Rate Advances, a minimum of seven days; provided, however, that:

- (i) the Borrower may not select any Interest Period that ends after the Final Maturity Date;
- (ii) Interest Periods commencing on the same date for Eurodollar Rate Advances comprising part of the same Revolving Credit Borrowing or for LIBO Rate Advances comprising part of the same Competitive Bid Borrowing shall be of the same duration;
- (iii) whenever the last day of any Interest Period would otherwise occur on a day other than a Business Day, the last day of such Interest Period shall be extended to occur on the next succeeding Business Day, provided, however, that, if such extension would cause the last day of such Interest Period to occur in the next following calendar month, the last day of such Interest Period shall occur on the next preceding Business Day; and
- (iv) whenever the first day of (A) any Interest Period in respect of Eurodollar Rate Advances or (B) any Interest Period in respect of LIBO Rate Advances the durations of which are one, two, three or six months, occurs on a day of an initial calendar month for which there is no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month that succeeds such initial calendar month by the number of months equal to the number of months in such Interest Period, such Interest Period shall end on the last Business Day of such succeeding calendar month.

"Internal Revenue Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, and the regulations promulgated and rulings issued thereunder.

"Lenders" means the Initial Lenders and each Person that shall become a party hereto pursuant to Section 8.07(a), (b) and (c) and, except when used in reference to a

10

Revolving Credit Advance, a Revolving Credit Borrowing, a Revolving Credit Note, a Commitment or a related term, each Designated Bidder.

"LIBO Rate" means, for any Interest Period for all LIBO Rate Advances comprising part of the same Competitive Bid Borrowing, an interest rate per annum equal to the rate per annum obtained by dividing (a) the average (rounded upward to the nearest whole multiple of 1/16 of 1% per annum, if such average is not such a multiple) of the rate per annum at which deposits in Dollars are offered to the principal office of each of the Reference Banks in London, England by prime banks in the London interbank market at 11:00 A.M. (London time) two Business Days before the first day of such Interest Period in an amount substantially equal to the amount that would be the Reference Banks' respective ratable shares of such Borrowing if such Borrowing were to be a Revolving Credit Borrowing to be outstanding during such Interest Period and for a period equal to such Interest Period by (b) a percentage equal to 100% minus the Eurodollar Rate Reserve Percentage for such Interest Period. The LIBO Rate for any Interest Period for each LIBO Rate Advance comprising part of the same Competitive Bid Borrowing shall be determined by the Administrative Agent on the basis of applicable rates furnished to and received by the Administrative Agent from the Reference Banks two Business Days before the first day of such Interest Period, subject, however, to the provisions of Section 2.08.

"LIBO Rate Advances" has the meaning specified in Section 2.03(a)(i).

"Lien" means any lien, security interest or other charge or encumbrance of any kind, including, without limitation, the lien or retained security title of a conditional vendor and any easement, right of way or other encumbrance on title to real property and, in the case of securities, any purchase option, call or similar right of a third party with respect to such securities.

"Loan Documents" means this Agreement, the Notes, the Guaranty and the Indemnity Agreement.

"Loan Parties" means, collectively, the Borrower and each of the Guarantors.

"Margin Stock" means all "margin stock" within the meaning of Regulation U.

"Material Adverse Change" means any material adverse change in the business, assets, operations, prospects or financial condition of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. For purposes hereof, it is understood and agreed that the occurrence of a labor dispute shall not in and of itself constitute a Material Adverse Change.

"Material Adverse Effect" means (a) a material adverse effect on the business, assets, operations, prospects or financial condition of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (b) material impairment of the ability of the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary to perform any of its obligations under any Loan Document to which it is or is to be a party or (c) material impairment of the rights of or benefits available to the Lenders under any of the Loan Documents. For purposes hereof, it is understood and

11

agreed that the occurrence of a labor dispute shall not in and of itself constitute a Material Adverse Effect.

"Material Subsidiary" means any Subsidiary of the Borrower having (a) 5% of the Consolidated Net Tangible Assets or (b) 5% of the total revenues appearing on the most recently prepared Consolidated income statements of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries as of the end of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter of the Borrower.

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc.

"Non-Recourse Debt" means, with respect to any Person, Debt for which such Person neither (a) provides credit support nor (b) is directly or indirectly liable.

"Note" means a Revolving Credit Note or a Competitive Bid Note, as the context may require.

"Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing" has the meaning specified in Section 2.03(a).

- "Notice of Revolving Credit Borrowing" has the meaning specified in Section 2.02(a).
- " $\underline{OECD}"\ means\ the\ Organization\ for\ Economic\ Cooperation\ and\ Development\ and\ any\ successor.$
- "Overseas Partners" means Overseas Partners Ltd., a Bermuda corporation.
- "PBGC" means the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation and any successor.
- "Permitted Person" means the UPS Managers Stock Trust, the UPS Stock Trust, the Annie E. Casey Foundation, any retiree or present or former employee of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or their respective present or former spouse, relatives (by consanguinity or law), estate or heirs (or their respective spouse's estate or heirs) or any other Person that has Beneficial Ownership of the common stock of the Borrower on the date of this Agreement, or any Person that is created for the benefit of any of the foregoing after the date of this Agreement.
- "Person" means an individual, partnership, corporation (including a business trust), joint stock company, trust, unincorporated association, joint venture, limited liability company or other entity, or a government or any political subdivision or agency thereof.
- "Plan" means any pension plan subject to the provisions of Title IV of ERISA or Section 412 of the Internal Re venue Code that is maintained for employees of the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate.
 - "Principal Property" has the meaning specified in the Debenture Indenture.

12

"Public Debt Rating" means, as of any date, the higher rating that has been most recently announced by either S&P or Moody's, as the case may be, for any class of non-credit enhanced long-term senior unsecured debt issued by the Borrower. For purposes of the foregoing, (a) if only one of S&P and Moody's shall have in effect a Public Debt Rating, the Applicable Margin and the Applicable Fee Percentage shall be determined by reference to the available rating; (b) if neither S&P nor Moody's shall have in effect a Public Debt Rating, the Applicable Margin and the Applicable Fee Percentage will be set in accordance with Level 3 under the definition of "Applicable Margin" or "Applicable Fee Percentage", as the case may be; (c) if the ratings established by S&P and Moody's shall fall within different levels, the Applicable Margin and the Applicable Fee Percentage shall be based upon the higher rating; provided, however, that if the lower of such ratings is more than one level below the level of the higher of such ratings, then the Applicable Margin and the Applicable Fee Percentage shall be based upon the level immediately above the level of the lower of such ratings; (d) if any rating established by S&P or Moody's shall be changed, such change shall be effective as of the date on which such change is first announced publicly by the rating agency making such change; and (e) if S&P or Moody's shall change the basis on which ratings are established, each reference to the Public Debt Rating announced by S&P or Moody's, as the case may be, shall refer to the then equivalent rating by S&P or Moody's, as the case may be, such selection shall be deemed to be S&P or Moody's, as the case may be, for all purposes hereof.

"Reference Banks" means Citibank, B of A and Bank One, or if any such Lender assigns all of its Commitment, the Advances owing to it and the Note or Notes held by it pursuant to Section 8.07(a), such other Lender as may be designated by the Required Lenders and approved by the Borrower (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld).

"Register" has the meaning specified in Section 8.07(g).

"Regulation A", "Regulation D", "Regulation T", "Regulation U" or "Regulation X" means Regulation A, Regulation D, Regulation T, Regulation U or Regulation X, respectively, of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, in each case as in effect from time to time, and all official rulings and interpretations thereunder or thereof, respectively.

"Replacement Lender" has the meaning specified in Section 2.16(a).

"Reportable Event" means any reportable event as defined in Section 4043(b) of ERISA or the regulations issued thereunder with respect to a Plan (other than a Plan maintained by an ERISA Affiliate that is considered an ERISA Affiliate only pursuant to subsection (m) or (o) of Section 414 of the Internal Revenue Code).

"Required Lenders" means at any time Lenders owed greater than 50% of the then aggregate unpaid principal amount of the Revolving Credit Advances owing to

13

Lenders, or, if no such principal amount is then outstanding, Lenders having greater than 50% of the Commitments.

"Restricted Subsidiary" has the meaning specified in the Debenture Indenture.

"Revolving Credit Advance" means an advance by a Lender to the Borrower as part of a Revolving Credit Borrowing and refers to a Base Rate Advance or a Eurodollar Rate Advance (each of which shall be a "Type" of Revolving Credit Advance), as the context may require.

"Revolving Credit Borrowing" means a borrowing consisting of simultaneous Revolving Credit Advances of the same Type made by each of the Lenders pursuant to Section 2.01.

"Revolving Credit Note" means a promissory note of the Borrower payable to the order of any Lender, in substantially the form of Exhibit A-1 hereto, evidencing the aggregate indebtedness of the Borrower to such Lender resulting from the Revolving Credit Advances made by such Lender.

- "Sale and Leaseback Transaction" has the meaning specified in the Debenture Indenture.
- "Secured Indebtedness" has the meaning specified in the Debenture Indenture.
- "S&P" means Standard & Poor's Rating Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc.

"Subsidiary" of any Person means any corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company, trust or estate of which (or in which) more than 50% of (a) the Voting Power to elect a majority of the board of directors of such corporation (irrespective of whether at the time capital stock of any other class or classes of such corporation shall or might have voting power upon the occurrence of any contingency), (b) the interest in the capital or profits of such partnership or joint venture or (c) the beneficial interest in such trust or estate is at the time owned or controlled by such Person, by such Person and one or more of its other Subsidiaries or by one

or more of such Person's other Subsidiaries; provided, however, that Overseas Partners shall not be deemed to be a Subsidiary of the Borrower.

"Termination Date" means the earlier of (a) April 22, 2004 or, if extended pursuant to Section 2.16(a), the date that is 364 days after the Termination Date then in effect, and (b) the date of termination in whole of the Commitments pursuant to Section 2.05 or 6.01.

"Type" has the meaning specified in the definition of "Revolving Credit Advance".

"UPSCO" means United Parcel Service Co., a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned Subsidiary of the Borrower.

14

"UPSNY" means United Parcel Service, Inc., a New York corporation and a wholly owned Subsidiary of the Borrower.

"UPSO" means United Parcel Service, Inc., an Ohio corporation and a wholly owned Subsidiary of the Borrower.

"<u>Voting Power</u>" means, with respect to any Voting Stock of any Person at any time, the number of votes entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of such Person that are attributable to such Voting Stock at such time divided by the number of votes entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of such Person that are attributable to all shares of capital stock of such Person (including such Voting Stock) at such time.

"Voting Stock" means capital stock issued by a corporation, or equivalent interests in any other Person, the holders of which are ordinarily, in the absence of contingencies, entitled to vote for the election of directors (or persons performing similar functions) of such Person, even if the right so to vote has been suspended by the happening of such a contingency.

SECTION 1.02. Computation of Time Periods. In this Agreement in the computation of periods of time from a specified date to a later specified date, the word "from" means "from and including" and the words "to" and "until" each means "to but excluding".

SECTION 1.03. Accounting Terms. All accounting terms not specifically defined herein shall be construed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistent with those applied in the preparation of the financial statements referred to in Section 4.01(e) ("GAAP").

ARTICLE II

AMOUNTS AND TERMS OF THE ADVANCES

SECTION 2.01. The Revolving Credit Advances Each Lender severally agrees, on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, to make Revolving Credit Advances to the Borrower from time to time on any Business Day during the period from the Effective Date until the Termination Date in an aggregate amount not to exceed at any time outstanding the amount set forth opposite such Lender's name on Schedule I hereto or, if such Lender has entered into any Assignment and Acceptance, set forth for such Lender in the Register maintained by the Administrative Agent pursuant to Section 8.07(c), as such amount may be reduced pursuant to Section 2.05 (such Lender's "Commitment"), provided that the aggregate amount of the Commitments of the Lenders shall be deemed used from time to time to the extent of the aggregate amount of the Commitments being a "Competitive Bid Advances then outstanding and such deemed use of the aggregate amount of the Commitments shall be allocated among the Lenders ratably according to their respective Commitments (such deemed use of the aggregate amount of the Commitments being a "Competitive Bid Reduction"). Each Revolving Credit Borrowing shall be in an aggregate amount of \$25,000,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000,000 in excess thereof (or, if less, an amount equal to the remaining aggregate amount of unused Commitments or equal to the

15

amount by which the aggregate amount of a proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing requested by the Borrower exceeds the aggregate amount of Competitive Bid Advances offered to be made by the Lenders and accepted by the Borrower in respect of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, if such Competitive Bid Borrowing is made on the same date as such Revolving Credit Borrowing) and shall consist of Revolving Credit Advances of the same Type made on the same day by the Lenders ratably according to their respective Commitments. Within the limits of each Lender's Commitment, the Borrower may borrow under this Section 2.01, prepay pursuant to Section 2.10 and, unless the Borrower has delivered a request pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.16(b), reborrow under this Section 2.01.

SECTION 2.02. Making the Revolving Credit Advances (a) Each Revolving Credit Borrowing shall be made on notice, given not later than 11:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the third Business Day prior to the date of the proposed Revolving Credit Borrowing in the case of a Revolving Credit Borrowing consisting of Eurodollar Rate Advances, or on the date of the proposed Revolving Credit Borrowing in the case of a Revolving Credit Borrowing on Base Rate Advances, by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent, which shall give to each Lender prompt notice thereof by telecopier or telex. Each such notice of a Revolving Credit Borrowing (a "Notice of Revolving Credit Borrowing") shall be by telephone, telecopier or telex, confirmed promptly in writing, in substantially the form of Exhibit B-1 hereto, specifying therein the requested (i) date of such Revolving Credit Borrowing, (ii) Type of Advances comprising such Revolving Credit Borrowing, (iii) aggregate amount of such Revolving Credit Borrowing, and (iv) in the case of a Revolving Credit Borrowing of Eurodollar Rate Advances, initial Interest Period for each such Revolving Credit Advance. Each Lender shall, before 11:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the date of such Revolving Credit Borrowing, make available for the account of its Applicable Lending Office to the Administrative Agent at the Administrative Agent's Account, in same day funds, such Lender's ratable portion of such Revolving Credit Borrowing. After the Administrative Agent's receipt of such funds and upon fulfillment of the applicable conditions set forth in Article III, the Administrative Agent will make such funds available to the Borrower in same day funds at the Borrower's Account.

- (b) Anything in subsection (a) of this Section 2.02 to the contrary notwithstanding, the Borrower may not select Eurodollar Rate Advances for any Revolving Credit Borrowing if the aggregate amount of such Revolving Credit Borrowing is less than \$25,000,000 or if the obligation of the Lenders to make Eurodollar Rate Advances shall then be suspended pursuant to Section 2.08 or 2.12.
- (c) Each Notice of Revolving Credit Borrowing shall be irrevocable and binding on the Borrower. In the case of any Revolving Credit Borrowing that the related Notice of Revolving Credit Borrowing specifies is to be comprised of Eurodollar Rate Advances, the Borrower shall indemnify each Lender against any loss, cost or expense incurred by such Lender as a result of any failure by the Borrower to fulfill on or before the date specified in such Notice of Revolving Credit Borrowing for such Revolving Credit Borrowing the applicable conditions set forth in Article III, including, without limitation, any loss (including loss of anticipated profits), cost or expense incurred by reason of the liquidation or reemployment of deposits or other funds acquired by such Lender to fund the Revolving Credit Advance to be made by such

- Unless the Administrative Agent shall have received notice from a Lender prior to the date of any Revolving Credit Borrowing that such Lender will not make available to the Administrative Agent such Lender's ratable portion of such Revolving Credit Borrowing, the Administrative Agent may assume that such Lender has made such portion available to the Administrative Agent on the date of such Revolving Credit Borrowing in accordance with subsection (a) of this Section 2.02 and the Administrative Agent may, in reliance upon such assumption, make available to the Borrower on such date a corresponding amount. If and to the extent that such Lender shall not have so made such ratable portion available to the Administrative Agent, such Lender and the Borrower severally agree to repay to the Administrative Agent forthwith on demand such corresponding amount together with interest thereon, for each day from the date such amount is made available to the Borrower until the date such amount is repaid to the Administrative Agent, at (i) in the case of the Borrower, the interest rate applicable at the time to Revolving Credit Advances comprising such Revolving Credit Borrowing and (ii) in the case of such Lender, the Federal Funds Rate. If such Lender shall repay to the Administrative Agent such corresponding amount, such amount so repaid shall constitute such Lender's Revolving Credit Advance as part of such Revolving Credit Borrowing for purposes of this Agreement.
- (e) The failure of any Lender to make the Revolving Credit Advance to be made by it as part of any Revolving Credit Borrowing shall not relieve any other Lender of its obligation, if any, hereunder to make its Revolving Credit Advance on the date of such Revolving Credit Borrowing, but no Lender shall be responsible for the failure of any other Lender to make the Revolving Credit Advance to be made by such other Lender on the date of any Revolving Credit Borrowing.
- SECTION 2.03. The Competitive Bid Advances (a) Each Lender severally agrees that the Borrower may make Competitive Bid Borrowings under this Section 2.03 from time to time on any Business Day during the period from the date hereof until the date occurring prior to the then scheduled Termination Date in the manner set forth below; *provided* that, following the making of each Competitive Bid Advance, the aggregate amount of the Advances then outstanding shall not exceed the aggregate amount of the Commitments of the Lenders (computed without regard to any Competitive Bid Reduction).
 - (i) The Borrower may request a Competitive Bid Borrowing under this Section 2.03 by delivering to the Administrative Agent, by telecopier or telex, confirmed promptly in writing, a notice of a Competitive Bid Borrowing (a "Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing"), in substantially the form of Exhibit B-2 hereto, specifying therein (A) the date of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, (B) the aggregate amount of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, (C) in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of LIBO Rate Advances, the Interest Period for such LIBO Rate Advances, (D) the maturity date for repayment of each Competitive Bid Advance to be made as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing (which maturity date may not be earlier than the date occurring thirty days after the date of such Competitive Bid Borrowing or later than the Termination Date and, in the case of any LIBO Rate Advance to be made as part of such

17

Competitive Bid Borrowing, shall be the last day of the interest period for such LIBO Rate Advance), (E) the interest payment date or dates relating thereto, and (F) any other terms to be applicable to such Competitive Bid Borrowing, not later than 10:00 A.M. (New York City time) (1) at least one Business Day prior to the date of the proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, if the Borrower shall specify in the Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing that the rates of interest to be offered by the Lenders shall be fixed rates per annum (the Advances comprising any such Competitive Bid Borrowing being referred to herein as "Fixed Rate Advances") and (2) at least four Business Days prior to the date of the proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, if the Borrower shall instead specify in the Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing that the rates of interest to be offered by the Lenders are to be based on the LIBO Rate (the Advances comprising such Competitive Bid Borrowing referred to herein as "LIBO Rate Advances"). The Administrative Agent shall in turn promptly notify each Lender of each request for a Competitive Bid Borrowing received by it from the Borrower by sending such Lender a copy of the related Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing.

- (ii) Each Lender may, if in its sole discretion it elects to do so, irrevocably offer to make one or more Competitive Bid Advances to the Borrower as part of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing at a rate or rates of interest (including default rates not to exceed 1% per annum above the rate per annum required to be paid on such Competitive Bid Advance) specified by such Lender in its sole discretion, by notifying the Administrative Agent (which shall give prompt notice thereof to the Borrower), before 10:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the date of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of Fixed Rate Advances and three Business Days before the date of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of LIBO Rate Advances, of the minimum amount and maximum amount of each Competitive Bid Advance which such Lender would be willing to make as part of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing (which amounts may, subject to the proviso to the first sentence of this Section 2.03(a), exceed such Lender's Commitment, if any), the rate or rates of interest therefor and such Lender's Applicable Lending Office with respect to such Competitive Bid Advance; provided that if the Administrative Agent in its capacity as a Lender shall, in its sole discretion, elect to make any such offer, it shall notify the Borrower of such offer before 9:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the date on which notice of such election is to be given to the Administrative Agent by the other Lenders. If any Lender shall elect not to make such an offer, such Lender shall so notify the Administrative Agent, before 10:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the date on which notice of such election is to be given to the Administrative Agent by the other Lenders, and such Lender shall not cause such Lender to be obligated to make any Competitive Bid Advance as part of such Provided that the failure by any Lender to give such notice shall not cause such Lender to
- (iii) The Borrower shall, in turn, before 11:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the date of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of Fixed Rate Advances and before 11:30 A.M. (New York City

18

time) three Business Days before the date of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of LIBO Rate Advances, either:

- (A) cancel such Competitive Bid Borrowing by giving the Administrative Agent notice to that effect, or
- (B) accept one or more of the offers made by any Lender or Lenders pursuant to subsection (a)(ii) of this Section 2.03, in its sole discretion, by giving notice to the Administrative Agent of the amount of each Competitive Bid Advance (which amount shall be equal to or greater than the minimum amount, and equal to or less than the maximum amount, notified to the Borrower by the Administrative Agent on behalf of such Lender for such Competitive Bid Advance pursuant to subsection (a)(ii) of this Section 2.03) to be made by each Lender as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, and reject any remaining offers made by Lenders pursuant to subsection (a)(ii) of this Section 2.03 by giving the Administrative Agent notice to that effect. The Borrower shall accept the offers made by any Lender or Lenders to make Competitive Bid Advances in order of the lowest to the highest rates of interest offered by such Lenders; provided, however, that if the Borrower has a reasonable basis to believe that acceptance of the offer of any such Lender has a reasonable likelihood of subjecting the Borrower to additional costs pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.11, 2.12 or 2.14, the Borrower may reject the offer of such Lender and accept the offer of the Lender offering the next lowest rate of interest. Subject to the next preceding sentence, if two or more Lenders have offered the same interest rate, the amount to be borrowed at such interest rate will be allocated among such Lenders in proportion to the amount that each such Lender offered at such interest rate.
- (iv) If the Borrower notifies the Administrative Agent that such Competitive Bid Borrowing is cancelled pursuant to subsection (a)(iii)(A) of this Section 2.03, the Administrative Agent s hall give prompt notice thereof to the Lenders and such Competitive Bid Borrowing shall not be made.
- (v) If the Borrower accepts one or more of the offers made by any Lender or Lenders pursuant to subsection (a)(iii)(B) of this Section 2.03, the Administrative Agent shall in turn promptly notify (A) each Lender that has made an offer as described in subsection (a)(ii) of this Section 2.03, of the date and aggregate amount of such Competitive Bid Borrowing and whether or not any offer or offers made by such Lender pursuant to subsection (a)(ii) of this Section 2.03

have been accepted by the Borrower, (B) each Lender that is to make a Competitive Bid Advance as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, of the amount of each Competitive Bid Advance to be made by such Lender as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, and (C) each Lender that is to make a Competitive Bid Advance as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, upon receipt, that the Administrative Agent has received forms of documents appearing to fulfill the applicable conditions set forth in Article III. Each Lender that is to make a Competitive Bid Advance as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing shall, before 12:00 NOON (New York City time) on the date of such Competitive Bid Borrowing specified in the

19

notice received from the Administrative Agent pursuant to clause (A) of the next preceding sentence or at such later date when such Lender shall have received notice from the Administrative Agent pursuant to clause (C) of the next preceding sentence, make available for the account of its Applicable Lending Office to the Administrative Agent at the Administrative Agent's Account, in same day funds, such Lender's portion of such Competitive Bid Borrowing. Upon fulfillment of the applicable conditions set forth in Article III and after receipt by the Administrative Agent of such funds, the Administrative Agent will make such funds available to the Borrower in same day funds at the Borrower's Account. Promptly after each Competitive Bid Borrowing the Administrative Agent will notify each Lender of the amount of the Competitive Bid Borrowing, the consequent Competitive Bid Reduction and the dates upon which such Competitive Bid Reduction commenced and will terminate.

- (b) Each Competitive Bid Borrowing shall be in an aggregate amount of \$25,000,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000,000 in excess thereof and, following the making of each Competitive Bid Borrowing, the Borrower shall be in compliance with the limitation set forth in the proviso to the first sentence of subsection (a) of this Section 2.03.
- (c) Within the limits and on the conditions set forth in this Section 2.03, the Borrower may from time to time borrow under this Section 2.03, repay pursuant to subsection (d) of this Section 2.03, and, unless the Borrower has delivered a request pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.16(b), reborrow under this Section 2.03, *provided* that a Competitive Bid Borrowing shall not be made within three Business Days of the date of any other Competitive Bid Borrowing.
- (d) The Borrower shall repay to the Administrative Agent for the account of each Lender that has made a Competitive Bid Advance, on the maturity date of each Competitive Bid Advance (such maturity date being that specified by the Borrower for repayment of such Competitive Bid Advance in the related Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing delivered pursuant to subsection (a)(i) of this Section 2.03 and provided in the Competitive Bid Note evidencing such Competitive Bid Advance), the then unpaid principal amount of such Competitive Bid Advance. The Borrower may prepay any principal amount of any Competitive Bid Advance, subject to the provisions of Sections 2.10 and 8.04(c), with the consent of the respective Lender of such Competitive Bid Advance.
- (e) The Borrower shall pay interest on the unpaid principal amount of each Competitive Bid Advance from the date of such Competitive Bid Advance to the date the principal amount of such Competitive Bid Advance is repaid in full, at the rate of interest for such Competitive Bid Advance specified by the Lender making such Competitive Bid Advance in its notice with respect thereto delivered pursuant to subsection (a)(ii) of this Section 2.03, payable on the interest payment date or dates specified by the Borrower for such Competitive Bid Advance in the related Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing delivered pursuant to subsection (a)(i) of this Section 2.03, as provided in the Competitive Bid Note evidencing such Competitive Bid Advance. Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, the Borrower shall pay interest on the amount of unpaid principal of and interest on each Competitive Bid Advance owing to a Lender, payable in arrears on the date or dates interest is

20

payable thereon, at a rate per annum equal to the default rate specified by the appropriate Lender in respect of such Competitive Bid Advance.

(f) The indebtedness of the Borrower resulting from each Competitive Bid Advance made to the Borrower as part of a Competitive Bid Borrowing shall be evidenced by a separate Competitive Bid Note of the Borrower payable to the order of the Lender making such Competitive Bid Advance. Upon repayment in full of each Competitive Bid Advance in accordance with the provisions of subsection (d) of this Section 2.03 and the terms of the Competitive Bid Note evidencing such Competitive Bid Advance, the Lender holding such Competitive Bid Note shall cancel such Note and return such Note to the Borrower.

SECTION 2.04. Fees. (a) Facility Fee. The Borrower agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of each Lender (other than the Designated Bidders) a facility fee (i) from the Effective Date in the case of each Initial Lender and from the effective date specified in the Assignment and Acceptance pursuant to which it became a Lender in the case of each other Lender until the Termination Date then in effect at a rate per annum equal to 0.03%, on the aggregate amount of such Lender's Commitment, or (ii) if the Borrower has extended the Final Maturity Date pursuant to Section 2.16(b), from the Termination Date then in effect until such Final Maturity Date at a rate per annum equal to the Applicable Fee Percentage in effect from time to time, on the aggregate amount of such Lender's outstanding Advances, in each case payable in arrears quarterly on the last day of each March, June, September and December, commencing June 30, 2003, and on the Termination Date or such Final Maturity Date.

(b) <u>Agents' Fees</u>. The Borrower shall pay to each Agent for its own account such fees as may from time to time be agreed between the Borrower and such Agent.

SECTION 2.05. <u>Termination or Reduction of the Commitments</u>. The Borrower shall have the right, upon at least three Business Days' notice to the Administrative Agent, to terminate in whole or reduce ratably in part the unused portions of the respective Commitments of the Lenders, *provided* that each partial reduction shall be in the aggregate amount of \$25,000,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000,000 in excess thereof and *provided further* that the aggregate amount of the Commitments of the Lenders shall not be reduced to an amount that is less than the aggregate principal amount of the Competitive Bid Advances then outstanding.

SECTION 2.06. Repayment of Revolving Credit Advances The Borrower shall repay to the Administrative Agent for the ratable account of the Lenders on the Final Maturity Date the aggregate principal amount of the Revolving Credit Advances then outstanding.

SECTION 2.07. <u>Interest on Revolving Credit Advances</u> (a) <u>Scheduled Interest</u>. The Borrower shall pay interest on the unpaid principal amount of each Revolving Credit Advance owing to each Lender from the date of such Revolving Credit Advance until such principal amount shall be paid in full, at the following rates per annum:

(i) <u>Base Rate Advances.</u> During such periods as such Revolving Credit Advance is a Base Rate Advance, a rate per annum equal at all times to the sum of (A) the Base Rate in effect from time to time *plus* (B) the Applicable Margin in effect from

21

time to time, payable in arrears quarterly on the last day of each March, June, September and December during such periods and on the date such Base Rate Advance shall be Converted or paid in full.

(ii) Eurodollar Rate Advances. During such periods as such Revolving Credit Advance is a Eurodollar Rate Advance, a rate per annum equal at all

times during each Interest Period for such Revolving Credit Advance to the sum of (A) the Eurodollar Rate for such Interest Period for such Revolving Credit Advance plus (B) the Applicable Margin in effect from time to time, payable in arrears on the last day of such Interest Period and, if such Interest Period has a duration of more than three months, on each day that occurs during such Interest Period every three months from the first day of such Interest Period and on the date such Eurodollar Rate Advance shall be Converted or paid in full.

- (b) <u>Default Interest</u>. Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, the Borrower shall pay interest on (i) the unpaid principal amount of each Revolving Credit Advance owing to each Lender, payable in arrears on the dates referred to in subsection (a)(i) or (a)(ii) of this Section 2.07, at a rate per annum equal at all times to 1% per annum above the rate per annum required to be paid on such Revolving Credit Advance pursuant to subsection (a)(i) or (a)(ii) of this Section 2.07 and (ii) the amount of any interest, fee or other amount payable hereunder that is not paid when due, from the date such amount shall be due until such amount shall be paid in full, payable in arrears on the date such amount shall be paid in full and on demand, at a rate per annum equal at all times to 1% per annum above the rate per annum required to be paid on Base Rate Advances pursuant to subsection (a)(i) of this Section 2.07.
- SECTION 2.08. <u>Interest Rate Determination</u>. (a) Each Reference Bank agrees to furnish to the Administrative Agent timely information for the purpose of determining each Eurodollar Rate and each LIBO Rate. If any one or more of the Reference Banks shall not furnish such timely information to the Administrative Agent for the purpose of determining any such interest rate, the Administrative Agent shall determine such interest rate on the basis of timely information furnished by the remaining Reference Banks, subject to the provisions of subsection (e) of this Section 2.08. The Administrative Agent shall give prompt notice to the Borrower and the Lenders of the applicable interest rate determined by the Administrative Agent for purposes of Section 2.07(a)(i) or 2.07(a)(ii), and the rate, if any, furnished by each Reference Bank for the purpose of determining the interest rate under Section 2.07(a)(ii).
- (b) If the Borrower shall fail to select the duration of any Interest Period for any Eurodollar Rate Advances in accordance with the provisions contained in the definition of "Interest Period" in Section 1.01, the Administrative Agent will forthwith so notify the Borrower and the Lenders and such Advances will automatically, on the last day of the then existing Interest Period therefor, Convert into Base Rate Advances.
- (c) On the date on which the aggregate unpaid principal amount of Eurodollar Rate Advances comprising any Revolving Credit Borrowing shall be reduced, by payment or prepayment or otherwise, to less than \$25,000,000, such Advances shall automatically Convert into Base Rate Advances.

22

- (d) Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of any Event of Default, (i) each Eurodollar Rate Advance will automatically, on the last day of the then existing Interest Period therefor, Convert into a Base Rate Advance and (ii) the obligations of the Lenders to make, or to Convert Advances into, Eurodollar Rate Advances shall be suspended.
- (e) If fewer than two Reference Banks furnish timely information to the Administrative Agent for determining the Eurodollar Rate or LIBO Rate for any Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances, as the case may be,
 - (i) the Administrative Agent shall forthwith notify the Borrower and the Lenders that the interest rate cannot be determined for such Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances, as the case may be,
 - (ii) with respect to Eurodollar Rate Advances, each such Advance will automatically, on the last day of the then existing Interest Period therefor, Convert into a Base Rate Advance (or if such Advance is then a Base Rate Advance, will continue as a Base Rate Advance), and
 - (iii) the obligations of the Lenders to make Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances, or to Convert Revolving Credit Advances into Eurodollar Rate Advances, shall be suspended until the Administrative Agent shall notify the Borrower and the Lenders that the circumstances causing such suspension no longer exist.

SECTION 2.09. Optional Conversion of Revolving Credit Advances

The Borrower may on any Business Day, upon notice given to the Administrative

Agent not later than 11:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the third Business Day prior to the date of the proposed Conversion and subject to the provisions of Sections 2.08,
2.12 and 8.04(c), Convert Revolving Credit Advances of one Type comprising the same Borrowing into Revolving Credit Advances of the other Type; provided, however,
that any Conversion of Base Rate Advances into Eurodollar Rate Advances shall be in an amount not less than the minimum amount specified in Section 2.02(b). Each such
notice of a Conversion shall, within the restrictions specified above, specify (a) the date of such Conversion, (b) the Revolving Credit Advances to be Converted, and (c) if
such Conversion is into Eurodollar Rate Advances, the duration of the initial Interest Period for each such Advance. Each notice of Conversion shall be irrevocable and
binding on the Borrower.

SECTION 2.10. Optional Prepayments of Advances The Borrower may, upon at least two Business Days' notice in the case of Eurodollar Rate Advances and notice on the same Business Day in the case of Base Rate Advances to the Administrative Agent stating the proposed date and aggregate principal amount of the prepayment, and if such notice is given the Borrower shall, prepay the outstanding principal amount of such Advances comprising part of the same Borrowing in whole or ratably in part, together with accrued interest to the date of such prepayment on the principal amount prepaid; provided, however, that (a) each partial prepayment shall be in an aggregate principal amount of \$10,000,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000,000 in excess thereof and (b) in the event of any such prepayment of a Eurodollar Rate Advance, the Borrower shall be obligated to reimburse the Lenders in respect thereof pursuant to Section 8.04(c).

23

- SECTION 2.11. Increased Costs. (a) If, due to either (i) the introduction of or any change (other than any change by way of imposition or increase of reserve requirements included in the Eurodollar Rate Reserve Percentage) in or in the interpretation of any law or regulation or (ii) the compliance with any guideline or request from any central bank or other Governmental Authority (whether or not having the force of law), there shall be any increase in the cost as measured from the date hereof to any Lender of agreeing to make or making, funding or maintaining Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances, then the Borrower shall from time to time, upon demand by such Lender (with a copy of such demand to the Administrative Agent), promptly pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of such Lender additional amounts sufficient to compensate such Lender for such increased cost. A certificate as to the amount of such increased cost, submitted to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent by such Lender, shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error.
- (b) If any Lender (other than the Designated Bidders) determines that compliance with any law or regulation or any guideline or request from any central bank or other Governmental Authority (whether or not having the force of law) affects or would affect the amount of capital required or expected to be maintained by such Lender or any corporation controlling such Lender and that the amount of such capital is increased by or based upon the existence of such Lender's commitment to lend hereunder and other commitments of this type, then, upon demand by such Lender (with a copy of such demand to the Administrative Agent), the Borrower shall promptly pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of such Lender, from time to time as specified by such Lender, additional amounts sufficient to compensate such Lender or such corporation in the light of such circumstances, to the extent that such Lender reasonably determines such increase in capital to be allocable to the existence of such Lender's commitment to lend hereunder. A certificate as to such amounts submitted to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent by such Lender shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error.

SECTION 2.12. <u>Illegality</u>. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if any Lender shall notify the Administrative Agent that the introduction of or any change in or in the interpretation of any law or regulation by any governmental authority charged with such interpretation makes it unlawful, or any

central bank or other Governmental Authority asserts that it is unlawful, for any Lender or its Eurodollar Lending Office to perform its obligations hereunder to make Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances or to fund or maintain Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances hereunder, (a) each Eurodollar Rate Advance or LIBO Rate Advance, as the case may be, will automatically, upon such demand, Convert into a Base Rate Advance or an Advance that bears interest at the rate set forth in Section 2.07(a)(i), as the case may be, and (b) the obligation of the Lenders to make Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances, or to Convert Revolving Credit Advances into Eurodollar Rate Advances, shall be suspended until the Administrative Agent shall notify the Borrower and the Lenders that the circumstances causing such suspension no longer exist.

SECTION 2.13. <u>Payments and Computations</u>. (a) The Borrower shall make each payment hereunder and under the Notes not later than 1:00 P.M. (New York City time) on the day when due, without setoff or counterclaim, in Dollars to the Administrative Agent at the Administrative Agent's Account in same day funds. The Administrative Agent will promptly thereafter cause to be distributed like funds relating to the payment of principal or interest,

24

facility fees or utilization fees ratably (other than amounts payable pursuant to Section 2.03, 2.11, 2.14 or 8.04(c)) to the Lenders for the account of their respective Applicable Lending Offices, and like funds relating to the payment of any other amount payable to any Lender to such Lender for the account of its Applicable Lending Office, in each case to be applied in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Upon its acceptance of an Assignment and Acceptance and recording of the information contained therein in the Register pursuant to Section 8.07(d), from and after the effective date specified in such Assignment and Acceptance, the Administrative Agent shall make all payments hereunder and under the Notes in respect of the interest assigned thereby to the Lender assignee thereunder, and the parties to such Assignment and Acceptance shall make all appropriate adjustments in such payments for periods prior to such effective date directly between themselves.

- (b) The Borrower hereby authorizes the Administrative Agent, if and to the extent payment owed to any Lender is not made when due hereunder or under the Note held by such Lender, to charge from time to time against any or all of the Borrower's accounts with the Administrative Agent any amount so due.
- (c) All computations of interest based on the Base Rate shall be made by the Administrative Agent on the basis of a year of 365 or 366 days, as the case may be, and all computations of interest based on the Eurodollar Rate or the Federal Funds Rate and of facility fees shall be made by the Administrative Agent on the basis of a year of 360 days, in each case for the actual number of days (including the first day but excluding the last day) occurring in the period for which such interest or facility fees are payable. Each determination by the Administrative Agent of an interest rate hereunder shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error.
- (d) Whenever any payment hereunder or under the Notes shall be stated to be due on a day other than a Business Day, such payment shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day, and such extension of time shall in such case be included in the computation of payment of interest or facility fees, as the case may be; provided, however, that, if such extension would cause payment of interest on or principal of Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances to be made in the next following calendar month, such payment shall be made on the next preceding Business Day.
- (e) Unless the Administrative Agent shall have received notice from the Borrower prior to the date on which any payment is due to the Lenders hereunder that the Borrower will not make such payment in full, the Administrative Agent may assume that the Borrower has made such payment in full to the Administrative Agent on such date and the Administrative Agent may, in reliance upon such assumption, cause to be distributed to each Lender on such due date an amount equal to the amount then due such Lender. If and to the extent the Borrower shall not have so made such payment in full to the Administrative Agent, each Lender shall repay to the Administrative Agent forthwith on demand such amount distributed to such Lender together with interest thereon, for each day from the date such amount is distributed to such Lender until the date such Lender repays such amount to the Administrative Agent, at the Federal Funds Rate.

25

SECTION 2.14. <u>Taxes</u>. (a) Any and all payments by the Borrower hereunder or under the Notes shall be made, in accordance with Section 2.13, free and clear of and without deduction for any and all present or future taxes, levies, imposts, deductions, charges or withholdings, and all liabilities with respect thereto, *excluding*, in the case of each Lender and each Agent, taxes imposed on its net income, and franchise taxes measured by income imposed on its net income, and franchise taxes measured by income imposed on its net income, and franchise taxes measured by income imposed on it, by the jurisdiction of such Lender's Applicable Lending Office or any political subdivision thereof (all such non-excluded taxes, levies, imposts, deductions, charges, withholdings and liabilities in respect of payments hereunder or under the Notes being hereinafter referred to as "<u>Taxes</u>"). If the Borrower shall be required by law to deduct any Taxes from or in respect of any sum payable hereunder or under any Note to any Lender or any Agent (i) the sum payable shall be increased as may be necessary so that after making all required deductions (including deductions applicable to additional sums payable under this Section 2.14) such Lender or such Agent (as the case may be) receives an amount equal to the sum it would have received had no such deductions been made, (ii) the Borrower shall make such deductions and (iii) the Borrower shall pay the full amount deducted to the relevant taxation authority or other authority in accordance with applicable law.

- (b) In addition, the Borrower agrees to pay any present or future stamp or documentary taxes or any other excise or property taxes, charges or similar levies that arise from any payment made hereunder or under the Notes or from the execution, delivery or registration of, or otherwise with respect to, this Agreement or the Notes hereinafter referred to as "Other Taxes").
- (c) The Borrower shall indemnify each Lender and each Agent for the full amount of Taxes or Other Taxes (including, without limitation, any Taxes or Other Taxes imposed by any jurisdiction on amounts payable under this Section 2.14) paid by such Lender or such Agent or any of its Affiliates (as the case may be) and any liability (including penalties, interest and expenses) arising therefrom or with respect thereto, whether or not such Taxes or Other Taxes were correctly or legally asserted. This indemnification shall be made within 30 days from the date such Lender, such Agent or such Affiliate (as the case may be) makes written demand therefor.
- (d) Within 30 days after the date of any payment of Taxes, the Borrower shall furnish to the Administrative Agent, at its address referred to in Section 8.02, the original or a certified copy of a receipt evidencing payment thereof. If no Taxes are payable in respect of any payment hereunder or under the Notes, the Borrower will furnish to the Administrative Agent, at such address, a certificate from each appropriate taxing authority, or an opinion of counsel acceptable to the Administrative Agent, in either case stating that such payment is exempt from or not subject to Taxes.
- (e) Each Lender organized under the laws of a jurisdiction outside the United States, on or prior to the date of its execution and delivery of this Agreement in the case of each Initial Lender and on the date of the Assignment and Acceptance pursuant to which it becomes a Lender in the case of each other Lender, and from time to time thereafter if requested in writing

26

by the Borrower (but only so long as such Lender remains lawfully able to do so), shall provide each of the Administrative Agent and the Borrower with Internal Revenue Service form 1001 or 4224, or (in the case of a Lender that has certified in writing to the Administrative Agent that it is not a "bank" as defined in Section 881(c)(3)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code) Form W-8 (and, if such Non-U.S. Lender delivers a Form W-8, a certificate representing that such Non-U.S. Lender is not a "bank" for purposes of Section 881(c) of the Internal Revenue Code, is not a 10-percent shareholder (within the meaning of Section 871(h)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code) of the Borrower and is not a controlled foreign corporation related to the Borrower (within the meaning of Section 864(d)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code)),as appropriate, or any successor form

prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service, certifying that such Lender is entitled to benefits under an income tax treaty to which the United States is a party which reduces the rate of withholding tax on payments of interest or certifying that the income receivable pursuant to this Agreement is effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business in the United States. Each such Lender shall provide the Administrative Agent and the Borrower with a new form 1001, 4224 or W-8, as appropriate, if and at such time as the previously provided form becomes invalid. If the form provided by a Lender at the time such Lender first becomes a party to this Agreement or at any other time indicates a United States interest withholding tax rate in excess of zero, withholding tax at such rate shall be considered excluded from "Taxes" as defined in Section 2.14(a).

- (f) For any period with respect to which a Lender has failed to provide the Borrower with the appropriate form described in subsection (e) of this Section 2.14 (other than if such failure is due to a change in law occurring subsequent to the date on which a form originally was required to be provided, or if such form otherwise is not required under the first sentence of subsection (e) of this Section 2.14), such Lender shall not be entitled to indemnification under subsection (a) or (c) of this Section 2.14 with respect to Taxes imposed by the United States by reason of such failure; provided, however, that should a Lender become subject to Taxes because of its failure to deliver a form required hereunder, the Borrower shall take such steps as the Lender shall reasonably request to assist the Lender to recover such Taxes.
- (g) Notwithstanding any contrary provisions of this Agreement, in the event that a Lender that originally provided such form as may be required under subsection (e) of this Section 2.14 thereafter ceases to qualify for complete exemption from United States withholding tax, such Lender, with the prior written consent of the Borrower, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, may assign its interest under this Agreement to any assignee and such assignee shall be entitled to the same benefits under this Section 2.14 as the assignor *provided* that the rate of United States withholding tax applicable to such assignee shall not exceed the rate then applicable to the assignor.
- (h) Without prejudice to the survival of any other agreement of the Borrower hereunder, the agreements and obligations of the Borrower contained in this Section 2.14 shall survive the payment in full of principal and interest hereunder and under the Notes.
- (i) Any Lender claiming any additional amounts payable pursuant to this Section 2.14 agrees to use reasonable efforts (consistent with its internal policy and legal and regulatory restrictions) to change the jurisdiction of its Eurodollar Lending Office if the making of such a change would avoid the need for, or reduce the amount of, any such additional amounts

27

that may thereafter accrue and would not, in the reasonable judgment of such Lender, be otherwise disadvantageous to such Lender.

SECTION 2.15. Sharing of Payments, Etc. If any Lender shall obtain any payment (whether voluntary, involuntary, through the exercise of any right of setoff, or otherwise) on account of the Revolving Credit Advances owing to it (other than pursuant to Section 2.11, 2.14 or 8.04(c)) in excess of its ratable share of payments on account of the Revolving Credit Advances obtained by all the Lenders, such Lender shall forthwith purchase from the other Lenders such participations in the Revolving Credit Advances owing to them as shall be necessary to cause such purchasing Lender to share the excess payment ratably with each of them; provided, however, that if all or any portion of such excess payment is thereafter recovered from such purchasing Lender, such purchase from each Lender shall be rescinded and such Lender shall repay to the purchasing Lender the purchase price to the extent of such recovery together with an amount equal to such Lender's ratable share (according to the proportion of (i) the amount of such Lender's required repayment to (ii) the total amount so recovered from the purchasing Lender) of any interest or other amount paid or payable by the purchasing Lender in respect of the total amount so recovered. The Borrower agrees that any Lender so purchasing a participation from another Lender pursuant to this Section 2.15 may, to the fullest extent permitted by law, exercise all its rights of payment (including the right of setoff) with respect to such participation as fully as if such Lender were the direct creditor of the Borrower in the amount of such participation.

SECTION 2.16. Extensions of Termination Date and Final Maturity Date. (a) No earlier than 60 days and no later than 45 days prior to the Termination Date in effect at any time, the Borrower may, by written notice to the Administrative Agent, request that such Termination Date be extended for a period of 364 days. Such request shall be irrevocable and binding upon the Borrower. The Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each Lender of such request. If a Lender agrees, in its individual and sole discretion, to so extend its Commitment (an "Extending Lender"), it shall deliver to the Administrative Agent a written notice of its agreement to do so no earlier than 30 days and no later than 20 days prior to such Termination Date and the Administrative Agent shall notify the Borrower of such Extending Lender's agreement to extend its Commitment no later than 15 days prior to such Termination Date. The Commitment of any Lender that fails to accept or respond to the Borrower's request for extension of the Termination Date (a "Declining Lender") shall be terminated on the Termination Date originally in effect (without regard to any extension by other Lenders) and on such Termination Date the Borrower shall pay in full the principal amount of all Advances owing to such Declining Lender, together with accrued interest thereon to the date of such payment of principal and all other amounts payable to such Declining Lender this Agreement. The Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each Extending Lender of the aggregate Commitments of the Declining Lender. The Extending Lenders, or any of them, may offer to increase their respective Commitments by an aggregate amount up to the aggregate amount of the Declining Lenders' Commitments and any such Extending Lender shall deliver to the Administrative Agent a notice of its offer to so increase its Commitment no later than 15 days prior to such Termination Date. To the extent of any shortfall in the aggregate amount of extended Commitments, the Borrower shall have the right t

28

be unreasonably withheld, that agree to accept all of such rights and obligations (each a 'Replacement Lender''), provided that (i) such increase and/or such assignment is otherwise in compliance with Section 8.07, (ii) such Declining Lender receives payment in full of the principal amount of all Advances owing to such Declining Lender, together with accrued interest thereon to the date of such payment of principal and all other amounts payable to such Declining Lender under this Agreement and (iii) any such increase shall be effective on the Termination Date in effect at the time the Borrower requests such extension and any such assignment shall be effective on the date specified by the Borrower and agreed to by the Replacement Lender and the Administrative Agent. If Extending Lenders and Replacement Lenders provide Commitments in an aggregate amount greater than 50% of the aggregate amount of the Commitments outstanding 30 days prior to the Termination Date in effect at the time the Borrower requests such extension, the Termination Date is shall be extended by 364 days for such Extending Lenders and Replacement Lenders, subject, however, to the provisions of subsection (b) of this Section 2.16.

On the Termination Date in effect at any time, the Borrower may, by written notice to the Administrative Agent, request that the Final Maturity Date be a date occurring up to the third anniversary of the then scheduled Termination Date. Such request shall be irrevocable and binding upon the Borrower. The Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each Lender of such request. Subject to the satisfaction of the applicable conditions set forth in Section 3.02 as of such Termination Date, the Final Maturity Date shall be, effective as of such Termination Date, such date as the Borrower shall request pursuant to this subsection (b) of this Section 2.16. In the event that the Borrower shall request that the Final Maturity Date be a date occurring up to the third anniversary of the then scheduled Termination Date, and the Final Maturity Date shall be so extended as provided in this subsection (b) of this Section 2.16, the right of the Borrower to request an extension of the Termination Date in effect at the time such request is made which would otherwise occur as provided in subsection (a) of this Section 2.16 shall automatically be cancelled. The Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each Lender of any such extension of the Final Maturity Date and any such cancellation of an extension of the Termination Date.

SECTION 2.17. <u>Substitution of Lender</u>. If the obligation of any Lender to make Eurodollar Rate Advances has been suspended pursuant to Section 2.12 or any Lender has demanded compensation or the Borrower is otherwise required to pay additional amounts under Section 2.11 or 2.14, the Borrower shall have the right to seek a substitute lender or lenders who qualify as Eligible Assignees to assume, in accordance with the provisions of Section 8.07, the Commitment of such Lender and to purchase the Revolving Credit Advances made by such Lender (without recourse to or warranty by such Lender).

ARTICLE III

CONDITIONS TO EFFECTIVENESS AND LENDING

SECTION 3.01. Conditions Precedent to Effectiveness of Sections 2.01 and 2.03. Sections 2.01 and 2.03 of this Agreement shall become effective on and as of the first date (the "Effective Date") on which the following conditions precedent have been satisfied:

29

- (a) The Borrower shall have notified each Lender and the Administrative Agent in writing as to the proposed Effective Date.
- (b) The Borrower shall have paid all fees and other amounts due and payable.
- (c) The Borrower shall have repaid all outstanding advances and shall have paid all other amounts payable under each of the Existing Credit Facilities and the commitments under each such Existing Credit Facility shall have been terminated.
- (d) On the Effective Date, the following statements shall be true and the Administrative Agent shall have received for the account of each Lender a certificate signed by a duly authorized officer of the Borrower, dated the Effective Date, stating that:
 - (i) the representations and warranties contained in Section 4.01 are correct in all material respects on and as of the Effective Date; and
 - (ii) no event has occurred and is continuing that constitutes a Default.
- (e) The Administrative Agent shall have received on or before the Effective Date the following, each dated such day, in form and substance satisfactory to the Administrative Agent and (except for the Revolving Credit Notes) in sufficient copies for each Lender:
 - The Revolving Credit Notes to the order of the Lenders, respectively.
 - (ii) A guaranty, in substantially the form of Exhibit E hereto (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the "Guaranty"), duly executed by each of the Guarantors.
 - (iii) An indemnity, subrogation and contribution agreement, in substantially the form of Exhibit F hereto (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the "Indemnity Agreement"), duly executed by the Borrower and each of the Guarantors.
 - (iv) Certified copies of the resolutions of the board of directors of the Borrower approving this Agreement, the Notes and the Indemnity Agreement, and of all documents evidencing other necessary corporate action and governmental approvals, if any, with respect to this Agreement, the Notes and the Indemnity Agreement.
 - (v) Certified copies of the resolutions of the board of directors of each of the Guarantors approving the Guaranty and the Indemnity Agreement, and of all documents evidencing other necessary corporate action and governmental approvals, if any, with respect to the Guaranty and the Indemnity Agreement.
 - (vi) A certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of each of the Guarantors certifying the names and true signatures of the officers of such

30

Guarantor authorized to sign the Guaranty and the Indemnity Agreement and the other documents to be delivered hereunder.

- (vii) A certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Borrower certifying the names and true signatures of the officers of the Borrower authorized to sign this Agreement, the Notes and the Indemnity Agreement and the other documents to be delivered hereunder.
 - (viii) A favorable opinion of King & Spalding LLP, counsel for the Borrower, substantially in the form of Exhibit G hereto.
- (ix) A favorable opinion of Shearman & Sterling, counsel for the Administrative Agent, in form and substance satisfactory to the Administrative Agent.

SECTION 3.02. <u>Conditions Precedent to Each Revolving Credit Borrowing and to Extension of the Final Maturity Date</u> The obligation of each Lender to make a Revolving Credit Advance on the occasion of each Revolving Credit Borrowing and the extension of the Final Maturity Date pursuant to Section 2.16(b) shall be subject to the conditions precedent that the Effective Date shall have occurred and on the date of such Revolving Credit Borrowing or, in the case of the Extension of the Final Maturity Date, on the Termination Date then in effect the following statements shall be true (and each of the giving of the applicable Notice of Revolving Credit Borrowing and the acceptance by the Borrower of the proceeds of such Revolving Credit Borrowing and the giving of the applicable notice of extension of the Final Maturity Date, as the case may be, shall constitute a representation and warranty by the Borrower that on the date of such Borrowing or such extension such statements are true):

- (a) the representations and warranties contained in Section 4.01 (except the representations set forth in subsection (f) thereof and in subsection (h) thereof) are correct in all material respects on and as of the date of such Revolving Credit Borrowing or such extension, before and after giving effect to such Revolving Credit Borrowing and to the application of the proceeds therefrom or to such extension, as though made on and as of such date; and
- (b) no event has occurred and is continuing, or would result from such Revolving Credit Borrowing or from the application of the proceeds therefrom or from such extension, that constitutes a Default.

SECTION 3.03. Conditions Precedent to Each Competitive Bid Borrowing The obligation of each Lender that is to make a Competitive Bid Advance on the occasion of a Competitive Bid Borrowing to make such Competitive Bid Advance as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing is subject to the conditions precedent that (a) the Administrative Agent shall have received the written confirmatory Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing with respect thereto, (b) on or before the date of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, but prior to such Competitive Bid Borrowing, the Administrative Agent shall have received a Competitive Bid Note payable to the order of such Lender for each of the one or more Competitive Bid Advances to be made by such Lender as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, in a principal amount equal to the principal

amount of the Competitive Bid Advance to be evidenced thereby and otherwise on such terms as were agreed to for such Competitive Bid Advance in accordance with Section 2.03, and (c) on the date of such Competitive Bid Borrowing the following statements shall be true (and each of the giving of the applicable Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing and the acceptance by the Borrower of the proceeds of such Competitive Bid Borrowing shall constitute a representation and warrant y by the Borrower that on the date of such Competitive Bid Borrowing such statements are true):

- (i) the representations and warranties contained in Section 4.01 (except the representations set forth in subsection (f) thereof and in subsection (h) thereof) are correct in all material respects on and as of the date of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, before and after giving effect to such Competitive Bid Borrowing and to the application of the proceeds therefrom, as though made on and as of such date; and
- (ii) no event has occurred and is continuing, or would result from such Competitive Bid Borrowing or from the application of the proceeds therefrom, that constitutes a Default.

SECTION 3.04. <u>Determinations Under Section 3.01</u>. For purposes of determining compliance with the conditions specified in Section 3.01, each Lender shall be deemed to have consented to, approved or accepted or to be satisfied with each document or other matter required thereunder to be consented to or approved by or acceptable or satisfactory to the Lenders unless an officer of the Administrative Agent responsible for the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall have received notice from such Lender prior to the proposed Effective Date, as notified by the Borrower to the Lenders, specifying its objection thereto. The Administrative Agent shall promptly notify the Borrower and the other Lenders of the Effective Date.

SECTION 3.05. <u>Labor Dispute</u>. Notwithstanding any condition precedent to the contrary contained herein, a labor dispute of any sort involving employees of the Borrower or its Subsidiaries shall not prevent the Borrower from borrowing hereunder unless as a result thereof a Default exists under Section 6.01(a) or (e).

ARTICLE IV

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

SECTION 4.01. Representations and Warranties of the Borrower. The Borrower represents and warrants as follows:

(a) Each of the Loan Parties and the Subsidiaries of the Borrower (i) is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation, (ii) has the requisite power and authority to own its property and assets and to carry on its business as now conducted, (iii) is qualified to do business in every jurisdiction where such qualification is required, except where the failure so to qualify would not result in a Material Adverse Effect, (iv) in the case of each

32

of the Loan Parties, has the corporate power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under each Loan Document to which it is or is to be a party and each other agreement or instrument contemplated thereby to which it is or is to be a party and (v) in the case of the Borrower, has the corporate power and authority to borrow under this Agreement.

- (b) The execution, delivery and performance by each of the Loan Parties of each Loan Document to which it is or is to be a party and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby are within such Loan Party's corporate powers, have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action and, if required, stockholder action, and do not (i) contravene the charter or other constitutive documents or by- laws of such Loan Party or any Subsidiary of the Borrower, (ii) violate any law or order of any Governmental Authority or any provision of any indenture, agreement or other instrument to which any Loan Party or any Subsidiary of the Borrower is a party or by which any of them or any of their property is or may be bound or affected, (iii) conflict with, result in a breach of or constitute (alone or with notice or lapse of time or both) a default under any such indenture, agreement or other instrument or (iv) result in the creation or imposition of any Lien upon or with respect to any property or assets now owned or hereafter acquired by any Loan Party or any Subsidiary of the Borrower.
- (c) No authorization, approval or other action by, and no notice to or filing with, any Governmental Authority is required for the due execution, delivery and performance by any Loan Party of this Agreement, the Notes or any other Loan Document to which it is or is to be a party, or for the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, except for such authorizations, approvals, actions, notices or filings that have been made or obtained and are in full force and effect.
- (d) This Agreement has been, and each of the Notes and each other Loan Document when delivered hereunder will have been, duly executed and delivered by each of the Loan Parties party thereto. This Agreement is, and each of the Notes and each other Loan Document when delivered hereunder will be, the legal, valid and binding obligation of each of the Loan Parties party thereto enforceable against such Loan Party in accordance with their respective terms (subject, as to the enforcement of remedies, to applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium and similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally).
- (e) (i) The Consolidated balance sheet of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2002, and the related Consolidated statements of income and cash flows of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries for the Fiscal Year then ended, all audited and certified by Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent public accountants, copies of which have been furnished to each Lender, fairly present the Consolidated financial condition of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries at such dates and the Consolidated results of the operations of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries for the periods ended on such dates, all in accordance with GAAP consistently applied. Such balance sheets and the notes thereto disclose all material liabilities, direct or contingent, of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries on a Consolidated basis as of the dates thereof.

33

- (f) There has been no Material Adverse Change since December 31, 2002.
- (g) Each of the Borrower and its Material Subsidiaries has good and marketable title to, or valid leasehold interests in, all their material properties and assets, except for such properties as are no longer used or useful in the conduct of their businesses or as have been disposed of in the ordinary course of business and except for minor defects in title that do not interfere with the ability of the Borrower or any of its Material Subsidiaries to conduct its businesses as currently conducted. All such properties and assets are free and clear of Liens, other than Liens expressly permitted by Section 5.02(b).
- (h) Except as set forth in the financial statements referred to in subsection (e) of this Section 4.01, there is no pending or, to the knowledge of the Borrower, threatened action, suit, investigation, litigation or proceeding affecting the Borrower or any of its Material Subsidiaries or any business, property or rights of the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary (i) as to which there is a reasonable possibility of an adverse determination and which, if adversely determined, could reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect or (ii) that purports to affect the legality, validity or enforceability of this Agreement, any Note or any other Loan Document or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby. Neither the Borrower nor any of its

Subsidiaries is in violation of any law, rule or regulation, or in default with respect to any judgement, writ, injunction or decree of any Governmental Authority, where such violation or default could result in a Material Adverse Effect.

- (i) Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any agreement or instrument or subject to any corporate restriction that has resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries is in default in any manner under any provision of any indenture or other agreement or instrument evidencing Debt, or any other material agreement or instrument to which it is a party or by which it or any of its properties or assets are or may be bound, where such default could result in a Material Adverse Effect.
- (j) Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries is engaged principally, or as one of its important activities, in the business of extending credit for the purpose of purchasing or carrying Margin Stock. No part of the proceeds of any Advance will be used, whether directly or indirectly, and whether immediately, incidentally or ultimately, (i) to purchase or carry Margin Stock or to extend credit to others for the purpose of purchasing or carrying Margin Stock or to refund indebtedness originally incurred for such purpose or (ii) for any purpose which entails a violation of, or which is inconsistent with, the provisions of the Regulations of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, including Regulation T, U or X thereof.
- (k) Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries is (i) an "investment company", as defined in, or subject to regulation under, the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended or (ii) a "holding company" as defined in, or subject to regulation under, the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended.

34

- (l) The Borrower will use the proceeds of the Advances only as a commercial paper backstop and for lawful general corporate purposes.
- (m) Each of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries has filed or caused to be filed all federal, state and local tax returns required to have been filed by it and has paid or caused to be paid all taxes shown to be due and payable on such returns or on any assessments received by it, except taxes that are otherwise permitted in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.01(b).
- (n) No information, report, financial statement, exhibit or schedule prepared or furnished by or on behalf of the Borrower to the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent, the Arranger or any Lender in connection with the negotiation of any Loan Document or included therein or delivered pursuant thereto contained, contains or will contain any material misstatement of fact or omitted, omits or will omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were, are or will be made, not misleading.
- (o) Each of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries is in compliance in all material respects with the applicable provisions of ERISA and the regulations and published interpretations thereunder that are applicable to the Borrower and its Subsidiaries. As of the date hereof, no Reportable Event has occurred as to which the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries was required to file a report with the PBGC, and no material unfunded vested liabilities exist under any Plan.
- (p) Each of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries is in substantial compliance with all applicable federal, state and local environmental laws, regulations and ordinances governing its business, properties or assets with respect to discharges into the ground and surface water, emissions into the ambient air and generation, storage, transportation and disposal of waste materials or process by-products, except such noncompliances as are not likely to have a Material Adverse Effect. All licenses, permits or registrations required for the business of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries under any federal, state or local environmental laws, regulations or ordinances have been secured, and the Borrower and each Subsidiary are in substantial compliance therewith, except such licenses, permits or registrations the failure to secure or to comply therewith are not likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

ARTICLE V

COVENANTS OF THE BORROWER

SECTION 5.01. <u>Affirmative Covenants</u>. So long as any Advance shall remain unpaid or any Lender shall have any Commitment hereunder, the Borrower will, and will cause each of its Material Subsidiaries to, unless the Required Lenders shall otherwise consent in writing:

(a) <u>Compliance with Laws, Etc.</u> Comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and orders of any Governmental Authority, whether now in effect or hereafter

35

enacted, such compliance to include, without limitation, compliance with ERISA and applicable environmental laws, except for such noncompliance as would not result in a Material Adverse Effect.

- (b) Payment of Taxes, Etc. Pay and discharge promptly when due all taxes, assessments and governmental charges or levies imposed upon it or upon its income or profits or in respect of its property, before the same shall become delinquent or in default, as well as all lawful claims for labor, materials and supplies or otherwise that, if unpaid, might give rise to a Lien upon such properties or any part thereof; provided, however, that such payment and discharge shall not be required with respect to any such tax, assessment, charge, levy or claim so long as the validity or amount thereof shall be contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings or where the failure to pay such tax, assessment, charge, levy or claim would not (i) result in a Material Adverse Effect or (ii) result in the imposition of any lien securing a material amount in favor of any party entitling such party to priority of payment over the Lenders, and the Borrower or such Subsidiary shall, to the extent required by generally accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis, have set aside on its books adequate reserves with respect thereto.
- (c) <u>Maintenance of Insurance</u>. (i) Keep its insurable properties adequately insured at all times by financially sound and reputable insurers, (ii) maintain such other insurance, to such extent and against such risks, including fire and other risks insured against by extended coverage, as is customary with companies in the same or similar businesses, including public liability insurance against claims for personal injury or death or property damage occurring upon, in, about or in connection with the use of any properties owned, occupied or controlled by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, in such amount as the Borrower or such Subsidiary shall reasonably deem necessary and (iii) maintain such other insurance as may be required by law or as may be reasonably requested by the Lenders for purposes of assuring compliance with this Section 5.01(c) (it being understood that the Borrower may self- insure against certain risks to the extent customary with companies similarly situated and in the same or similar lines of business).
- (d) <u>Preservation of Corporate Existence, Etc.</u> Preserve and maintain, and cause its Subsidiaries to preserve and maintain, its corporate existence; obtain, preserve, renew, extend and keep in full force and effect the rights, licenses, permits, franchises, authorizations, patents, copyrights, trademarks and tradename material to the conduct of its business (unless the failure to so preserve or renew would not result in a Material Adverse Effect); and maintain and operate, and cause its Subsidiaries to maintain and operate, its businesses in materially the same manner in which they are currently conducted and operated; *provided*, *however*, that the Borrower and its Subsidiaries may consummate any merger or consolidation permitted under Section 5.02(d).
 - (e) <u>Visitation Rights</u>. At any reasonable time and from time to time, upon ten Business Days' prior notice, permit the Administrative Agent or any

the Borrower and any of its Subsidiaries (i) with any of their officers and (ii) with their independent certified public accountants, in the presence of one or more officers of the Borrower if so requested by the Borrower (it being understood that information obtained by the Lenders pursuant to this Section 5.01(e) shall be kept confidential except to the extent that any such information becomes public or is required to be disclosed by law or requested to be disclosed by any Governmental Authority; provided that such information may be disclosed to the same extent that other Confidential Information may be disclosed pursuant to Section 8.08).

- (f) <u>Keeping of Books</u>. Keep, and cause each of its Subsidiaries to keep, proper books of record and account, in which full and correct entries shall be made of all financial transactions and the assets and business of the Borrower and each such Subsidiary in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in effect from time to time
- (g) <u>Maintenance of Properties, Etc.</u> Maintain and preserve all of its properties material to the conduct of its business in good repair, working order and condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and from time to time make, or cause to be made, all needful and proper repairs, renewals, additions, improvements and replacements thereto necessary in order that the business carried on in connection therewith may be properly conducted at all times.
 - (h) Reporting Requirements. In the case of the Borrower, furnish to each Agent and each Lender (other than a Designated Bidder):
 - (i) within 120 days after the end of each Fiscal Year of the Borrower, Consolidated balance sheets of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries showing the financial condition of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries as of the close of such Fiscal Year and the related statements of Consolidated income and statements of Consolidated cash flow as of and for such Fiscal Year, all such Consolidated financial statements of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries to be reported on by Deloitte & Touche or other independent accountants acceptable to the Required Lenders, and to be in form reasonably acceptable to the Required Lenders;
 - (ii) within 60 days after the end of the first three fiscal quarters of each Fiscal Year, unaudited Consolidated balance sheets and statements of Consolidated income and statements of Consolidated cash flow showing the financial condition and results of operations of the Borrower as of the end of each such quarter and, with respect to statements of Consolidated cash flow, for the then-elapsed portion of the Fiscal Year, certified by a Financial Officer of the Borrower as presenting fairly the financial position and results of operations of the Borrower on a Consolidated basis and as having been prepared in accordance with GAAP, in each case subject to normal year-end audit adjustments;
 - (iii) promptly after the same become publicly available, copies of (A) such annual, periodic and other reports, and such proxy statements and other information as shall be filed by the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary with the

37

Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act and (B) such registration statements filed by the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary pursuant to the requirements of Securities Act of 1933, as amended, other than any such registration statements filed on Form S-8 or any comparable form;

- (iv) concurrently with subsections (h)(i) and (h)(ii) of this Section 5.01, a certificate of a Financial Officer of the Borrower stating compliance, as of the dates of the financial statements being furnished at such time, with the covenant set forth in Section 5.02(a);
- (v) concurrently with subsections (h)(i) and (h)(ii) of this Section 5.01, a certificate of the Person referred to therein (which certificate furnished by the independent accountants referred to in subsection (h)(i) of this Section 5.01 may be limited to accounting matters and disclaim responsibility for legal interpretations) certifying that to the best of his, her or its knowledge no Default or Event of Default has occurred and, in the case of a certificate of a Financial Officer of the Borrower, if such a Default or Event of Default has occurred, specifying the nature and extent thereof and any corrective action taken or proposed to be taken with respect thereto;
- (vi) prompt written notice of any Default, specifying the nature and extent thereof and any corrective action taken or proposed to be taken with respect thereto;
- (vii) prompt written notice of the filing or commencement of, or any threat or notice of intention of any Person to file or commence, any action, suit, arbitration proceeding or other proceeding, whether at law or in equity or by or before any Governmental Authority, against the Borrower or any Subsidiary thereof that, if adversely determined, could result in a Material Adverse Effect;
- (viii) prompt written notice of any development in the business or affairs of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries that has resulted in or which is likely, in the reasonable judgment of the Borrower, to result in a Material Adverse Effect (it being understood that material provided to any Agent or Lender pursuant to this subsection (h)(viii) of this Section 5.01 shall be kept confidential except to the extent that any such material becomes public or is required to be disclosed by law or requested to be disclosed by any Governmental Authority having jurisdiction over such Agent or Lender; provided that such information may be disclosed to the same extent that other Confidential Information may be disclosed pursuant to Section 8.08);
- (ix) prompt written notice of the issuance by any Governmental Authority of any injunction, order, decision or other restraint prohibiting, or having the effect of prohibiting, the making of the Advances or the initiation of any litigation or similar proceedings seeking any such injunction, order or other restraint;

38

- (x) prompt written notice of any Change of Control;
- (xi) prompt written notice of any change in the identity of the Principal Properties from those set forth on the schedule to be delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(j) after the date such schedule is delivered to the Administrative Agent and each Lender; and
- (xii) prompt written notice of any change in the identity of the Restricted Subsidiaries from those set forth on the schedule to be delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(j) after the date such schedule is delivered to the Administrative Agent and each Lender.
- (i) Compliance with ERISA. Comply in all material respects with the applicable provisions of ERISA and furnish to the Administrative Agent, the

Documentation Agent and each Lender (other than a Designated Bidder) (i) as soon as possible, and in any event within 30 days after any Financial Officer of the Borrower knows or has reason to know that any Reportable Event has occurred that alone or together with any other Reportable Event with respect to the same or another Plan could reasonably be expected to result in liability of the Borrower or any Subsidiary to the PBGC in an aggregate amount exceeding \$1,000,000, a statement of a Financial Officer setting forth details as to such Reportable Event and the action proposed to be taken with respect thereto, together with a copy of the notice, if any, of such Reportable Event given to the PBGC and (ii) promptly after receipt thereof, a copy of any notice the Borrower or any Subsidiary may receive from the PBGC relating to the intention of the PBGC to terminate any Plan or Plans or to appoint a trustee to administer any Plan or Plans.

(j) <u>Principal Properties; Restricted Subsidiaries.</u> Promptly deliver to the Administrative Agent and each Lender (other than a Designated Bidder) on the date on which the Borrower's Public Debt Rating is lower than S&P AA- or Moody's AA3, a schedule setting forth each Principal Property and each Restricted Subsidiary as of such date.

SECTION 5.02. <u>Negative Covenants</u>. So long as any Advance shall remain unpaid or any Lender shall have any Commitment hereunder, the Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, without the written consent of the Required Lenders:

(a) Secured Indebtedness. In the case of the Borrower and each of its Restricted Subsidiaries, create, assume, incur or guarantee, or permit any Restricted Subsidiary to create, assume, incur or guarantee (each such creation, assumption, incurrence or guarantee being an "Incurrence"), any Secured Indebtedness without making provision whereby all amounts outstanding under this Agreement and each other Loan Document shall be secured equally and ratably with (or prior to) such Secured Indebtedness (together with, if the Borrower shall so determine, any other Debt of the Borrower or such Restricted Subsidiary then existing or thereafter created that is not subordinate to such amounts outstanding under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents) so long as such Secured Indebtedness shall be outstanding, unless such Secured Indebtedness, when added to (i) the aggregate amount of all Secured

39

Indebtedness then outstanding (not including in this computation (A) any Secured Indebtedness if all amounts outstanding under this Agreement and each other Loan Document are secured equally and ratably with (or prior to) such Secured Indebtedness and (B) any Secured Indebtedness that is concurrently being retired) and (ii) the aggregate amount of all Attributable Debt then outstanding pursuant to Sale and Leaseback Transactions entered into by the Borrower after December 1, 1989, or entered into by any Restricted Subsidiary after December 1, 1989, or, if later, the date on which such Subsidiary became a Restricted Subsidiary (not including in this computation any Attributable Debt that is currently being retired) would not exceed 10% of Consolidated Net Tangible Assets at the time of such Incurrence.

- (b) <u>Liens, Etc.</u> In the case of the Borrower and each of the Restricted Subsidiaries, create, incur, assume or permit to exist any Lien on any property or assets (including stock or other securities of any Person, including any Subsidiary) now owned or hereafter acquired, or assign or convey any rights to or security interests in any future revenue, except:
 - (i) Liens on property or assets of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries existing on the date hereof and (A) disclosed in the financial statements referred to in Section 4.01(e) or (B) securing Debt in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of \$50,000,000; provided that such Liens shall secure only those obligations which they secure on the date hereof;
 - (ii) any Lien existing on any property or asset prior to the acquisition thereof by the Borrower or any Subsidiary *provided* that (A) such Lien is not created in contemplation of or in connection with such acquisition and (B) such Lien does not apply to any other property or assets of the Borrower or any Subsidiary;
 - (iii) carriers', warehousemen's, mechanics', materialmen's, repairmen's or other like Liens arising in the ordinary course of business and securing obligations that are not due or which are otherwise allowed in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.01(b);
 - (iv) pledges and deposits made in the ordinary course of business in compliance with workmen's compensation, unemployment insurance and other social security laws or regulations;
 - (v) deposits to secure the performance of bids, trade contracts (other than for Debt), leases (other than Capital Lease Obligations), statutory obligations, surety and appeal bonds, performance bonds and other obligations of a like nature incurred in the ordinary course of business;
 - (vi) zoning restrictions, easements, rights-of-way, restrictions on use of real property and other similar encumbrances incurred in the ordinary course of business that, in the aggregate, are not substantial in amount and do not materially

40

detract from the value of the property subject thereto or interfere with the ordinary conduct of the business of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries;

- (vii) Liens upon any property acquired, constructed or improved by the Borrower or any Subsidiary that are created or incurred contemporaneously with acquisition, construction or improvement to secure or provide for the payment of any part of the purchase price of such property or the cost of such construction or improvement (but no other amounts); provided that any such Lien shall not apply to any other property of the Borrower or any Subsidiary;
- (viii) Liens securing the payment of taxes, assessments and governmental charges or levies, either (A) not delinquent or (B) permitted in accordance with Section 5.01(b);
 - (ix) Liens on the property or assets of any Subsidiary in favor of the Borrower or another Subsidiary;
- (x) extensions, renewals and replacements of Liens referred to in subsections (b)(i) through (b)(ix) of this Section 5.02; provided that any such extension, renewal or replacement Lien shall be limited to the property or assets covered by the Lien extended, renewed or replaced and that the obligations secured by any such extension, renewal or replacement Lien shall be in an amount not greater than the amount of the obligations secured by the Lien extended, renewed or replaced;
 - (xi) Liens in connection with Debt permitted to be incurred pursuant to subsections (a) and (c) of this Section 5.02;
- (xii) Liens in connection with Debt incurred in the ordinary course of business in connection with workmen's compensation, unemployment insurance and other social security laws or regulations;
- (xiii) any attachment or judgment Lien not in excess of \$50,000,000 unless (A) enforcement proceedings shall have been commenced by any creditor upon such attachment or judgment or (B) there shall be any period of 45 consecutive days during which a stay of enforcement of such attachment or judgment, by reason of a pending appeal or otherwise, shall not be in effect;

- (xiv) other Liens securing Debt in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 1% of Consolidated Net Worth at any time outstanding;
- (xv) Liens arising in connection with rights of setoff that commercial banks and other financial institutions obtain against monies, securities or other properties of the Borrower and its Restricted Subsidiaries in possession of or on deposit with such banks or financial institutions, whether in general or special deposit accounts or held for safekeeping, transmission, collection or otherwise; and

41

- (xvi) Liens on aircraft, airframes or aircraft engines, aeronautic equipment or computers and electronic data processing equipment.
- (c) <u>Sale and Lease-Back Transactions</u>. In the case of the Borrower and its Restricted Subsidiaries, enter into any Sale and Leaseback Transaction unless at such time it would be permitted to enter into such Sale and Leaseback Transaction pursuant to Section 1006 of the Debenture Indenture.
- (d) Mergers, Etc. Merge or consolidate with or into, or convey, transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of (whether in one transaction or in a series of transactions) all or substantially all of its assets (whether now owned or hereafter acquired) to, any Person, or permit another Person to merge into it, or acquire all or substantially all of the assets of any other Person, except that (i) any Subsidiary of the Borrower may merge into the Borrower or any other Subsidiary of the Borrower, (ii) the Borrower or any Subsidiary of the Borrower may merge or consolidate with or into any other Person so long as the Borrower or such Subsidiary is the surviving corporation, and (iii) the Borrower and any of its Subsidiaries may acquire all or substantially all of the assets of another Person; provided that any Subsidiary that is not a Guarantor may not acquire all or substantially all of the assets of a Guarantor unless such Subsidiary duly executes a guaranty in favor of the Lenders in substantially the form of Exhibit E hereto; and provided further, in each case, that no Default shall have occurred and be continuing at the time of such proposed transaction or would result therefrom.

ARTICLE VI

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

SECTION 6.01. Events of Default. If any of the following events ("Events of Default") shall occur and be continuing:

- (a) the Borrower shall fail to pay (i) any principal of any Advance when the same becomes due and payable or (ii) any interest on any Advance or any other amount payable under this Agreement or any Note when the same becomes due and payable and such failure to pay such interest or such other amount shall remain unremedied for three Business Days; or
- (b) any representation or warranty made or deemed made by any Loan Party (or any of its officers) in or in connection with any Loan Document or any Borrowing under this Agreement, or any representation, warranty, statement or information contained in any report, certificate, financial statement or other instrument furnished in connection with or pursuant to any Loan Document, shall prove to have been incorrect in any material respect when made or deemed made; or
- (c) the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries shall fail to perform or observe (i) any term, covenant or agreement contained in subsection (a), (d), (e), (f), (g) or (h) (other than subsections (h)(i) through (h)(v)) of Section 5.01 or Section 5.02 or (ii) any other term, covenant or agreement contained in any Loan Document on its part to be performed

42

or observed if such failure to perform such other term, covenant or agreement shall remain unremedied for 30 days after written notice thereof shall have been given to the Borrower or such Subsidiary, as the case may be, by the Administrative Agent; or

- (d) the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries shall fail to pay any principal of or premium or interest on any Debt that is outstanding in a principal amount of at least \$100,000,000 in the aggregate (but excluding Debt evidenced by the Notes) of the Borrower or such Subsidiary (as the case may be), when the same becomes due and payable (whether at maturity, by acceleration or otherwise), and such failure shall continue after the applicable grace period, if any, specified in the agreement or instrument relating to such Debt; or any other event shall occur or condition shall exist under any agreement or instrument relating to any such Debt and shall continue after the applicable grace period, if any, specified in such agreement or instrument, if the effect of such event or condition is to accelerate (with or without notice or lapse of time or both), or to permit the acceleration (with or without notice or lapse of time or both) of, the maturity of such Debt; or
- (e) the Borrower or any of its Material Subsidiaries shall generally not pay its debts as such debts become due, or shall admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally, or shall make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or any proceeding shall be instituted by or against the Borrower or any of its Material Subsidiaries seeking to adjudicate it a bankrupt or insolvent, or seeking liquidation, winding up, reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, protection, relief, or composition of it or its debts under any law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization or relief of debtors, or seeking the entry of an order for relief or the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar official for it or for any substantial part of its property and, in the case of any such proceeding instituted against it (but not instituted by it), either such proceeding shall remain undismissed or unstayed for a period of 60 days, or any of the actions sought in such proceeding (including, without limitation, the entry of an order for relief against, or the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar official for, it or for any substantial part of its property) shall occur; or the Borrower or any of its Material Subsidiaries shall take any corporate action to authorize any of the actions set forth above in this subsection (e); or
- (f) any final judgment or order for the payment of money in excess of \$50,000,000 in the aggregate shall be rendered against the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or any combination thereof and either (i) enforcement proceedings shall have been commenced by any creditor upon such judgment or order or (ii) there shall be any period of 45 consecutive days during which a stay of enforcement of such judgment or order, by reason of a pending appeal or otherwise, shall not be in effect; or
 - (g) any Change of Control shall have occurred; or
- (h) a Reportable Event or Reportable Events, or a failure to make a required installment or other payment (within the meaning of Section 412(n)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code), shall have occurred with respect to any Plan or Plans that reasonably could be expected to result in liability of the Borrower or any Subsidiary to the PBGC or

of such Reportable Event or Reportable Events or the failure to make a required payment, there are reasonable grounds (A) for the termination of such Plan or Plans by the PBGC or (B) for the appointment by the appropriate United States District Court of a trustee to administer such Plan or Plans and (ii) as a result thereof, an Event of Default exists hereunder; or the PBGC shall have instituted proceedings to terminate any Plan or Plans with vested unfunded liabilities aggregating in excess of \$25,000,000; or a trustee shall be appointed by a United States District Court to administer any such Plan or Plans and the Borrower is being requested to make a payment with respect to vested unfunded liabilities aggregating in excess of \$25,000,000; or

- (i) (i) any senior debt securities of the Borrower shall become rated lower than BBB- (or the equivalent thereof) by S&P or lower than Baa3 (or the equivalent thereof) by Moody's and such ratings shall remain in effect for a period of 90 days (it being understood that if either S&P or Moody's (but not both such rating agencies) shall cease to rate the senior debt securities of the Borrower, then the occurrence of the event described in this subsection (i)(i) shall be determined solely by reference to the rating assigned to the senior debt securities of the Borrower by the rating agency continuing to rate such securities) or (ii) the senior debt securities of the Borrower shall cease to be rated by both S&P and Moody's; or
- (j) this Agreement, the Guaranty or any other Loan Document shall for any reason cease to be, or shall be asserted by the Borrower, any Guarantor or any other Subsidiary of the Borrower not to be, a legal, valid and binding obligation of any party thereto (other than the Administrative Agent or any Lender), enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as otherwise permitted by Section 5.02(d);

then, and in any such event, the Administrative Agent (i) shall at the request, or may with the consent, of the Required Lenders, by notice to the Borrower, declare the obligation of each Lender to make Advances to be terminated, whereupon the same shall forthwith terminate, and (ii) shall at the request, or may with the consent, of the Required Lenders, by notice to the Borrower, declare the Notes, all interest thereon and all other amounts payable under this Agreement to be forthwith due and payable, whereupon the Notes, all such interest and all such amounts shall become and be forthwith due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest or further notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived by the Borrower; provided, however, that in the event of an actual or deemed entry of an order for relief with respect to the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries under the Federal Bankruptcy Code, (A) the obligation of each Lender to make Advances shall automatically be terminated and (B) the Notes, all such interest and all such amounts shall automatically become and be due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest or any notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived by the Borrower.

44

ARTICLE VII

THE AGENTS

SECTION 7.01. Authorization and Action. Each Lender hereby appoints and authorizes (a) the Administrative Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise such powers and discretion under this Agreement as are delegated to the Administrative Agent by the terms hereof, together with such powers and discretion as are reasonably incidental thereto, and (b) the Documentation Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise such powers and discretion under this Agreement as are delegated to the Documentation Agent by the terms hereof, together with such powers and discretion as are reasonably incidental thereto. As to any matters not expressly provided for by this Agreement (including, without limitation, enforcement or collection of the Notes), the Administrative Agent shall not be required to exercise any discretion or take any action, but shall be required to act or to refrain from acting (and shall be fully protected in so acting or refraining from acting) upon the instructions of the Required Lenders, and such instructions shall be binding upon all Lenders and all holders of Notes; provided, however, that the Administrative Agent shall not be required to take any action that exposes the Administrative Agent to personal liability or that is contrary to this Agreement or applicable law. The Administrative Agent agrees to give to each Lender prompt notice of each notice given to it by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

SECTION 7.02. The Agents' Reliance, Etc. Neither the Administrative Agent or the Documentation Agent nor any of its respective directors, officers, agents or employees shall be liable for any action taken or omitted to be taken by it or them under or in connection with this Agreement, except for its or their own gross negligence or willful misconduct. Without limitation of the generality of the foregoing, the Administrative Agent and the Documentation Agent: (i) may treat the payee of any Note as the holder thereof until the Administrative Agent receives and accepts an Assignment and Acceptance entered into by the Lender that is the payee of such Note, as assignor, and an Eligible Assignee, as assignee, as provided in Section 8.07; (ii) may consult with legal counsel (including counsel for the Borrower), independent public accountants and other experts selected by it and shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted to be taken in good faith by it in accordance with the advice of such counsel, accountants or experts; (iii) make no warranty or representation to any Lender and shall not be responsible to any Lender for any statements, warranties or representations (whether written or oral) made in or in connection with this Agreement; (iv) shall not have any duty to ascertain or to inquire as to the performance or observance of any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement on the part of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries; (v) shall not be responsible to any Lender for the due execution, legality, validity, enforceability, genuineness, sufficiency or value of this Agreement or other instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto; and (vi) shall incur no liability under or in respect of this Agreement by acting upon any notice, consent, certificate or other instrument or writing (which may be by telecopier, telegram or telex) believed by it to be genuine and signed or sent by the proper party or parties.

SECTION 7.03. <u>Citibank, B of A, Bank One and Their Affiliates.</u> With respect to its Commitment, the Advances made by it and the Note issued to it, each of Citibank, B of A

45

and Bank One shall have the same rights and powers under this Agreement as any other Lender and may exercise the same as though it were not the Administrative Agent or a Co-Documentation Agent, respectively; and the term "Lender" or "Lenders" shall, unless otherwise expressly indicated, include each of Citibank, B of A and Bank One in its individual capacity. Citibank, B of A, Bank One and their Affiliates may accept deposits from, lend money to, act as trustee under indentures of, accept investment banking engagements from and generally engage in any kind of business with, the Borrower, any of its Subsidiaries and any Person who may do business with or own securities of the Borrower or any such Subsidiary, all as if Citibank, B of A, Bank One and their Affiliates were not the Administrative Agent or a Co-Documentation Agent, respectively, and without any duty to account therefor to the Lenders.

SECTION 7.04. <u>Lender Credit Decision</u>. Each Lender acknowledges that it has, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent or any other Lender and based on the financial statements referred to in Section 4.01 and such other documents and information as it has deemed appropriate, made its own credit analysis and decision to enter into this Agreement. Each Lender also acknowledges that it will, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent or any other Lender and based on such documents and information as it shall deem appropriate at the time, continue to make its own credit decisions in taking or not taking action under this Agreement.

SECTION 7.05. Indemnification. The Lenders (other than the Designated Bidders) agree to indemnify each of the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent and their respective Affiliates (to the extent not reimbursed by the Borrower), ratably according to the respective principal amounts of the Revolving Credit Notes then held by each of them (or if no Revolving Credit Notes are at the time outstanding or if any Revolving Credit Notes are held by Persons that are not Lenders, ratably according to the respective amounts of their Commitments), from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements of any kind or nature whatsoever that may be imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent or such Affiliate in any way relating to or arising out of this Agreement or any action taken or omitted by the Administrative Agent or the Documentation Agent under this Agreement (collectively, the "Indemnified Costs"), provided that no Lender shall be liable for any portion of such Indemnified Costs resulting from the Administrative Agent's or such Affiliate's gross negligence or willful misconduct. Without limitation of the foregoing, each Lender (other than the Designated

Bidders) agrees to reimburse the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent and their respective Affiliates promptly upon demand for its ratable share of any out-of-pocket expenses (including counsel fees and disbursements) incurred by the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent or such Affiliate in connection with the preparation, execution, delivery, administration, modification, amendment or enforcement (whether through negotiations, legal proceedings or otherwise) of, or legal advice in respect of rights or responsibilities under, this Agreement, to the extent that the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent or such Affiliate is not reimbursed for such expenses by the Borrower. In the case of any investigation, litigation or proceeding giving rise to any Indemnified Costs, this Section 7.05 applies whether any such investigation, litigation or proceeding is brought by the Administrative Agent, any Lender or a third party.

46

SECTION 7.06. Successor Agents. The Administrative Agent or the Documentation Agent may resign at any time by giving written notice thereof to the Lenders and the Borrower and may be removed at any time with or without cause by the Required Lenders. Upon any such resignation or removal, the Required Lenders shall have the right to appoint a successor Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent, as the case may be, with the approval of the Borrower so long as no Event of Default exists, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed. If no successor Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent, as the case may be, shall have been so appointed by the Required Lenders, and shall have accepted such appointment, within 30 days after the retiring Administrative Agent's or Documentation Agent agent or Documentation Agent may, on behalf of the Lenders, with the approval of the Borrower, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, appoint a successor Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent, as the case may be, which shall be a commercial bank organized under the laws of the United States of America or of any State thereof and having a combined capital and surplus of at least \$500,000,000. Upon the acceptance of any appointment as Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent hereunder by a successor Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent shall the retiring Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent, and the retiring Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent, the provisions of this Article VII shall inure to its

SECTION 7.07. <u>Documentation Agent</u>. The Documentation Agent shall not have any duty in connection with this Agreement and the other Loan Documents except as expressly set forth herein or in the other Loan Documents.

ARTICLE VIII

MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 8.01. Amendments, Etc. No amendment or waiver of any provision of this Agreement or the Revolving Credit Notes, nor consent to any departure by the Borrower therefrom, shall in any event be effective unless the same shall be in writing and signed by the Required Lenders, and then such waiver or consent shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which given; provided, however, that no amendment, waiver or consent shall, unless in writing and signed by all the Lenders (other than the Designated Bidders), do any of the following: (a) waive any of the conditions specified in Section 3.01, 3.02 or 3.03, (b) except as permitted in accordance with Section 2.16, increase the Commitments of the Lenders or subject the Lenders to any additional obligations, (c) reduce the principal of, or interest on, the Revolving Credit Notes or any fees or other amounts payable hereunder, (d) except as permitted in accordance with Section 2.16, postpone any date fixed for any payment of principal of, or interest on, the Revolving Credit Notes or any fees or other amounts payable

47

hereunder, (e) change the percentage of the Commitments or of the aggregate unpaid principal amount of the Revolving Credit Notes, or the number of Lenders, that shall be required for the Lenders or any of them to take any action hereunder, (f) except as permitted in accordance with Section 5.02(d), release any Guarantor under the Guaranty or (g) amend this Section 8.01; and *provided further* that no amendment, waiver or consent shall, unless in writing and signed by the Administrative Agent or the Documentation Agent in addition to the Lenders required above to take such action, affect the rights or duties of the Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent, as the case may be, under this Agreement or any Note.

SECTION 8.02. Notices, Etc. All notices and other communications provided for hereunder shall be in writing (including telecopier, telegraphic or telex communication) and mailed, telecopied, telegraphed, telexed or delivered, if to the Borrower, at its address at 55 Glenlake Parkway, N.E., Atlanta, Georgia 30328, Attention: Financial Resources Department (telecopier number (404) 828-6562); if to any Initial Lender, at its Domestic Lending Office specified opposite its name on Schedule I hereto; if to any other Lender, at its Domestic Lending Office specified in the Assignment and Acceptance pursuant to which it became a Lender; if to the Administrative Agent, at its address at Two Penns Way, Suite 200, New Castle, Delaware 19720, Attention: Pat Dimery (telecopier number (302) 894-6120), with a copy to 400 Perimeter Center Terrace, Suite 600, Atlanta, Georgia 30346, Attention: Bruce Simmons (telecopier number (770) 668-8137); if to B of A as Co-Documentation Agent, at its address at 18 mark One Plaza, Chicago, Illinois 60670, Attention: Betty Canales (telecopier number (214) 290-8377); and if to Bank One as Co-Documentation Agent, at its address at 18 mak One Plaza, Chicago, Illinois 60670, Attention: Mark Gibbs (telecopier number (312) 732-1117); or, as to the Borrower or the Administrative Agent, at such other address as shall be designated by such party in a written notice to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent. All such notices and communications shall, when mailed, telecopied, telegraphed or telexed, be effective when deposited in the mails, telecopied, delivered to the telegraph company or confirmed by telex answerback, respectively, except that notices and communications to the Administrative Agent pursuant to Article II, III or VII shall not be effective until received by the Administrative Agent.

SECTION 8.03. No Waiver; Remedies. No failure on the part of any Lender, the Administrative Agent or the Documentation Agent to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right, power or privilege hereunder or under any Note shall operate as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, power or privilege preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. The remedies herein provided are cumulative and not exclusive of any remedies provided by law.

SECTION 8.04. <u>Costs and Expenses</u>. (a) The Borrower agrees to pay on demand all reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses of the Administrative Agent and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. in connection with the preparation, execution, delivery, administration, modification and amendment of this Agreement, the Notes, each other Loan Document and the other documents to be delivered hereunder, including, without limitation, (i) all due diligence, syndication (including printing, distribution and bank meetings), transportation, computer, duplication, appraisal, consultant, and audit expenses and (ii) the reasonable fees and expenses of counsel for the Administrative Agent with respect thereto and with respect to

48

advising the Administrative Agent as to its rights and responsibilities under this Agreement. The Borrower further agrees to pay on demand all costs and expenses of the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent and the Lenders, if any (including, without limitation, reasonable counsel fees and expenses), in connection with the enforcement (whether through negotiations, legal proceedings or otherwise) of this Agreement, the Notes, each other Loan Document and the other documents to be delivered hereunder, including, without limitation, reasonable fees and expenses of counsel for the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent and each Lender in connection with the enforcement of rights under this Section 8.04(a).

- (b) The Borrower agrees to defend, protect, indemnify and hold harmless the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent, the Arranger, each Lender, each of their Affiliates and their officers, directors, employees, agents and advisors (each, an "Indemnified Party") from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses (other than loss of profits), damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, claims, costs, expenses and disbursements of any kind or nature whatsoever (excluding any taxes and including, without limitation, the reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel for such Indemnified Party in connection with any investigative, administrative or judicial proceeding, whether or not such Indemnified Party shall be designated a party thereto), imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against such Indemnified Party in any manner relating to or arising out of this Agreement, the Notes, the other Loan Documents, any of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, the Commitments, the use of proceeds, or any act, event or transaction related or attendant thereto (collectively, the "Indemnified Matters"); provided, however, the Borrower shall have no obligation to an Indemnified Party hereunder with respect to Indemnified Matters directly caused by or directly resulting from the willful misconduct or gross negligence of such Indemnified Party, as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction.
- (c) If any payment of principal of, or Conversion of, any Eurodollar Rate Advance or LIBO Rate Advance is made by the Borrower to or for the account of a Lender other than on the last day of the Interest Period for such Advance, as a result of a payment or Conversion pursuant to Section 2.08(c) or (d), 2.10 or 2.12, acceleration of the maturity of the Notes pursuant to Section 6.01 or for any other reason, or by an Eligible Assignee to a Lender other than on the last day of the Interest Period for such Advance upon an assignment of rights and obligations under this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.07 as a result of a demand by the Borrower pursuant to Section 8.07(a), the Borrower shall, upon demand by such Lender (with a copy of such demand to the Administrative Agent), pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of such Lender any amounts required to compensate such Lender for any additional losses, costs or expenses that it may reasonably incur as a result of such payment or Conversion, including, without limitation, any loss (including loss of anticipated profits), cost or expense incurred by reason of the liquidation or reemployment of deposits or other funds acquired by any Lender to fund or maintain such Advance.

SECTION 8.05. <u>Right of Setoff</u>. Upon (a) the occurrence and during the continuance of any Event of Default and (b) the making of the request or the granting of the consent specified by Section 6.01 to authorize the Administrative Agent to declare the Notes due and payable pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.01, each Lender and each of its Affiliates is hereby authorized at any time and from time to time, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to set off and apply any and all deposits (general or special, time or demand, provisional or final, but

49

excluding any accounts designated as collateral accounts securing other Debt) at any time held and other indebtedness at any time owing by such Lender or such Affiliate to or for the credit or the account of the Borrower against any and all of the obligations of the Borrower now or hereafter existing under this Agreement and the Note held by such Lender, whether or not such Lender shall have made any demand under this Agreement or such Note and although such obligations may be unmatured. Each Lender agrees promptly to notify the Borrower after any such setoff and application, *provided* that the failure to give such notice shall not affect the validity of such setoff and application. The rights of each Lender and its Affiliates under this Section 8.05 are in addition to other rights and remedies (including, without limitation, other rights of setoff) that such Lender and its Affiliates may have.

SECTION 8.06. <u>Binding Effect</u>. This Agreement shall become effective (other than Sections 2.01 and 2.03, which shall only become effective upon satisfaction of the conditions precedent set forth in Sections 3.01 and 3.03) when it shall have been executed by the Borrower, the Administrative Agent and the Documentation Agent and when the Administrative Agent shall have been notified by each Initial Lender that such Initial Lender has executed it and thereafter shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent and each Lender and their respective successors and assigns, except that the Borrower shall not have the right to assign its rights hereunder or any interest herein without the prior written consent of the Lenders.

SECTION 8.07. <u>Assignments, Designations and Participations</u>. (a) Each Lender (other than a Designated Bidder) may, with the consent of the Borrower, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed, and shall, so long as no Default has occurred and is continuing and if demanded by the Borrower (pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.17) upon at least five Business Days' notice to such Lender and the Administrative Agent, assign to one or more Persons all or a portion of its rights and obligations under this Agreement (including, without limitation, all or a portion of its Commitment, the Revolving Credit Advances owing to it and the Revolving Credit Note or Notes held by it); *provided, however*, that:

- (i) each such assignment shall be of a constant, and not a varying, percentage of all rights and obligations under this Agreement (other than any right to make Competitive Bid Advances, Competitive Bid Advances owing to it or Competitive Bid Notes),
- (ii) except in the case of an assignment to a Person that, immediately prior to such assignment, was a Lender or an assignment of all of a Lender's rights and obligations under this Agreement, the amount of the Commitment of the assigning Lender being assigned pursuant to each such assignment (determined as of the date of the Assignment and Acceptance with respect to such assignment) shall in no event be less than \$10,000,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000,000 in excess thereof,
 - (iii) each such assignment shall be to an Eligible Assignee,
- (iv) each such assignment made as a result of a demand by the Borrower pursuant to this Section 8.07(a) shall be arranged by the Borrower at the Borrower's expense, shall be to an Eligible Assignee acceptable to the Administrative Agent (which

50

acceptance shall not be unreasonably withheld) and shall be either an assignment of all of the rights and obligations of the assigning Lender under this Agreement or an assignment of a portion of such rights and obligations made concurrently with another such assignment or other such assignments that together cover all of the rights and obligations of the assigning Lender under this Agreement,

- (v) no Lender shall be obligated to make any such assignment as a result of a demand by the Borrower pursuant to this Section 8.07(a) unless and until such Lender shall have received one or more payments from either the Borrower or one or more Eligible Assignees in an aggregate amount at least equal to the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Advances owing to such Lender, together with accrued interest thereon to the date of payment of such principal amount and all other amounts payable to such Lender under this Agreement,
- (vi) the parties to each such assignment shall execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent, for its acceptance and recording in the Register, an Assignment and Acceptance, together with any Revolving Credit Note subject to such assignment and a processing and recordation fee of \$3,000,
- (vii) if such assignment shall be made as a result of a demand by the Borrower pursuant to this Section 8.07(a) to an assignee that, immediately prior to such assignment, was neither a Lender nor an Affiliate of a Lender, an administrative fee of \$3,000 shall have been paid by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent upon its demand,
- (viii) notwithstanding any other provision set forth in this Agreement, a Lender may assign to any of its Affiliates all or a portion of its rights and obligations under this Agreement (including, without limitation, all or a portion of its Commitment, the Revolving Credit Advances owing to it and the Revolving Credit Note or Notes held by it) upon notice to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent, with or without the consent of the Borrower or the Administrative Agent

(but without releasing the obligations of the assigning Lender hereunder except with the written consent of the Borrower), so long as such assignment is otherwise in compliance with this Agreement, and

(ix) notwithstanding any other provision set forth in this Agreement, a Lender may assign to any assignee all or a portion of its rights and obligations under this Agreement (including, without limitation, all or a portion of its Commitment, the Revolving Credit Advances owing to it and the Revolving Credit Note or Notes held by it) upon notice to the Administrative Agent, with or without the consent of the Borrower, so long as any Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing.

Upon such execution, delivery, acceptance and recording, from and after the effective date specified in each Assignment and Acceptance, (A) the assignee thereunder shall be a party hereto and, to the extent that rights and obligations hereunder have been assigned to it pursuant to such Assignment and Acceptance, have the rights and obligations of a Lender hereunder and (B) the Lender assignor thereunder shall, to the extent that rights and obligations hereunder have been assigned by it pursuant to such Assignment and Acceptance, relinquish its rights and be released from its obligations under this Agreement (and, in the case of an Assignment and Acceptance

51

covering all or the remaining portion of an assigning Lender's rights and obligations under this Agreement, such Lender shall cease to be a party hereto).

- (b) By executing and delivering an Assignment and Acceptance, the Lender assignor thereunder and the assignee thereunder confirm to and agree with each other and the other parties hereto as follows:
 - (i) other than as provided in such Assignment and Acceptance, such assigning Lender makes no representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with respect to any statements, warranties or representations made in or in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan Document or the execution, legality, validity, enforceability, genuineness, sufficiency or value of this Agreement or any other Loan Document or any other instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto or thereto;
 - (ii) such assigning Lender makes no representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with respect to the financial condition of any Loan Party or the performance or observance by any Loan Party of any of its obligations under this Agreement, any other Loan Document or any other instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto or thereto;
 - (iii) such assignee confirms that it has received a copy of this Agreement and each other Loan Document, together with copies of the financial statements referred to in Section 4.01 and such other documents and information as it has deemed appropriate to make its own credit analysis and decision to enter into such Assignment and Acceptance;
 - (iv) such assignee will, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent, such assigning Lender or any other Lender and based on such documents and information as it shall deem appropriate at the time, continue to make its own credit decisions in taking or not taking action under this Agreement or any other Loan Document;
 - (v) such assignee confirms that it is an Eligible Assignee;
 - (vi) such assignee appoints and authorizes (A) the Administrative Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise such powers and discretion under this Agreement and each other Loan Document as are delegated to the Administrative Agent by the terms hereof and thereof, together with such powers and discretion as are reasonably incidental thereto and (B) the Documentation Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise such powers and discretion under this Agreement and each other Loan Document as are delegated to the Documentation Agent by the terms hereof and thereof, together with such powers and discretion as are reasonably incidental thereto; and
 - (vii) such assignee agrees that it will perform in accordance with their terms all of the obligations that by the terms of this Agreement and each other Loan Document are required to be performed by it as a Lender.

- Upon its receipt of an Assignment and Acceptance executed by an assigning Lender and an assignee representing that it is an Eligible Assignee, together with any Revolving Credit Note or Notes subject to such assignment, the Administrative Agent shall, if such Assignment and Acceptance has been completed and is in substantially the form of Exhibit C hereto and has been consented to by the Borrower if such consent is required, (i) accept such Assignment and Acceptance, (ii) record the information contained therein in the Register and (iii) give prompt notice thereof to the Borrower. Within five Business Days after its receipt of such notice, the Borrower, at its own expense, shall execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent in exchange for the surrendered Revolving Credit Note a new Note to the order of such Eligible Assignee in an amount equal to the Commitment assumed by it pursuant to such Assignment and Acceptance and, if the assigning Lender has retained a Commitment hereunder, a new Revolving Credit Note to the order of the assigning Lender in an amount equal to the Commitment retained by it hereunder. Such new Revolving Credit Note or Notes shall be in an aggregate principal amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of such surrendered Revolving Credit Note or Notes, shall be dated the effective date of such Assignment and Acceptance and shall otherwise be in substantially the form of Exhibit A-1 hereto.
- (d) Each Lender (other than the Designated Bidders) may designate one or more banks or other entities to have a right to make Competitive Bid Advances as a Lender pursuant to Section 2.03; provided, however, that (i) no such Lender shall be entitled to make more than five such designations, (ii) each such Lender making one or more of such designations shall retain the right to make Competitive Bid Advances as a Lender pursuant to Section 2.03, (iii) each such designation shall be to a Designated Bidder and (iv) the parties to each such designation shall execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent, for its acceptance and recording in the Register, a Designation Agreement. Upon such execution, delivery, acceptance and recording, from and after the effective date specified in each Designation Agreement, the designee thereunder shall be a party hereto with a right to make Competitive Bid Advances as a Lender pursuant to Section 2.03 and the obligations related thereto.
- (e) By executing and delivering a Designation Agreement, the Lender making the designation thereunder and its designee thereunder confirm and agree with each other and the other parties hereto as follows:
 - (i) such Lender makes no representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with respect to any statements, warranties or representations made in or in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan Document or the execution, legality, validity, enforceability, genuineness, sufficiency or value of this Agreement or any other Loan Document or any other instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto or thereto;
 - (ii) such Lender makes no representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with respect to the financial condition of any Loan Party or the performance or observance by any Loan Party of any of its obligations under this Agreement or any other Loan Document or any other instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto or thereto;

- (iii) such designee confirms that it has received a copy of this Agreement and each other Loan Document, together with copies of the financial statements referred to in Section 4.01 and such other documents and information as it has deemed appropriate to make its own credit analysis and decision to enter into such Designation Agreement;
- (iv) such designee will, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent, such designating Lender or any other Lender and based on such documents and information as it shall deem appropriate at the time, continue to make its own credit decisions in taking or not taking action under this Agreement or any other Loan Document;
 - (v) such designee confirms that it is a Designated Bidder;
- (vi) such designee appoints and authorizes (A) the Administrative Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise such powers and discretion under this Agreement and each other Loan Document as are delegated to the Administrative Agent by the terms hereof and thereof, together with such powers and discretion as are reasonably incidental thereto and (B) the Documentation Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise such powers and discretion under this Agreement and each other Loan Document as are delegated to the Documentation Agent by the terms hereof and thereof, together with such powers and discretion as are reasonably incidental thereto; and
- (vii) such designee agrees that it will perform in accordance with their terms all of the obligations which by the terms of this Agreement and each other Loan Document are required to be performed by it as a Lender.
- (f) Upon its receipt of a Designation Agreement executed by a designating Lender and a designee representing that it is a Designated Bidder, the Administrative Agent shall, if such Designation Agreement has been completed and is substantially in the form of Exhibit D hereto, (i) accept such Designation Agreement, (ii) record the information contained therein in the Register and (iii) give prompt notice thereof to the Borrower.
- The Administrative Agent shall maintain at its address referred to in Section 8.02 a copy of each Assignment and Acceptance and each Designation Agreement delivered to and accepted by it and a register for the recordation of the names and addresses of the Lenders and, with respect to Lenders (other than Designated Bidders), the Commitment of, and principal amount of the Advances owing to, each Lender from time to time (the "Register"). The entries in the Register shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error, and the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent and the Lenders shall treat only the Person whose name is recorded in the Register as a Lender hereunder for all purposes of this Agreement and each other Loan Document. The Register shall be available for inspection by the Borrower or any Lender at any reasonable time and from time to time upon reasonable prior notice. The Administrative Agent shall be considered to act as the agent of the Borrower in connection with its duties in respect of the Register.

- (h) Each Lender may sell participations to one or more banks or other entities in or to all or a portion of its rights and obligations under this Agreement (including, without limitation, all or a portion of its Commitment, the Advances owing to it and the Note or Notes held by it); provided, however, that (i) such Lender's obligations under this Agreement (including, without limitation, its Commitment to the Borrower hereunder) shall remain unchanged, (ii) such Lender shall remain solely responsible to the other parties hereto for the performance of such obligations, (iii) such Lender shall remain the holder of any such Note for all purposes of this Agreement, (iv) the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent and the other Lenders shall continue to deal solely and directly with such Lender in connection with such Lender's rights and obligations under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents and (v) no participant under any such participation shall have any right to approve any amendment or waiver of any provision of this Agreement, any Note or any other Loan Document, or any consent to any departure by the Borrower therefrom, except to the extent that such amendment, waiver or consent would reduce the principal of, or interest on, the Notes or any fees or other amounts payable hereunder, in each case to the extent subject to such participation, or postpone any date fixed for any payment of principal of, or interest on, the Notes or any fees or other amounts payable hereunder, in each case to the extent subject to such participation.
- (i) Any Lender may, in connection with any assignment, designation or participation or proposed assignment, designation or participation pursuant to this Section 8.07, disclose to the assignee, designee or participant or proposed assignee, designee or participant, any information relating to any Loan Party furnished to such Lender by or on behalf of the Borrower; *provided* that, prior to any such disclosure, the assignee, designee or participant or proposed assignee, designee or participant shall agree to preserve the confidentiality of any Confidential Information relating to any Loan Party received by it from such Lender.
- (j) Notwithstanding any other provision set forth in this Agreement, any Lender may at any time create a security interest in all or any portion of its rights under this Agreement (including, without limitation, the Advances owing to it and the Note or Notes held by it) in favor of any Federal Reserve Bank in accordance with Regulation A.
- SECTION 8.08. Confidentiality. None of the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent, or any Lender shall disclose any Confidential Information to any Person without the consent of the Borrower, other than (a) to the Administrative Agent's, the Documentation Agent's, or such Lender's Affiliates and their officers, directors, employees, agents, advisors, auditors and accountants and to actual or prospective assignees and participants, and then only on a confidential basis, (b) as required by any law, rule or regulation or judicial process, (c) to any rating agency when required by it, provided that, prior to any such disclosure, such rating agency shall undertake to preserve the confidentiality of any Confidential Information relating to the Borrower received by it from such Lender and (d) as requested or required by any state, federal or foreign authority or examiner regulating banks or banking. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Agents and the Lenders may disclose to any and all Persons, without limitation of any kind, the U.S. tax treatment and tax structure of the transactions contemplated hereby and all materials of any kind (including opinions or other tax analyses) that are provided to the Agents or any Lender relating to such U.S. tax treatment and tax structure.

5 4

SECTION 8.09. Governing Law. This Agreement and the Notes shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.

SECTION 8.10. Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page to this Agreement by telecopier shall be effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart of this Agreement.

SECTION 8.11. <u>Jurisdiction, Etc.</u> (a) Each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably and unconditionally submits, for itself and its property, to the nonexclusive jurisdiction of any New York State court or federal court of the United States of America sitting in New York City, and any appellate court from any thereof, in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement or any other Loan Document to which it is a party, or for recognition or enforcement of any judgment, and each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably and unconditionally agrees that all claims in respect of any such action or proceeding may be heard and determined in any such New York State or, to the extent permitted by law, in such federal court. Each of the parties hereto agrees that a final judgment in any such action or proceeding shall be conclusive and may be enforced in other jurisdictions by suit on the judgment or in any other manner provided by law. Nothing in this Agreement shall affect any right that any party may otherwise have to bring any action or proceeding relating to this Agreement or any other Loan Document to which it is a party in the courts of any jurisdiction.

	56
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have cause authorized, as of the date first above written.	sed this Amendment and Restatement to be executed by their respective officers thereunto duly
	UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC., a Delaware corporation, as Borrower
	By
	Name: Title:
	UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC., a New York corporation, as Guarante
	Ву
	Name: Title:
	UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC., an Ohio corporation, as Guarantor
	Ву
	Name: Title:
	UNITED PARCEL SERVICE CO., a Delaware corporation, as Guarantor
	Ву
	Name: Title:
	THE AGENTS
	CITIBANK, N.A., as Administrative Agent and Syndication Agent
	By
	Name: Title:
	BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., as Documentation Agent
	Ву
	Name: Title:
	Title:
	BANK ONE, NA as Documentation Agent
	Ву
	Name: Title:
	CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS INC.
	as Arranger
	By
	Name: Title:

THE INITIAL LENDERS

CITIBANK, N.A., as Lender

By Name: Title:	
[type or print legal name of lender]	, as Lender
By Name: Title:	

SCHEDULE I LIST OF APPLICABLE LENDING OFFICES

Name of Lender	Commitment	Domestic Lending Office	Eurodollar Lending Office
Citibank, N.A. Bank of America, N.A.	\$125,000,000 \$100,000,000	Citibank, N.A. 2 Penns Way Suite 200 New Castle, DE 19720 Attn: Pat Dimery T: (302) 894-6023 F: (302) 894-6120 Bank of America	Citibank, N.A. 2 Penns Way Suite 200 New Castle, DE 19720 Attn: Pat Dimery T: (302 894-6023 F: (302 894-6120 Bank of America
Bank of America, N.A.	\$100,000,000	901 Main Street, 14 th Floor Dallas, TX 75202 Attn: Betty Canales T: (214) 209-2131 F: (214) 290-8377	901 Main Street, 14 th Floor Dallas, TX 75202 Attn: Betty Canales T: (214) 209-2131 F: (214) 290-8377
Bank One, NA	\$100,000,000	Bank One, NA 1 Bank One Plaza Chicago, IL 60670 Attn: Mark Gibbs T: (312) 732-7624 F: (312) 732-1117	Bank One, NA 1 Bank One Plaza Chicago, IL 60670 Attn: Mark Gibbs T: (312) 732-7624 F: (312) 732-1117
ABN AMRO Bank, N.V.	\$75,000,000	ABN AMRO Bank N.V. 208 South LaSalle St., Suite 1500 Chicago, IL 60604-1003 Attn: Loan Administration T: (312) 992-5160 F: (312) 992-5155	ABN AMRO Bank N.V. 208 South LaSalle St., Suite 1500 Chicago, IL 60604-1003 Attn: Loan Administration T: (312) 992-5160 F: (312) 992-5155
JP Morgan Chase Bank	\$75,000,000	JP Morgan Chase Bank 1 Chase Manhattan Plaza 8th Floor New York, NY 10081 Attn: May Fong T: (212) 552-7314 F: (212) 552-5650	JP Morgan Chase Bank 1 Chase Manhattan Plaza 8th Floor New York, NY 10081 Attn: May Fong T: (212) 552-7314 F: (212) 552-5650
BNP Paribas	\$75,000,000	BNP Paribas 1200 Smith Street, Suite 3100 Houston, TX 77002 Attn: Leah Evans-Hughes T: (713) 982-1126 F: (713) 659-5305	BNP Paribas 1200 Smith Street, Suite 3100 Houston, TX 77002 Attn: Leah Evans-Hughes T: (713) 982-1126 F: (713) 659-5305
Mellon Bank, N.A.	\$75,000,000	Mellon Bank, N.A. One Mellon Bank Center Pittsburgh, PA 15258-0001 Attn: Daniel Lenckos T: (412) 234-0733 F: (412) 236-1914	Mellon Bank, N.A. One Mellon Bank Center Pittsburgh, PA 15258-0001 Attn: Daniel Lenckos T: (412) 234-0733 F: (412) 236-1914

Name of Lender	Commitment	Domestic Lending Office	Eurodollar Lending Office
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association	\$75,000,000	Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 201 Third Street — 8th Floor MAC A0187-081 San Francisco, CA 94103 Attn: Maria Belle Garcia T: (415) 477-5471 F: (415) 979-0675	Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 201 Third Street — 8th Floor MAC A0187-081 San Francisco, CA 94103 Attn: Maria Belle Garcia T: (415) 477-5471 F: (415) 979-0675
Barclays Bank Plc	\$50,000,000	Barclays Bank Plc 222 Broadway New York, NY 10038 Attn: Eddie Cotto Jr. T: (212) 412-3701 F: (212) 412-5306	Barclays Bank Plc 222 Broadway New York, NY 10038 Attn: Eddie Cotto Jr. T: (212) 412-3701 F: (212) 412-5306
Dresdner Bank AG, New York and Grand Cayman Branches	\$50,000,000	Dresdner Bank 1301 Avenue of the Americas New York, NY 10019 Attn: Deborah Carlson T: (212) 895-1763 F: (212) 895-1766	Dresdner Bank 1301 Avenue of the Americas New York, NY 10019 Attn: Deborah Carlson T: (212) 895-1763 F: (212) 895-1766
Royal Bank of Canada	\$50,000,000	Royal Bank of Canada, New York Branch One Liberty Plaza, 3rd Floor New York, NY 10006-1404 Attn: Manager, Loans Administration T: (212) 428-6322 F: (212) 428-2372	Royal Bank of Canada, New York Branch One Liberty Plaza, 3rd Floor New York, NY 10006-1404 Attn: Manager, Loans Administration T: (212) 428-6322 F: (212) 428-2372
Standard Chartered Bank	\$50,000,000	Standard Chartered Bank 1 Madison Avenue Third Floor New York, NY 10010-3603 Attn: Vijayant Jain T: (212) 667-0499 F: (212) 667-0251	Standard Chartered Bank 1 Madison Avenue Third Floor New York, NY 10010-3603 Attn: Vijayant Jain T: (212) 667-0499 F: (212) 667-0251
Credit Suisse First Boston, acting through its Cayman Islands branch	\$25,000,000	Credit Suisse First Boston 11 Madison Avenue New York, NY 10010-3629 Attn: Sonya Shillingford T: (212) 538-3361 F: (212) 538-6851	Credit Suisse First Boston 11 Madison Avenue New York, NY 10010-3629 Attn: Sonya Shillingford T: (212) 538-3361 F: (212) 538-6851
Merrill Lynch Bank USA	\$25,000,000	Merrill Lynch Bank USA 15 W. South Temple, Suite 300 Salt Lake City, UT 84101 Attn: Butch Alder T: (801) 526-8324 F: (801) 531-7470	Merrill Lynch Bank USA 15 W. South Temple, Suite 300 Salt Lake City, UT 84101 Attn: Butch Alder T: (801) 526-8324 F: (801) 531-7470
UBS AG, Stamford Branch	\$25,000,000	UBS AG, Stamford Branch 677 Washington Blvd. Stamford, CT 06901 Attn: Vladimira Holeckova T: (203) 719-6403 F: (203) 719-3888	UBS AG, Stamford Branch 677 Washington Blvd. Stamford, CT 06901 Attn: Vladimira Holeckova T: (203) 719-6403 F: (203) 719-3888

Name of Lender	Commitment	Domestic Lending Office	Eurodollar Lending Office
State Street Bank and Trust	\$25,000,000	State Street Bank and Trust	State Street Bank and Trust
Company		Company	Company
		2 Avenue De Lafayette	2 Avenue De Lafayette
		Boston, MA 02111	Boston, MA 02111
		Attn: Ms. C. Jaynelle Landy	Attn: Ms. C. Jaynelle Landy
		T: (617) 662-3677	(617) 662-3677
		F: (617) 662-4201	F: (617) 662-4201

TOTAL OF COMMITMENTS

\$1,000,000,000

U.S. \$1,000,000,000

CREDIT AGREEMENT

(Five-Year Facility)

Dated as of April 24, 2003

Among

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC.

as Borrower

THE INITIAL LENDERS NAMED HEREIN

as Initial Lenders

and

CITIGROUP GLOBAL MARKETS INC.

as Arranger

and

BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.

and

BANK ONE, NA

as Co-Documentation Agents

and

CITIBANK, N.A.

as Administrative Agent and Syndication Agent

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND ACCOUNTING TERMS

SECTION 1.01. Certain Defined Terms SECTION 1.02. Computation of Time Periods SECTION 1.03. Accounting Terms

ARTICLE II

AMOUNTS AND TERMS OF THE ADVANCES

SECTION 2.01. The Revolving Credit Advances

SECTION 2.02. Making the Revolving Credit Advances
SECTION 2.03. The Competitive Bid Advances

SECTION 2.04. Fees
SECTION 2.05. Termination or Reduction of the Commitments SECTION 2.06. Repayment of Revolving Credit Advances

SECTION 2.07. Interest on Revolving Credit Advances

SECTION 2.08. Interest Rate Determination

SECTION 2.09. Optional Conversion of Revolving Credit Advances

SECTION 2.10. Optional Prepayments of Advances

SECTION 2.11. Increased Costs

SECTION 2.12. Illegality

SECTION 2.13. Payments and Computations SECTION 2.14. Taxes

SECTION 2.15. Sharing of Payments, Etc

SECTION 2.16. Extensions of Termination Date

SECTION 2.17. Substitution of Lender

ARTICLE III

CONDITIONS TO EFFECTIVENESS AND LENDING

SECTION 3.01. Conditions Precedent to Effectiveness of Sections 2.01 and 2.03 SECTION 3.02. Conditions Precedent to Each Revolving Credit Borrowing

SECTION 3.03. Conditions Precedent to Each Competitive Bid Borrowing

SECTION 3.04. Determinations Under Section 3.01

SECTION 3.05. Labor Dispute

ARTICLE V

COVENANTS OF THE BORROWER

SECTION 5.01. Affirmative Covenants SECTION 5.02. Negative Covenants

ARTICLE VI

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

SECTION 6.01. Events of Default

ARTICLE VII

THE AGENTS

SECTION 7.01. Authorization and Action

SECTION 7.02. Administrative Agent's Reliance, Etc

SECTION 7.03. Citibank, B of A, Bank One and Their Affiliates

SECTION 7.04. Lender Credit Decision

SECTION 7.05. Indemnification

SECTION 7.06. Successor Agents SECTION 7.07. Documentation Agent

ARTICLE VIII

MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 8.01. Amendments, Etc SECTION 8.02. Notices, Etc

SECTION 8.03. No Waiver; Remedies SECTION 8.04. Costs and Expenses

SECTION 8.05. Right of Setoff

SECTION 8.06. Binding Effect

SECTION 8.07. Assignments, Designations and Participations

SECTION 8.08. Confidentiality

SECTION 8.09. Governing Law

SECTION 8.10. Execution in Counterparts

SECTION 8.11. Jurisdiction, Etc

SCHEDULE

Schedule I — Applicable Lending Offices

ii

EXHIBITS

Exhibit A-1 —	Form of Revolving Credit Note
Exhibit A-2 —	Form of Competitive Rid Note

Exhibit B-1 — Form of Notice of Revolving Credit Borrowing

Exhibit B-2 -Form of Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing

Exhibit C ---Form of Assignment and Acceptance Exhibit D -Form of Designation Agreement

Exhibit E ---Form of Guaranty

Exhibit F -Form of Indemnity Agreement

Exhibit G -Form of Opinion of Counsel for the Borrower

Exhibit H -Debenture Indenture

iii

CREDIT AGREEMENT

(Five-Year Facility)

Dated as of April 24, 2003

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC., a Delaware corporation (the "Borrower"), the banks, financial institutions and other institutional lenders (collectively, the "Initial Lenders") listed on the signature pages hereof, Citibank, N.A. ("Citibank"), as administrative agent (in such capacity, the "Administrative Agent") and as syndication agent (in such capacity, the "Syndication") Agent") for the Lenders (as hereinafter defined), Bank of America, N.A. ("B of A"), and Bank One, NA ("Bank One"), as co-documentation agents (in such capacity, the "Co-Documentation Agents") for such Lenders, and Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as sole arranger and book manager (in such capacity, the "Arranger") under the Loan Documents (as hereinafter defined), agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND ACCOUNTING TERMS

- "Administrative Agent" has the meaning specified in the recital of parties to this Agreement.
- "Administrative Agent's Account" means the account of the Administrative Agent maintained by the Administrative Agent at Citibank with its office at 399 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10043, Account No. 36852248, Attention: Lee Tang.
 - "Advance" means a Revolving Credit Advance or a Competitive Bid Advance, as the context may require.
- "Affiliate" means, as to any Person, any other Person that, directly or indirectly, controls, is controlled by or is under common control with such Person; provided, however, that Overseas Partners shall not be deemed to be an Affiliate of the Borrower.
 - "Agent" means the Administrative Agent or the Documentation Agent, as the context may require.
 - "Applicable Fee Percentage" means, as of any date, a percentage per annum determined by reference to the Public Debt Rating in effect on such date as set forth below:

Level 1 AA- / Aa3 or above	0.050%	
Level 2 Lower than Level 1 but at least A-/A3	0.075%	
Level 3 Lower than Level 2	0.100%	

"Applicable Lending Office" means, with respect to each Lender, such Lender's Domestic Lending Office in the case of a Base Rate Advance and such Lender's Eurodollar Lending Office in the case of a Eurodollar Rate Advance and, in the case of a Competitive Bid Advance, the office of such Lender notified by such Lender to the Administrative Agent and the Borrower as its Applicable Lending Office with respect to such Competitive Bid Advance.

"Applicable Margin" means, as of any date, a percentage per annum determined by reference to the Public Debt Rating in effect on such date as set forth below:

Public Debt Rating S&P/Moody's	Applicable Margin for Base Rate Advances	Applicable Margin for Eurodollar Rate Advances
Level 1		
AA- / Aa3 or above	0.00 %	0.100 %
Level 2		
Lower than Level 1 but at least A- / A3	0.00 %	0.175 %
Level 3		
Lower than Level 2	0.00 %	0.200 %

provided, however, that if as of any date of determination the aggregate principal amount of Advances outstanding exceeds 33% of the aggregate Commitments, the Applicable Margin for such date shall be the percentage per annum determined by reference to the Public Debt Rating in effect on such date as set forth above plus 0.05%.

- "Arranger" has the meaning specified in the recital of parties to this Agreement.
- "Assignment and Acceptance" means an assignment and acceptance entered into by a Lender and an Eligible Assignee, and accepted by the Administrative Agent, in substantially the form of Exhibit C hereto.
 - "Attributable Debt" has the meaning specified in the Debenture Indenture.
 - "B of A" has the meaning specified in the recital of the parties to this Agreement.

2

- "Bank One" has the meaning specified in the recital of the parties to this Agreement.
- "Base Rate" means a fluctuating interest rate per annum in effect from time to time, which rate per annum shall at all times be equal to the highest of:
 - (a) the rate of interest announced publicly by Citibank in New York, New York, from time to time, as Citibank's prime rate;
- (b) the sum (adjusted to the nearest 1/16 of 1% or, if there is no nearest 1/16 of 1%, to the next higher 1/16 of 1%) of (i) 1/2 of 1% per annum plus (ii) the rate obtained by dividing (A) the latest three-week moving average of secondary market morning offering rates in the United States for three-month certificates of deposit of major United States money market banks, such three-week moving average (adjusted to the basis of a year of 360 days) being determined weekly on each Monday (or, if such day is not a Business Day, on the next succeeding Business Day) for the three-week period ending on the previous Friday by Citibank on the basis of such rates reported by certificate of deposit dealers to and published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York or, if such publication shall be suspended or terminated, on the basis of quotations for such rates received by Citibank from three New York certificate of deposit dealers of recognized standing selected by Citibank, by (B) a percentage equal to 100% minus the average of the daily percentages specified during such three-week period by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (or any successor) for determining the maximum reserve requirement (including, but not limited to, any emergency, supplemental or other marginal reserve requirement) for Citibank with respect to liabilities consisting of or including (among other liabilities) three-month Dollar nonpersonal time deposits in the United States, plus (iii) the average during such three-week period of the annual assessment rates estimated by Citibank for determining the then current annual assessment payable by Citibank to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (or any successor) for insuring Dollar deposits of Citibank in the United States; and
 - (c) 1/2 of 1% per annum above the Federal Funds Rate.
- "Base Rate Advance" means a Revolving Credit Advance that bears interest as provided in Section 2.07(a)(i).
- "Beneficial Ownership" means beneficial ownership as determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 of the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act, as in effect on the date hereof.
 - "Borrower" has the meaning specified in the recital of parties to this Agreement.
 - "Borrower's Account" means the account of the Borrower designated in writing by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent from time to time.

- "Borrowing" means a Revolving Credit Borrowing or a Competitive Bid Borrowing, as the context may require.
- "Business Day" means a day of the year (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks are not required or authorized by law to close in New York City and, if the applicable Business Day relates to any Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances, on which dealings are carried on in the London interbank market.
- "Capital Lease Obligations" of any Person means all obligations of such Person to pay rent or other amounts under any lease of (or other arrangement conveying the right to use) real or personal property, or a combination thereof, which obligations are required to be classified and accounted for as capital leases on a balance sheet of such Person under GAAP.
 - "Change of Control" means the occurrence of any of the following:
 - (a) any Person or two or more Persons acting in concert other than a Permitted Person shall have acquired Beneficial Ownership, directly or indirectly, through a purchase,

merger or other transaction or series of transactions or otherwise, of (i) 10% or more of the shares of common stock of the Borrower or (ii) Voting Stock of the Borrower to which 10% or more of the total Voting Power of the Borrower is attributable; or

- (b) Permitted Persons shall not have Beneficial Ownership of (i) 75% or more of the shares of common stock of the Borrower or (ii) Voting Stock of the Borrower to which 75% or more of the total Voting Power of the Borrower is attributable.
- "Citibank" has the meaning specified in the recital of parties to this Agreement.
- "Co-Documentation Agents" has the meaning specified in the recital of parties to this Agreement.
- "Commitment" has the meaning specified in Section 2.01.
- "Competitive Bid Advance" means an advance by a Lender to the Borrower as part of a Competitive Bid Borrowing resulting from the auction bidding procedure described in Section 2.03 and refers to a Fixed Rate Advance or a LIBO Rate Advance, as the context may require.
- "Competitive Bid Borrowing" means a borrowing consisting of simultaneous Competitive Bid Advances from each of the Lenders whose offer to make one or more Competitive Bid Advances as part of such borrowing has been accepted by the Borrower under the auction bidding procedure described in Section 2.03.
 - "Competitive Bid Note" means a promissory note of the Borrower payable to the order of any Lender, in substantially the form of Exhibit A-2 hereto, evidencing the

4

indebtedness of the Borrower to such Lender resulting from a Competitive Bid Advance made by such Lender.

- "Competitive Bid Reduction" has the meaning specified in Section 2.01.
- "Confidential Information" means information that the Borrower furnishes to an Agent or any Lender in a writing designated as confidential, but does not include any such information that is or becomes generally available to the public or that is or becomes available to an Agent or such Lender from a source other than the Borrower (unless such Agent or such Lender knows that such information is not generally available to the public).
 - "Consolidated" refers to the consolidation of accounts in accordance with GAAP.
 - "Consolidated Net Tangible Assets" has the meaning specified in the Debenture Indenture.
 - "Consolidated Net Worth" means the shareholders' equity of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, computed in accordance with GAAP.
- "Convert", "Conversion" and "Converted" each refers to a conversion of Revolving Credit Advances of one Type into Revolving Credit Advances of the other Type pursuant to Section 2.08 or 2.09
- "Debenture Indenture" means the Indenture, dated as of December 1, 1989, between United Parcel Service of America, Inc. and Chemical Bank pursuant to which the 8-3/8% Debentures Due April 1, 2020 were issued, as in effect on the date of this Agreement (without giving effect to any amendment, supplement or other modification thereto, any repayment or covenant defeasance thereunder or any termination thereof), a copy of which is attached as Exhibit H hereto.
- "Debt" of any Person means, without duplication, (a) all obligations of such Person for borrowed money, or with respect to deposits with or advances of any kind to such Person, (b) all obligations of such Person upon which interest charges are customarily paid, (d) all obligations of such Person upon which interest charges are customarily paid, (d) all obligations of such Person upon which interest charges are customarily paid, (d) all obligations of such Person upon which interest charges are customarily paid, (d) all obligations of such Person use ment of such Person issued or assumed as the deferred purchase price of property or services, (f) all Debt of others secured by (or for which the holder of such Debt has an existing right, contingent or otherwise, to be secured by) any Lien on property or assets owned or acquired by such Person (other than Non-Recourse Debt), (g) all Guarantees by such Person of Debt of others, (h) all Capital Lease Obligations of such Person, (i) all obligations of such Person in respect of Hedge Agreements; provided, however, that at any given time the term "obligations" as used in this clause (i) shall only include the net amounts due and payable at such time under any such agreements and (j) all obligations of such Person as an account party in respect of letters of credit and bankers' acceptances. The Debt of any Person shall include the Debt of any partnership in which such Person is a general partner.

5

- "Declining Lender" has the meaning specified in Section 2.16.
- "Default" means any Event of Default or any event that would constitute an Event of Default but for the requirement that notice be given or time elapse or both.
- "<u>Designated Bidder</u>" means (a) an Eligible Assignee or (b) a special purpose corporation that is engaged in making, purchasing or otherwise investing in commercial loans in the ordinary course of its business and that issues (or the parent of which issues) commercial paper rated at least "Prime-1" (or the then equivalent grade) by Moody's or "A-1" (or the then equivalent grade) by S&P that, in either case, (i) is organized under the laws of the United States or any state thereof or the District of Columbia, (ii) shall have become a party to this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.07(d), (e) and (iii) is not otherwise a Lender.
- "Designation Agreement" means a designation agreement entered into by a Lender (other than a Designated Bidder) and a Designated Bidder, and accepted by the Administrative Agent, in substantially the form of Exhibit D hereto.
 - "Documentation Agent" means the Co-Documentation Agents.
 - "Dollars" and the sign "§" mean lawful currency of the United States of America.
- "Domestic Lending Office" means, with respect to any Lender, the office of such Lender specified as its "Domestic Lending Office" opposite its name on Schedule I hereto or in the Assignment and Acceptance pursuant to which it became a Lender, or such other office of such Lender as such Lender may from time to time specify to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent.
 - "Effective Date" has the meaning specified in Section 3.01.
- "Eligible Assignee" means (i) a Lender; (ii) an Affiliate of a Lender that is otherwise an Eligible Assignee; (iii) a commercial bank organized under the laws of the United States, or any state thereof, and having total assets in excess of \$1,000,000,000, calculated in accordance with the accounting principles prescribed by the regulatory authority applicable to such bank in its jurisdiction of organization; (iv) a commercial bank organized under the laws of any other country that is a member of the OECD, or a political subdivision of any such country, and having total assets in excess of \$1,000,000,000, calculated in accordance with the accounting principles prescribed by the regulatory authority applicable to such bank in its jurisdiction of organization, so long as such bank is active through a branch or agency located in the country in which it is organized or another country that is described in this clause (iv); (v) the central bank of any country that is a member of the OECD; (vi) a finance company, insurance company or other financial institution or fund (whether a corporation, partnership, trust or other entity) organized under the laws of the United States, or any state thereof, that is engaged in making, purchasing or otherwise investing in commercial loans in the ordinary course of its business and having total assets in excess of \$1,000,000,000, calculated in accordance with the accounting principles prescribed by the regulatory authority applicable to such entity in its jurisdiction of organization; provided, however, that

6

neither the Borrower nor an Affiliate of the Borrower shall qualify as an Eligible Assignee.

- "ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from time to time, and the regulations promulgated and rulings issued thereunder.
- "ERISA Affiliate" means any trade or business (whether or not incorporated) that is a member of a group of which the Borrower is a member and which is treated as a single employer under Section 414 of the Internal Revenue Code.
 - "Eurocurrency Liabilities" has the meaning assigned to that term in Regulation D.

time specify to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent.

"Eurodollar Rate" means, for any Interest Period for each Eurodollar Rate Advance comprising part of the same Revolving Credit Borrowing, an interest rate per annum equal to the rate per annum obtained by dividing (a) the average (rounded upward to the nearest whole multiple of 1/16 of 1% per annum, if such average is not such a multiple) of the rate per annum at which deposits in Dollars are offered by the principal office of each of the Reference Banks in London, England to prime banks in the London interbank market at 11:00 A.M. (London time) two Business Days before the first day of such Interest Period in an amount substantially equal to such Reference Bank's Eurodollar Rate Advance comprising part of such Revolving Credit Borrowing to be outstanding during such Interest Period and for a period equal to such Interest Period by (b) a percentage equal to 100% minus the Eurodollar Rate Reserve Percentage for such Interest Period. The Eurodollar Rate for any Interest Period for each Eurodollar Rate Advance comprising part of the same Revolving Credit Borrowing shall be determined by the Administrative Agent on the basis of applicable rates furnished to and received by the Administrative Agent from the Reference Banks two Business Days before the first day of such Interest Period, subject, however, to the provisions of Section 2.08(e).

"Eurodollar Rate Advance" means a Revolving Credit Advance that bears interest as provided in Section 2.07(a)(ii).

"Eurodollar Rate Reserve Percentage" means, for any Interest Period for all Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances comprising part of the same Borrowing, the reserve percentage applicable two Business Days before the first day of such Interest Period under regulations issued from time to time by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (or any successor) for determining the maximum reserve requirement (including, without limitation, any emergency, supplemental or other marginal reserve requirement) for a member bank of the Federal

7

Reserve System in New York City with respect to liabilities or assets consisting of or including Eurocurrency Liabilities (or with respect to any other category of liabilities that includes deposits by reference to which the interest rate on Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances is determined) having a term equal to such Interest Period.

"Event of Default" has the meaning specified in Section 6.01.

"Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from time to time, and the regulations promulgated and rulings issued thereunder.

"Existing Credit Facilities" means the credit facilities provided pursuant to (a) the Sixth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (364-Day Facility), dated as of April 25, 2002, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time prior to the date hereof, among United Parcel Service, Inc., a Delaware corporation, the banks, financial institutions and other institutional lenders parties thereto, Citibank, as administrative agent and syndication agent, Bank of America, N.A. and Bank One, NA as co-documentation agents, and Salomon Smith Barney Inc., as arranger thereunder and (b) the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (Five-year Facility) dated as of April 26, 2001, among United Parcel Service, Inc., a Delaware corporation, the banks, financial institutions and other institutional lenders parties thereto, Citibank, as administrative agent and syndication agent, and Salomon Smith Barney Inc. and Banc of America Securities LLC, as co-arrangers, and Bank of America, N.A. as documentation agent thereunder.

"Extending Lender" has the meaning specified in Section 2.16.

"Federal Funds Rate" means, for any period, a fluctuating interest rate per annum equal for each day during such period to the weighted average of the rates on overnight federal funds transactions with members of the Federal Reserve System arranged by federal funds brokers, as published for such day (or, if such day is not a Business Day, for the next preceding Business Day) by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or, if such rate is not so published for any day that is a Business Day, the average of the quotations for such day on such transactions received by the Administrative Agent from three federal funds brokers of recognized standing selected by it.

"Financial Officer," of any corporation means the chief financial officer, principal accounting officer, treasurer, assistant treasurer or controller of such corporation.

"Fiscal Year" means, with respect to any Person, the period commencing on January 1 and ending on December 31 of any calendar year.

"Fixed Rate Advances" has the meaning specified in Section 2.03(a)(i).

"GAAP" has the meaning specified in Section 1.03.

"Governmental Authority" means any federal, state, local or foreign court or governmental agency, authority, instrumentality or regulatory body.

"Guarantee" of or by any Person means any obligation, contingent or otherwise, of such Person guaranteeing or having the economic effect of guaranteeing any Debt of any other Person (the "primary obligor") in any manner, whether directly or indirectly, and including, without limitation, any obligation of such Person, direct or indirect, (a) to purchase or pay (or advance or supply funds for the purchase or payment of) such Debt or to purchase (or to advance or supply funds for the purchase of) any security for the payment of such Debt, (b) to purchase property, securities or services for the purpose of assuring the owner of such debt of the payment of such Debt or (c) to maintain working capital, equity capital or other financial statement condition or liquidity of the primary obligor so as to enable the primary obligor to pay such Debt; provided, however, that the term "Guarantee" shall not include endorsements for collection or deposit, in either case in the ordinary course of business.

"Guarantor" means each of UPSCO, UPSNY and UPSO.

"Guaranty" has the meaning specified in Section 3.01(e)(ii).

"Hedge Agreements" means interest rate swap, cap or collar agreements, interest rate future or option contracts, currency swap agreements, currency future or option contracts and other similar agreements.

"Incurrence" has the meaning specified in Section 5.02(a).

"Indemnified Party" has the meaning specified in Section 8.04(b).

"Indemnified Matters" has the meaning specified in Section 8.04(b).

"Indemnity Agreement" has the meaning specified in Section 3.01(e)(iii).

"Initial Lender" has the meaning specified in the recital of parties to this Agreement.

"Interest Period" means, for each Eurodollar Rate Advance comprising part of the same Revolving Credit Borrowing and each LIBO Rate Advance comprising part of the same Competitive Bid Borrowing, the period commencing on the date of such Eurodollar Rate Advance or LIBO Rate Advance or the date of the Conversion of any Base Rate Advance into such Eurodollar Rate Advance and ending on the last day of the period selected by the Borrower pursuant to the provisions below and, thereafter, each subsequent period commencing on the last day of the immediately preceding Interest Period and ending on the last day of the period selected by the Borrower pursuant to the provisions below. The duration of each such Interest Period shall be (a) in the case of Eurodollar Rate Advances, one, two, three or six months, as the Borrower may, upon notice received by the Administrative Agent not later than 11:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the third Business Day prior to the first day of such Interest Period, select and (b) in the case of LIBO Rate Advances, a minimum of seven days; provided, however, that:

- (i) the Borrower may not select any Interest Period that ends after the Termination Date;
- (ii) Interest Periods commencing on the same date for Eurodollar Rate Advances comprising part of the same Revolving Credit Borrowing or for LIBO Rate Advances comprising part of the same Competitive Bid Borrowing shall be of the same duration;
- (iii) whenever the last day of any Interest Period would otherwise occur on a day other than a Business Day, the last day of such Interest Period shall be extended to occur on the next succeeding Business Day, provided, however, that, if such extension would cause the last day of such Interest Period to occur in the next following calendar month, the last day of such Interest Period shall occur on the next preceding Business Day; and
- (iv) whenever the first day of (A) any Interest Period in respect of Eurodollar Rate Advances or (B) any Interest Period in respect of LIBO Rate Advances the durations of which are one, two, three or six months, occurs on a day of an initial calendar month for which there is no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month that succeeds such initial calendar month by the number of months equal to the number of months in such Interest Period, such Interest Period shall end on the last Business Day of such succeeding calendar month.
- "Internal Revenue Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, and the regulations promulgated and rulings issued thereunder.

"Lenders" means the Initial Lenders and each Person that shall become a party hereto pursuant to Section 8.07(a), (b) and (c) and, except when used in reference to a Revolving Credit Advance, a Revolving Credit Borrowing, a Revolving Credit Note, a Commitment or a related term, each Designated Bidder.

"LIBO Rate" means, for any Interest Period for all LIBO Rate Advances comprising part of the same Competitive Bid Borrowing, an interest rate per annum equal to the rate per annum obtained by dividing (a) the average (rounded upward to the nearest whole multiple of 1/16 of 1% per annum, if such average is not such a multiple) of the rate per annum at which deposits in Dollars are offered to the principal office of each of the Reference Banks in London, England by prime banks in the London interbank market at 11:00 A.M. (London time) two Business Days before the first day of such Interest Period in an amount substantially equal to the amount that would be the Reference Banks' respective ratable shares of such Borrowing if such Borrowing were to be a Revolving Credit Borrowing to be outstanding during such Interest Period and for a period equal to such Interest Period by (b) a percentage equal to 100% minus the Eurodollar Rate Reserve Percentage for such Interest Period. The LIBO Rate for any Interest Period for each LIBO Rate Advance comprising part of the same Competitive Bid Borrowing shall be determined by the Administrative Agent on the basis of applicable rates furnished to and received by the Administrative Agent from the Reference Banks two Business Days

10

before the first day of such Interest Period, subject, however, to the provisions of Section 2.08.

- "LIBO Rate Advances" has the meaning specified in Section 2.03(a)(i).
- "Lien" means any lien, security interest or other charge or encumbrance of any kind, including, without limitation, the lien or retained security title of a conditional vendor and any easement, right of way or other encumbrance on title to real property and, in the case of securities, any purchase option, call or similar right of a third party with respect to such securities.
 - "Loan Documents" means this Agreement, the Notes, the Guaranty and the Indemnity Agreement.
 - "Loan Parties" means, collectively, the Borrower and each of the Guarantors.
 - "Margin Stock" means all "margin stock" within the meaning of Regulation U.
- "Material Adverse Change" means any material adverse change in the business, assets, operations, prospects or financial condition of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. For purposes hereof, it is understood and agreed that the occurrence of a labor dispute shall not in and of itself constitute a Material Adverse Change.
- "Material Adverse Effect" means (a) a material adverse effect on the business, assets, operations, prospects or financial condition of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (b) material impairment of the ability of the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary to perform any of its obligations under any Loan Document to which it is or is to be a party or (c) material impairment of the rights of or benefits available to the Lenders under any of the Loan Documents. For purposes hereof, it is understood and agreed that the occurrence of a labor dispute shall not in and of itself constitute a Material Adverse Effect.
- "Material Subsidiary" means any Subsidiary of the Borrower having (a) 5% of the Consolidated Net Tangible Assets or (b) 5% of the total revenues appearing on the most recently prepared Consolidated income statements of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries as of the end of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter of the Borrower.
 - "Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc.
 - "Non-Recourse Debt" means, with respect to any Person, Debt for which such Person neither (a) provides credit support nor (b) is directly or indirectly liable.
 - "Note" means a Revolving Credit Note or a Competitive Bid Note, as the context may require.
 - "Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing" has the meaning specified in Section 2.03(a).

11

- "Notice of Revolving Credit Borrowing" has the meaning specified in Section 2.02(a).
- "OECD" means the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development and any successor.
- "Overseas Partners" means Overseas Partners Ltd., a Bermuda corporation.
- "PBGC" means the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation and any successor.
- "Permitted Person" means the UPS Managers Stock Trust, the UPS Stock Trust, the Annie E. Casey Foundation, any retiree or present or former employee of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or their respective present or former spouse, relatives (by consanguinity or law), estate or heirs (or their respective spouse's estate or heirs) or any other Person that has Beneficial Ownership of the common stock of the Borrower on the date of this Agreement, or any Person that is created for the benefit of any of the foregoing after the date of this Agreement.
- "Person" means an individual, partnership, corporation (including a business trust), joint stock company, trust, unincorporated association, joint venture, limited liability company or other entity, or a government or any political subdivision or agency thereof.
- "Plan" means any pension plan subject to the provisions of Title IV of ERISA or Section 412 of the Internal Revenue Code that is maintained for employees of the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate.
 - "Principal Property" has the meaning specified in the Debenture Indenture.
- "Public Debt Rating" means, as of any date, the higher rating that has been most recently announced by either S&P or Moody's, as the case may be, for any class of non-credit enhanced long-term senior unsecured debt issued by the Borrower. For purposes of the foregoing, (a) if only one of S&P and Moody's shall have in effect a Public Debt Rating, the Applicable Margin and the Applicable Fee Percentage shall be determined by reference to the available rating; (b) if neither S&P nor Moody's shall have in effect a Public Debt Rating, the Applicable Margin and the Applicable Fee Percentage will be set in accordance with Level 3 under the definition of "Applicable Margin" or "Applicable Fee Percentage", as the case may be; (c) if the ratings established by S&P and Moody's shall fall within different levels, the Applicable Margin shall be based upon the higher rating; provided, however, that if the lower of such ratings is more than one level below the level of the higher of such ratings, then the Applicable Margin and the Applicable Fee Percentage shall be based upon the level immediately above the level of the lower of such ratings; (d) if any rating established by S&P or Moody's shall be changed, such change shall be effective as of the date on which such change is first announced publicly by the rating agency making such change; and (e) if S&P or Moody's shall change the basis on which ratings are established, each reference to the Public Debt Rating announced by S&P or Moody's, as the case may be, shall refer to the then equivalent rating by S&P or Moody's, as the case may be; provided, however, that if prior

12

thereto the Borrower has selected, and the Required Lenders have approved, a rating agency to replace S&P or Moody's, as the case may be, such selection shall be deemed to be S&P or Moody's, as the case may be, for all purposes hereof.

- "Reference Banks" means Citibank, B of A and Bank One, or if any such Lender assigns all of its Commitment, the Advances owing to it and the Note or Notes held by it pursuant to Section 8.07(a), such other Lender as may be designated by the Required Lenders and approved by the Borrower (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld).
 - "Register" has the meaning specified in Section 8.07(g).
- "Regulation A", "Regulation D", "Regulation T", "Regulation T", "Regulation T, "Regulation T, Regulation T, Regula
 - "Replacement Lender" has the meaning specified in Section 2.16.
- "Reportable Event" means any reportable event as defined in Section 4043(b) of ERISA or the regulations issued thereunder with respect to a Plan (other than a Plan maintained by an ERISA Affiliate that is considered an ERISA Affiliate only pursuant to subsection (m) or (o) of Section 414 of the Internal Revenue Code).
 - "Required Lenders" means at any time Lenders owed greater than 50% of the then aggregate unpaid principal amount of the Revolving Credit Advances owing to Lenders, or, if no such

principal amount is then outstanding, Lenders having greater than 50% of the Commitments.

"Restricted Subsidiary" has the meaning specified in the Debenture Indenture.

"Revolving Credit Advance" means an advance by a Lender to the Borrower as part of a Revolving Credit Borrowing and refers to a Base Rate Advance or a Eurodollar Rate Advance (each of which shall be a "Type" of Revolving Credit Advance), as the context may require.

"Revolving Credit Borrowing" means a borrowing consisting of simultaneous Revolving Credit Advances of the same Type made by each of the Lenders pursuant to Section 2.01.

"Revolving Credit Note" means a promissory note of the Borrower payable to the order of any Lender, in substantially the form of Exhibit A-1 hereto, evidencing the aggregate indebtedness of the Borrower to such Lender resulting from the Revolving Credit Advances made by such Lender.

"Sale and Leaseback Transaction" has the meaning specified in the Debenture Indenture.

13

"Secured Indebtedness" has the meaning specified in the Debenture Indenture.

"S&P" means Standard & Poor's Rating Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc.

"Subsidiary" of any Person means any corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company, trust or estate of which (or in which) more than 50% of (a) the Voting Power to elect a majority of the board of directors of such corporation (irrespective of whether at the time capital stock of any other class or classes of such corporation shall or might have voting power upon the occurrence of any contingency), (b) the interest in the capital or profits of such partnership or joint venture or (c) the beneficial interest in such trust or estate is at the time owned or controlled by such Person, by such Person and one or more of its other Subsidiaries or by one or more of such Person's other Subsidiaries; provided, however, that Overseas Partners shall not be deemed to be a Subsidiary of the Borrower.

"Termination Date" means the earlier of (a) April 24, 2008 or, if extended pursuant to Section 2.16, the date that is one year after the Termination Date then in effect, and (b) the date of termination in whole of the Commitments pursuant to Section 2.05 or 6.01.

"Type" has the meaning specified in the definition of "Revolving Credit Advance".

"UPSCO" means United Parcel Service Co., a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned Subsidiary of the Borrower.

"UPSNY" means United Parcel Service, Inc., a New York corporation and a wholly owned Subsidiary of the Borrower.

"UPSO" means United Parcel Service, Inc., an Ohio corporation and a wholly owned Subsidiary of the Borrower.

"Voting Power" means, with respect to any Voting Stock of any Person at any time, the number of votes entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of such Person that are attributable to such Voting Stock at such time divided by the number of votes entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of such Person that are attributable to all shares of capital stock of such Person (including such Voting Stock) at such time.

"Voting Stock" means capital stock issued by a corporation, or equivalent interests in any other Person, the holders of which are ordinarily, in the absence of contingencies, entitled to vote for the election of directors (or persons performing similar functions) of such Person, even if the right so to vote has been suspended by the happening of such a contingency.

14

SECTION 1.02. Computation of Time Periods. In this Agreement in the computation of periods of time from a specified date to a later specified date, the word "from" means "from and including" and the words "to" and "until" each means "to but excluding".

SECTION 1.03. Accounting Terms. All accounting terms not specifically defined herein shall be construed in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistent with those applied in the preparation of the financial statements referred to in Section 4.01(e) ("GAAP").

ARTICLE II

AMOUNTS AND TERMS OF THE ADVANCES

SECTION 2.01. The Revolving Credit Advances Each Lender severally agrees, on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, to make Revolving Credit Advances to the Borrower from time to time on any Business Day during the period from the Effective Date until the Termination Date in an aggregate amount not to exceed at any time outstanding the amount set forth opposite such Lender's name on Schedule I hereto, if such Lender has entered into any Assignment and Acceptance, set forth for such Lender in the Register maintained by the Administrative Agent pursuant to Section 8.07(c), as such amount may be reduced pursuant to Section 2.05 (such Lender's "Commitment"), provided that the aggregate amount of the Commitments of the Lenders shall be deemed used from time to time to the extent of the aggregate amount of the Commitments shall be allocated among the Lenders ratably according to their respective Commitments (such deemed use of the aggregate amount of the Commitments being a "Competitive Bid Reduction"). Each Revolving Credit Borrowing shall be in an aggregate amount of \$25,000,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000,000 in excess thereof (or, if less, an amount equal to the remaining aggregate amount of unused Commitments or equal to the amount by which the aggregate amount of a proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing requested by the Borrower exceeds the aggregate amount of Competitive Bid Advances offered to be made by the Lenders and accepted by the Borrower in respect of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, if such Competitive Bid Borrowing is made on the same date as such Revolving Credit Advances of the same Type made on the same day by the Lenders ratably according to their respective Commitments. Within the limits of each Lender's Commitment, the Borrower may borrow under this Section 2.01, prepay pursuant to Section 2.10 and reborrow under this Section 2.01.

SECTION 2.02. <u>Making the Revolving Credit Advances</u> (a) Each Revolving Credit Borrowing shall be made on notice, given not later than 11:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the third Business Day prior to the date of the proposed Revolving Credit Borrowing in the case of a Revolving Credit Borrowing consisting of Eurodollar Rate Advances, or on the date of the proposed Revolving Credit Borrowing in the case of a Revolving Credit Borrowing consisting of Base Rate Advances, by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent, which shall give to each Lender prompt notice thereof by telecopier or telex. Each such notice of a Revolving Credit Borrowing (a "<u>Notice of Revolving Credit Borrowing</u>") shall be by telephone, telecopier or telex, confirmed promptly in writing, in substantially the form of Exhibit B-1 hereto, specifying therein the requested (i) date of such Revolving Credit Borrowing, (ii) Type of

15

Advances comprising such Revolving Credit Borrowing, (iii) aggregate amount of such Revolving Credit Borrowing, and (iv) in the case of a Revolving Credit Borrowing consisting of Eurodollar Rate Advances, initial Interest Period for each such Revolving Credit Advance. Each Lender shall, before 11:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the date of such Revolving Credit Borrowing, make available for the account of its Applicable Lending Office to the Administrative Agent at the Administrative Agent's Account, in same day funds, such Lender's ratable portion of such Revolving Credit Borrowing. After the Administrative Agent's receipt of such funds and upon fulfillment of the applicable conditions set forth in Article III, the Administrative Agent will make such funds available to the Borrower in same day funds at the Borrower's Account.

(b) Anything in subsection (a) of this Section 2.02 to the contrary notwithstanding, the Borrower may not select Eurodollar Rate Advances for any Revolving Credit Borrowing if the aggregate amount of such Revolving Credit Borrowing is less than \$25,000,000 or if the obligation of the Lenders to make Eurodollar Rate Advances shall then be suspended pursuant to Section 2.08 or 2.12.

(c) Each Notice of Revolving Credit Borrowing shall be irrevocable and binding on the Borrower. In the case of any Revolving Credit Borrowing that the related Notice of Revolving Credit Borrowing specifies is to be comprised of Eurodollar Rate Advances, the Borrower shall indemnify each Lender against any loss, cost or expense incurred by such Lender as a result of any failure by the Borrower to fulfill on or before the date specified in such Notice of Revolving Credit Borrowing for such Revolving Credit Borrowing the applicable conditions set forth in Article III, including, without limitation, any loss (including loss of anticipated profits), cost or expense incurred by reason of the liquidation or reemployment of deposits or other funds acquired by such Lender to fund the Revolving Credit Advance to be made by such Lender as part of such Revolving Credit Borrowing when such Revolving Credit Advance, as a result of such failure, is not made on such date.

(d) Unless the Administrative Agent shall have received notice from a Lender prior to the date of any Revolving Credit Borrowing that such Lender will not make available to

the Administrative Agent such Lender's ratable portion of such Revolving Credit Borrowing, the Administrative Agent may assume that such Lender has made such portion available to the Administrative Agent on the date of such Revolving Credit Borrowing in accordance with subsection (a) of this Section 2.02 and the Administrative Agent may, in reliance upon such assumption, make available to the Borrower on such date a corresponding amount. If and to the extent that such Lender shall not have so made such ratable portion available to the Administrative Agent, such Lender and the Borrower severally agree to repay to the Administrative Agent forthwith on demand such corresponding amount together with interest thereon, for each day from the date such amount is made available to the Borrower until the date such amount is repaid to the Administrative Agent, at (i) in the case of the Borrower, the interest rate applicable at the time to Revolving Credit Advances comprising such Revolving Credit Borrowing and (ii) in the case of such Lender, the Federal Funds Rate. If such Lender shall repay to the Administrative Agent such corresponding amount, such amount so repaid shall constitute such Lender's Revolving Credit Advance as part of such Revolving Credit Borrowing for purposes of this Agreement.

16

(e) The failure of any Lender to make the Revolving Credit Advance to be made by it as part of any Revolving Credit Borrowing shall not relieve any other Lender of its obligation, if any, hereunder to make its Revolving Credit Advance on the date of such Revolving Credit Borrowing, but no Lender shall be responsible for the failure of any other Lender to make the Revolving Credit Advance to be made by such other Lender on the date of any Revolving Credit Borrowing.

SECTION 2.03. The Competitive Bid Advances. (a) Each Lender severally agrees that the Borrower may make Competitive Bid Borrowings under this Section 2.03 from time to time on any Business Day during the period from the date hereof until the date occurring prior to the Termination Date in the manner set forth below; provided that, following the making of each Competitive Bid Advance, the aggregate amount of the Advances then outstanding shall not exceed the aggregate amount of the Commitments of the Lenders (computed without regard to any Competitive Bid Reduction).

- (i) The Borrower may request a Competitive Bid Borrowing under this Section 2.03 by delivering to the Administrative Agent, by telecopier or telex, confirmed promptly in writing, a notice of a Competitive Bid Borrowing (a "Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing"), in substantially the form of Exhibit B-2 hereto, specifying therein (A) the date of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, (B) the aggregate amount of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, (C) in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of LIBO Rate Advances, the Interest Period for such LIBO Rate Advances, (D) the maturity date for repayment of each Competitive Bid Advance to be made as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, shall be the last day of the interest period for such LIBO Rate Advance), (E) the interest payment date or dates relating thereto, and (F) any other terms to be applicable to such Competitive Bid Borrowing, not later than 10:00 A.M. (New York City time) (1) at least one Business Day prior to the date of the proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, if the Borrower shall specify in the Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing that the rates of interest to be offered by the Lenders shall be fixed rates per annum (the Advances comprising any such Competitive Bid Borrowing being referred to herein as "Fixed Rate Advances") and (2) at least four Business Days prior to the date of the proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, if the Borrower shall instead specify in the Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing that the rates of interest to be offered by the Lenders are to be based on the LIBO Rate (the Advances comprising such Competitive Bid Borrowing being referred to herein as "LIBO Rate Advances"). The Administrative Agent shall in turn promptly notify each Lender of each request for a Competitive Bid Borrowing received by it from the Borrower by sending such Lender a copy of the related Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing.
- (ii) Each Lender may, if in its sole discretion it elects to do so, irrevocably offer to make one or more Competitive Bid Advances to the Borrower as part of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing at a rate or rates of interest (including default rates not to exceed 1% per annum above the rate per annum required to be paid on such Competitive Bid Advance) specified by such Lender in its sole discretion, by notifying

17

the Administrative Agent (which shall give prompt notice thereof to the Borrower), before 10:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the date of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of Fixed Rate Advances and three Business Days before the date of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of LIBO Rate Advances, of the minimum amount and maximum amount of each Competitive Bid Advance which such Lender would be willing to make as part of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing (which amounts may, subject to the proviso to the first sentence of this Section 2.03(a), exceed such Lender's Commitment, if any), the rate or rates of interest therefor and such Lender's Applicable Lending Office with respect to such Competitive Bid Advance; provided that if the Administrative Agent in its capacity as a Lender shall, in its sole discretion, elect to make any such offer, it shall notify the Borrower of such offer before 9:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the date on which notice of such election is to be given to the Administrative Agent by the other Lenders. If any Lender shall elect not to make such an offer, such Lender shall so notify the Administrative Agent, before 10:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the date on which notice of such election is to be given to the Administrative Agent by the other Lenders, and such Lender shall not be obligated to, and shall not, make any Competitive Bid Advance as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing. Provided that the failure by any Lender to give such notice shall not cause such Lender to be obligated to make any Competitive Bid Advance as part of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing.

- (iii) the Borrower shall, in turn, before 11:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the date of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of Fixed Rate Advances and before 11:30 A.M. (New York City time) three Business Days before the date of such proposed Competitive Bid Borrowing, in the case of a Competitive Bid Borrowing consisting of LIBO Rate Advances, either:
 - (A) cancel such Competitive Bid Borrowing by giving the Administrative Agent notice to that effect, or
 - (B) accept one or more of the offers made by any Lender or Lenders pursuant to subsection (a)(ii) of this Section 2.03, in its sole discretion, by giving notice to the Administrative Agent of the amount of each Competitive Bid Advance (which amount shall be equal to or greater than the minimum amount, and equal to or less than the maximum amount, notified to the Borrower by the Administrative Agent on behalf of such Lender for such Competitive Bid Advance pursuant to subsection (a)(ii) of this Section 2.03 by giving the Administrative Agent notice to that effect. The Borrower shall accept the offers made by Lenders pursuant to subsection (a)(ii) of this Section 2.03 by giving the Administrative Agent notice to that effect. The Borrower shall accept the offers made by any Lender or Lenders to make Competitive Bid Advances in order of the lowest to the highest rates of interest offered by such Lenders; provided, however, that if the Borrower has a reasonable basis to believe that acceptance of the offer of any such Lender has a reasonable likelihood of subjecting the Borrower to additional costs pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.11, 2.12 or 2.14, the Borrower may reject the offer of such Lender and accept

18

the offer of the Lender offering the next lowest rate of interest. Subject to the next preceding sentence, if two or more Lenders have offered the same interest rate, the amount to be borrowed at such interest rate will be allocated among such Lenders in proportion to the amount that each such Lender offered at such interest rate.

- (iv) the Borrower notifies the Administrative Agent that such Competitive Bid Borrowing is cancelled pursuant to subsection (a)(iii)(A) of this Section 2.03, the Administrative Agent shall give prompt notice thereof to the Lenders and such Competitive Bid Borrowing shall not be made.
- (v) If the Borrower accepts one or more of the offers made by any Lender or Lenders pursuant to subsection (a)(iii)(B) of this Section 2.03, the Administrative Agent shall in turn promptly notify (A) each Lender that has made an offer as described in subsection (a)(ii) of this Section 2.03, of the date and aggregate amount of such Competitive Bid Borrowing and whether or not any offer or offers made by such Lender pursuant to subsection (a)(ii) of this Section 2.03 have been accepted by the Borrower, (B) each Lender that is to make a Competitive Bid Borrowing, of the amount of each Competitive Bid Advance to be made by such Lender as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, and (C) each Lender that is to make a Competitive Bid Advance as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing and (C) each Lender that is to make a Competitive Bid Borrowing, upon receipt, that the Administrative Agent has received forms of documents appearing to fulfill the applicable conditions set forth in Article III. Each Lender that is to make a Competitive Bid Advance as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing shall, before 12:00 noon (New York City time) on the date of such Competitive Bid Borrowing specified in the notice received from the Administrative Agent pursuant to clause (A) of the next preceding sentence or at such later date when such Lender shall have received notice from the Administrative Agent pursuant to clause (C) of the next preceding sentence, make available for the account of its Applicable Lending Office to the Administrative Agent at the Administrative Agent pursuant to clause (C) of the next preceding sentence, make available for the account of the applicable conditions set forth in Article III and after receipt by the Administrative Agent of such funds, the Administrative Agent will make such funds available to the Borrower in same day funds at the Borrower's Account. Promptly after each Competitive Bid Borrowing the Administrative Agent will notify each Lender of the amount of the Competitive Bid Borrowing, the conse
- (b) Each Competitive Bid Borrowing shall be in an aggregate amount of \$25,000,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000,000 in excess thereof and, following the making of each Competitive Bid Borrowing, the Borrower shall be in compliance with the limitation set forth in the proviso to the first sentence of subsection (a) of this Section 2.03.
- (c) Within the limits and on the conditions set forth in this Section 2.03, the Borrower may from time to time borrow under this Section 2.03, repay pursuant to subsection (d) of this Section 2.03, and reborrow under this Section 2.03, provided that a Competitive Bid

Borrowing shall not be made within three Business Days of the date of any other Competitive Bid Borrowing.

- (d) The Borrower shall repay to the Administrative Agent for the account of each Lender that has made a Competitive Bid Advance, on the maturity date of each Competitive Bid Advance (such maturity date being that specified by the Borrower for repayment of such Competitive Bid Advance in the related Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing delivered pursuant to subsection (a)(i) of this Section 2.03 and provided in the Competitive Bid Note evidencing such Competitive Bid Advance), the then unpaid principal amount of such Competitive Bid Advance. The Borrower may prepay any principal amount of any Competitive Bid Advance, subject to the provisions of Sections 2.10 and 8.04(c), with the consent of the respective Lender of such Competitive Bid Advance.
- (e) The Borrower shall pay interest on the unpaid principal amount of each Competitive Bid Advance from the date of such Competitive Bid Advance to the date the principal amount of such Competitive Bid Advance is repaid in full, at the rate of interest for such Competitive Bid Advance specified by the Lender making such Competitive Bid Advance in its notice with respect thereto delivered pursuant to subsection (a)(ii) of this Section 2.03, payable on the interest payment date or dates specified by the Borrower for such Competitive Bid Advance in the related Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing delivered pursuant to subsection (a)(i) of this Section 2.03, as provided in the Competitive Bid Note evidencing such Competitive Bid Advance. Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, the Borrower shall pay interest on the amount of unpaid principal of and interest on each Competitive Bid Advance owing to a Lender, payable in arrears on the date or dates interest is payable thereon, at a rate per annum equal to the default rate specified by the appropriate Lender in respect of such Competitive Bid Advance.
- (f) The indebtedness of the Borrower resulting from each Competitive Bid Advance made to the Borrower as part of a Competitive Bid Borrowing shall be evidenced by a separate Competitive Bid Note of the Borrower payable to the order of the Lender making such Competitive Bid Advance. Upon repayment in full of each Competitive Bid Advance in accordance with the provisions of subsection (d) of this Section 2.03 and the terms of the Competitive Bid Note evidencing such Competitive Bid Advance, the Lender holding such Competitive Bid Note shall cancel such Note and return such Note to the Borrower.

SECTION 2.04. Fees. (a) Facility Fee. The Borrower agrees to pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of each Lender (other than the Designated Bidders) a facility fee on the aggregate amount of such Lender's Commitment from the Effective Date in the case of each Initial Lender and from the effective date specified in the Assignment and Acceptance pursuant to which it became a Lender in the case of each other Lender until the Termination Date at a rate per annum equal to the Applicable Fee Percentage, payable in arrears quarterly on the last day of each March, June, September and December, commencing June 30, 2003, and on the Termination Date.

(b) Agents' Fees. The Borrower shall pay to each Agent for its own account such fees as may from time to time be agreed between the Borrower and such Agent.

20

SECTION 2.05. <u>Termination or Reduction of the Commitments</u>. The Borrower shall have the right, upon at least three Business Days' notice to the Administrative Agent, to terminate in whole or reduce ratably in part the unused portions of the respective Commitments of the Lenders, provided that each partial reduction shall be in the aggregate amount of \$25,000,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000,000 in excess thereof and *provided further* that the aggregate amount of the Commitments of the Lenders shall not be reduced to an amount that is less than the aggregate principal amount of the Competitive Bid Advances then outstanding.

SECTION 2.06. <u>Repayment of Revolving Credit Advances</u> The Borrower shall repay to the Administrative Agent for the ratable account of the Lenders on the Termination Date the aggregate principal amount of the Revolving Credit Advances then outstanding.

SECTION 2.07. Interest on Revolving Credit Advances (a) Scheduled Interest. The Borrower shall pay interest on the unpaid principal amount of each Revolving Credit Advance owing to each Lender from the date of such Revolving Credit Advance until such principal amount shall be paid in full, at the following rates per annum:

- (i) <u>Base Rate Advances.</u> During such periods as such Revolving Credit Advance is a Base Rate Advance, a rate per annum equal at all times to the sum of (A) the Base Rate in effect from time to time plus (B) the Applicable Margin in effect from time to time, payable in arrears quarterly on the last day of each March, June, September and December during such periods and on the date such Base Rate Advance shall be Converted or paid in full.
- (ii) <u>Eurodollar Rate Advances</u>. During such periods as such Revolving Credit Advance is a Eurodollar Rate Advance, a rate per annum equal at all times during each Interest Period for such Revolving Credit Advance to the sum of (A) the Eurodollar Rate for such Interest Period for such Revolving Credit Advance plus (B) the Applicable Margin in effect from time to time, payable in arrears on the last day of such Interest Period and, if such Interest Period has a duration of more than three months, on each day that occurs during such Interest Period every three months from the first day of such Interest Period and on the date such Eurodollar Rate Advance shall be Converted or paid in full.
- (b) <u>Default Interest.</u> Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, the Borrower shall pay interest on (i) the unpaid principal amount of each Revolving Credit Advance owing to each Lender, payable in arrears on the dates referred to in subsection (a)(i) or (a)(ii) of this Section 2.07, at a rate per annum equal at all times to 1% per annum above the rate per annum required to be paid on such Revolving Credit Advance pursuant to subsection (a)(i) or (a)(ii) of this Section 2.07 and (ii) the amount of any interest, fee or other amount payable hereunder that is not paid when due, from the date such amount shall be due until such amount shall be paid in full, payable in arrears on the date such amount shall be paid in full and on demand, at a rate per annum equal at all times to 1% per annum above the rate per annum required to be paid on Base Rate Advances pursuant to subsection (a)(i) of this Section 2.07.

21

SECTION 2.08. Interest Rate Determination. (a) Each Reference Bank agrees to furnish to the Administrative Agent timely information for the purpose of determining each Eurodollar Rate and each LIBO Rate. If any one or more of the Reference Banks shall not furnish such timely information to the Administrative Agent for the purpose of determining any such interest rate, the Administrative Agent shall determine such interest rate on the basis of timely information furnished by the remaining Reference Banks, subject to the provisions of subsection (e) of this Section 2.08. The Administrative Agent shall give prompt notice to the Borrower and the Lenders of the applicable interest rate determined by the Administrative Agent for purposes of Section 2.07(a)(i) or 2.07(a)(ii), and the rate, if any, furnished by each Reference Bank for the purpose of determining the interest rate under Section 2.07(a)(ii).

- (b) If the Borrower shall fail to select the duration of any Interest Period for any Eurodollar Rate Advances in accordance with the provisions contained in the definition of "Interest Period" in Section 1.01, the Administrative Agent will forthwith so notify the Borrower and the Lenders and such Advances will automatically, on the last day of the then existing Interest Period therefor, Convert into Base Rate Advances.
- (c) On the date on which the aggregate unpaid principal amount of Eurodollar Rate Advances comprising any Revolving Credit Borrowing shall be reduced, by payment or prepayment or otherwise, to less than \$25,000,000, such Advances shall automatically Convert into Base Rate Advances.
- (d) Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of any Event of Default, (i) each Eurodollar Rate Advance will automatically, on the last day of the then existing Interest Period therefor, Convert into a Base Rate Advance and (ii) the obligations of the Lenders to make, or to Convert Advances into, Eurodollar Rate Advances shall be suspended.
- (e) If fewer than two Reference Banks furnish timely information to the Administrative Agent for determining the Eurodollar Rate or LIBO Rate for any Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances, as the case may be,
 - (i) the Administrative Agent shall forthwith notify the Borrower and the Lenders that the interest rate cannot be determined for such Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances, as the case may be,
 - (ii) with respect to Eurodollar Rate Advances, each such Advance will automatically, on the last day of the then existing Interest Period therefor, Convert into a Base Rate Advance (or if such Advance is then a Base Rate Advance, will continue as a Base Rate Advance), and
 - (iii) the obligations of the Lenders to make Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances, or to Convert Revolving Credit Advances into Eurodollar Rate Advances, shall be suspended until the Administrative Agent shall notify the Borrower and the Lenders that the circumstances causing such suspension no longer exist.

SECTION 2.09. Optional Conversion of Revolving Credit Advances The Borrower may on any Business Day, upon notice given to the Administrative Agent not later than 11:00 A.M. (New York City time) on the third Business Day prior to the date of the

into Eurodollar Rate Advances, the duration of the initial Interest Period for each such Advance. Each notice of Conversion shall be irrevocable and binding on the Borrower.

SECTION 2.10. Optional Prepayments of Advances The Borrower may, upon at least two Business Days' notice in the case of Eurodollar Rate Advances and notice on the same Business Day in the case of Base Rate Advances to the Administrative Agent stating the proposed date and aggregate principal amount of the prepayment, and if such notice is given the Borrower shall, prepay the outstanding principal amount of such Advances comprising part of the same Borrowing in whole or ratably in part, together with accrued interest to the date of such prepayment on the principal amount prepaid; provided, however, that (a) each partial prepayment shall be in an aggregate principal amount of \$10,000,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000,000 in excess thereof and (b) in the event of any such prepayment of a Eurodollar Rate Advance or LIBO Rate Advance, the Borrower shall be obligated to reimburse the Lenders in respect thereof pursuant to Section 8.04(c).

SECTION 2.11. Increased Costs. (a) If, due to either (i) the introduction of or any change (other than any change by way of imposition or increase of reserve requirements included in the Eurodollar Rate Reserve Percentage) in or in the interpretation of any law or regulation or (ii) the compliance with any guideline or request from any central bank or other Governmental Authority (whether or not having the force of law), there shall be any increase in the cost as measured from the date hereof to any Lender of agreeing to make or making, funding or maintaining Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances, then the Borrower shall from time to time, upon demand by such Lender (with a copy of such demand to the Administrative Agent), promptly pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of such Lender additional amounts sufficient to compensate such Lender for such increased cost. A certificate as to the amount of such increased cost, submitted to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent by such Lender, shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error.

(b) If any Lender (other than the Designated Bidders) determines that compliance with any law or regulation or any guideline or request from any central bank or other Governmental Authority (whether or not having the force of law) affects or would affect the amount of capital required or expected to be maintained by such Lender or any corporation controlling such Lender and that the amount of such capital is increased by or based upon the existence of such Lender's commitment to lend hereunder and other commitments of this type, then, upon demand by such Lender (with a copy of such demand to the Administrative Agent), the Borrower shall promptly pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of such Lender, from time to time as specified by such Lender, additional amounts sufficient to compensate such Lender or such corporation in the light of such circumstances, to the extent that such Lender reasonably determines such increase in capital to be allocable to the existence of such Lender's commitment to lend hereunder. A certificate as to such amounts sufficient to the Borrower and

23

the Administrative Agent by such Lender shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error.

SECTION 2.12. Illegality. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if any Lender shall notify the Administrative Agent that the introduction of or any change in or in the interpretation of any law or regulation by any governmental authority charged with such interpretation makes it unlawful, or any central bank or other Governmental Authority asserts that it is unlawful, for any Lender or its Eurodollar Lending Office to perform its obligations hereunder to make Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances or to fund or maintain Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances hereunder, (a) each Eurodollar Rate Advance or LIBO Rate Advance, as the case may be, will automatically, upon such demand, Convert into a Base Rate Advance or an Advance that bears interest at the rate set forth in Section 2.07(a)(i), as the case may be, and (b) the obligation of the Lenders to make Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances, or to Convert Revolving Credit Advances into Eurodollar Rate Advances, shall be suspended until the Administrative Agent shall notify the Borrower and the Lenders that the circumstances causing such suspension no longer exist.

SECTION 2.13. Payments and Computations. (a) The Borrower shall make each payment hereunder and under the Notes not later than 1:00 P.M. (New York City time) on the day when due, without setoff or counterclaim, in Dollars to the Administrative Agent at the Administrative Agent's Account in same day funds. The Administrative Agent will promptly thereafter cause to be distributed like funds relating to the payment of principal or interest, facility fees or utilization fees ratably (other than amounts payable pursuant to Section 2.03, 2.11, 2.14 or 8.04(c)) to the Lenders for the account of their respective Applicable Lending Offices, and like funds relating to the payment of any other amount payable to such Lender for the account of its Applicable Lending Office, in each case to be applied in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Upon its acceptance of an Assignment and Acceptance and recording of the information contained therein in the Register pursuant to Section 8.07(d), from and after the effective date specified in such Assignment and Acceptance, the Administrative Agent shall make all appropriate adjustments in such payments for periods prior to such effective date directly between themselves.

- (b) The Borrower hereby authorizes the Administrative Agent, if and to the extent payment owed to any Lender is not made when due hereunder or under the Note held by such Lender, to charge from time to time against any or all of the Borrower's accounts with the Administrative Agent any amount so due.
- (c) All computations of interest based on the Base Rate shall be made by the Administrative Agent on the basis of a year of 365 or 366 days, as the case may be, and all computations of interest based on the Eurodollar Rate or the Federal Funds Rate and of facility fees shall be made by the Administrative Agent on the basis of a year of 360 days, in each case for the actual number of days (including the first day but excluding the last day) occurring in the period for which such interest or facility fees are payable. Each determination by the Administrative Agent of an interest rate hereunder shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error.

24

- (d) Whenever any payment hereunder or under the Notes shall be stated to be due on a day other than a Business Day, such payment shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day, and such extension of time shall in such case be included in the computation of payment of interest or facility fees, as the case may be; *provided, however*, that, if such extension would cause payment of interest on or principal of Eurodollar Rate Advances or LIBO Rate Advances to be made in the next following calendar month, such payment shall be made on the next preceding Business Day.
- (e) Unless the Administrative Agent shall have received notice from the Borrower prior to the date on which any payment is due to the Lenders hereunder that the Borrower will not make such payment in full, the Administrative Agent may assume that the Borrower has made such payment in full to the Administrative Agent on such date and the Administrative Agent may, in reliance upon such assumption, cause to be distributed to each Lender on such date an amount equal to the amount then due such Lender. If and to the extent the Borrower shall not have so made such payment in full to the Administrative Agent, each Lender shall repay to the Administrative Agent forthwith on demand such amount distributed to such Lender type the interest thereon, for each day from the date such amount is distributed to such Lender until the date such Lender repays such amount to the Administrative Agent, at the Federal Funds Rate.

SECTION 2.14. Taxes. (a) Any and all payments by the Borrower hereunder or under the Notes shall be made, in accordance with Section 2.13, free and clear of and without deduction for any and all present or future taxes, levies, imposts, deductions, charges or withholdings, and all liabilities with respect thereto, excluding, in the case of each Lender and each Agent, taxes imposed on its net income, and franchise taxes measured by income imposed on its purisdiction under the laws of which such Lender or such Agent (as the case may be) is organized or any political subdivision thereof and, in the case of each Lender, taxes imposed on its net income, and franchise taxes measured by income imposed on it, by the jurisdiction of such Lender's Applicable Lending Office or any political subdivision thereof (all such non-excluded taxes, levies, imposts, deductions, charges, withholdings and liabilities in respect of payments hereunder or under the Notes being hereinafter referred to as "Taxes"). If the Borrower shall be required by law to deduct any Taxes from or in respect of any sum payable hereunder or under any Note to any Lender or any Agent (i) the sum payable shall be increased as may be necessary so that after making all required deductions (including deductions applicable to additional sums payable under this Section 2.14) such Lender or such Agent (as the case may be) receives an amount equal to the sum it would have received had no such deductions been made, (ii) the Borrower shall make such deductions and (iii) the B

(b) In addition, the Borrower agrees to pay any present or future stamp or documentary taxes or any other excise or property taxes, charges or similar levies that arise from any payment made hereunder or under the Notes or from the execution, delivery or registration of, or otherwise with respect to, this Agreement or the Notes hereinafter referred to as "Other Taxes").

- (c) The Borrower shall indemnify each Lender and each Agent for the full amount of Taxes or Other Taxes (including, without limitation, any Taxes or Other Taxes imposed by any jurisdiction on amounts payable under this Section 2.14) paid by such Lender or such Agent or any of its Affiliates (as the case may be) and any liability (including penalties, interest and expenses) arising there from or with respect thereto, whether or not such Taxes or Other Taxes were correctly or legally asserted. This indemnification shall be made within 30 days from the date such Lender, such Agent or such Affiliate (as the case may be) makes written demand therefor.
- (d) Within 30 days after the date of any payment of Taxes, the Borrower shall furnish to the Administrative Agent, at its address referred to in Section 8.02, the original or a certified copy of a receipt evidencing payment thereof. If no Taxes are payable in respect of any payment hereunder or under the Notes, the Borrower will furnish to the Administrative Agent, at such address, a certificate from each appropriate taxing authority, or an opinion of counsel acceptable to the Administrative Agent, in either case stating that such payment is exempt from or not subject to Taxes
- (e) Each Lender organized under the laws of a jurisdiction outside the United States, on or prior to the date of its execution and delivery of this Agreement in the case of each Initial Lender and on the date of the Assignment and Acceptance pursuant to which it becomes a Lender in the case of each other Lender, and from time to time thereafter if requested in writing by the Borrower (but only so long as such Lender remains lawfully able to do so), shall provide each of the Administrative Agent and the Borrower with Internal Revenue Service form 1001 or 4224, or (in the case of a Lender that has certified in writing to the Administrative Agent that it is not a "bank" as defined in Section 881(c)(3)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code) Form W-8 (and, if such Non-U.S. Lender delivers a Form W-8, a certificate representing that such Non-U.S. Lender is not a "bank" for purposes of Section 881(c) of the Internal Revenue Code, is not a 10-percent shareholder (within

the meaning of Section 871(h)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code) of the Borrower and is not a controlled foreign corporation related to the Borrower (within the meaning of Section 864(d)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code)), as appropriate, or any successor form prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service, certifying that such Lender is entitled to benefits under an income tax treaty to which the United States is a party which reduces the rate of withholding tax on payments of interest or certifying that the income receivable pursuant to this Agreement is effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business in the United States. Each such Lender shall provide the Administrative Agent and the Borrower with a new form 1001, 4224 or W-8, as appropriate, if and at such time as the previously provided form becomes invalid. If the form provided by a Lender at the time such Lender first becomes a party to this Agreement or at any other time indicates a United States interest withholding tax rate in excess of zero, withholding tax at such rate shall be considered excluded from "Taxes" as defined in Section 2.14(a).

(f) For any period with respect to which a Lender has failed to provide the Borrower with the appropriate form described in subsection (e) of this Section 2.14 (other than if such failure is due to a change in law occurring subsequent to the date on which a form originally was required to be provided, or if such form otherwise is not required under the first sentence of subsection (e) of this Section 2.14), such Lender shall not be entitled to indemnification under subsection (a) or (c) of this Section 2.14 with respect to Taxes imposed by the United States by

26

reason of such failure; provided, however, that should a Lender become subject to Taxes because of its failure to deliver a form required hereunder, the Borrower shall take such steps as the Lender shall reasonably request to assist the Lender to recover such Taxes.

- (g) Notwithstanding any contrary provisions of this Agreement, in the event that a Lender that originally provided such form as may be required under subsection (e) of this Section 2.14 thereafter ceases to qualify for complete exemption from United States withholding tax, such Lender, with the prior written consent of the Borrower, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, may assign its interest under this Agreement to any assignee and such assignee shall be entitled to the same benefits under this Section 2.14 as the assignor provided that the rate of United States withholding tax applicable to such assignee shall not exceed the rate then applicable to the assignor.
- (h) Without prejudice to the survival of any other agreement of the Borrower hereunder, the agreements and obligations of the Borrower contained in this Section 2.14 shall survive the payment in full of principal and interest hereunder and under the Notes.
- (i) Any Lender claiming any additional amounts payable pursuant to this Section 2.14 agrees to use reasonable efforts (consistent with its internal policy and legal and regulatory restrictions) to change the jurisdiction of its Eurodollar Lending Office if the making of such a change would avoid the need for, or reduce the amount of, any such additional amounts that may thereafter accrue and would not, in the reasonable judgment of such Lender, be otherwise disadvantageous to such Lender.

SECTION 2.15. Sharing of Payments, Etc. If any Lender shall obtain any payment (whether voluntary, involuntary, through the exercise of any right of setoff, or otherwise) on account of the Revolving Credit Advances owing to it (other than pursuant to Section 2.11, 2.14 or 8.04(c)) in excess of its ratable share of payments on account of the Revolving Credit Advances obtained by all the Lenders, such Lender shall forthwith purchase from the other Lenders such participations in the Revolving Credit Advances owing to them as shall be necessary to cause such purchasing Lender to share the excess payment ratably with each of them; provided, however, that if all or any portion of such excess payment is thereafter recovered from such purchasing Lender, such purchase from each Lender shall be rescinded and such Lender shall repay to the purchasing Lender the purchase price to the extent of such recovery together with an amount equal to such Lender's ratable share (according to the proportion of (i) the amount of such Lender's required repayment to (ii) the total amount so recovered from the purchasing Lender) of any interest or other amount paid or payable by the purchasing Lender in respect of the total amount so recovered. The Borrower agrees that any Lender so purchasing a participation from another Lender pursuant to this Section 2.15 may, to the fullest extent permitted by law, exercise all its rights of payment (including the right of setoff) with respect to such participation as fully as if such Lender were the direct creditor of the Borrower in the amount of such participation.

SECTION 2.16. Extensions of Termination Date. No earlier than 60 days and no later than 45 days prior to each anniversary of the Effective Date, the Borrower may, by written notice to the Administrative Agent, request that the Termination Date then in effect be extended for a 1-year period. Such request shall be irrevocable and binding upon the Borrower. The

27

Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each Lender of such request. If a Lender agrees, in its individual and sole discretion, to so extend its Commitment (an 'Extending Lender'), it shall deliver to the Administrative Agent a written notice of its agreement to do so no earlier than 30 days and no later than 20 days prior to such anniversary date and the Administrative Agent shall notify the Borrower's request for extension of the Termination Date (a "Declining Lender") shall be terminated on the Termination Date then in effect (without regard to any extension by other Lenders) and on such Termination Date the Borrower shall pay in full the principal amount of all Advances owing to such Declining Lender, together with accrued interest thereon to the date of such payment of principal and all other amounts payable to such Declining Lender under this Agreement. The Administrative Agent shall promptly notify each Extending Lender of the aggregate Commitments of the Declining Lenders, or any of them, may offer to increase their respective Commitments by an aggregate amount up to the aggregate amount of the Declining Lenders' Commitments and any such Extending Lender shall deliver to the Administrative Agent a notice of its offer to so increase its Commitment no later than 15 days prior to such anniversary date. To the extent of any shortfall in the aggregate amount of extended Commitments, the Borrower shall have the right to require any Declining Lender, to assign in full its rights and obligations under this Agreement one or more Eligible Assignees designated by the Borrower and acceptable to the Administrative Agent, such acceptance not to be unreasonably withheld, that agree to accept all of such rights and obligations each a "Replacement Lender"), provided that (i) such increase and/or such assignment is otherwise in compliance with Section 8.07, (ii) such Declining Lender receives payment in full of the principal amount of all Advances owing to such Declining Lender, together with accrued interest thereon

SECTION 2.17. <u>Substitution of Lender</u>. If the obligation of any Lender to make Eurodollar Rate Advances has been suspended pursuant to Section 2.12 or any Lender has demanded compensation or the Borrower is otherwise required to pay additional amounts under Section 2.11 or 2.14, the Borrower shall have the right to seek a substitute lender or lenders who qualify as Eligible Assignees to assume, in accordance with the provisions of Section 8.07, the Commitment of such Lender and to purchase the Revolving Credit Advances made by such Lender (without recourse to or warranty by such Lender).

ARTICLE III

CONDITIONS TO EFFECTIVENESS AND LENDING

SECTION 3.01. Conditions Precedent to Effectiveness of Sections 2.01 and 2.03. Sections 2.01 and 2.03 of this Agreement shall become effective on and as of the first date (the "Effective Date") on which the following conditions precedent have been satisfied:

- (a) The Borrower shall have notified each Lender and the Administrative Agent in writing as to the proposed Effective Date.
- (b) The Borrower shall have paid all fees and other amounts due and payable.
- (c) The Borrower shall have repaid all outstanding advances and shall have paid all other amounts payable under each of the Existing Credit Facilities and the commitments under each such Existing Credit Facility shall have been terminated.
- (d) On the Effective Date, the following statements shall be true and the Administrative Agent shall have received for the account of each Lender a certificate signed by a duly authorized officer of the Borrower, dated the Effective Date, stating that:
 - (i) the representations and warranties contained in Section 4.01 are correct in all material respects on and as of the Effective Date; and
 - (ii) no event has occurred and is continuing that constitutes a Default.
- (e) The Administrative Agent shall have received on or before the Effective Date the following, each dated such day, in form and substance satisfactory to the Administrative Agent and (except for the Revolving Credit Notes) in sufficient copies for each Lender:
 - (i) The Revolving Credit Notes to the order of the Lenders, respectively.
 - (ii) A guaranty, in substantially the form of Exhibit E hereto (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the <u>Guaranty</u>"), duly executed by each of the Guarantors.

- (iii) An indemnity, subrogation and contribution agreement, in substantially the form of Exhibit F hereto (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the "Indemnity Agreement"), duly executed by the Borrower and each of the Guarantors.
- (iv) Certified copies of the resolutions of the board of directors of the Borrower approving this Agreement, the Notes and the Indemnity Agreement, and of all documents evidencing other necessary corporate action and governmental approvals, if any, with respect to this Agreement, the Notes and the Indemnity Agreement.
- (v) Certified copies of the resolutions of the board of directors of each of the Guarantors approving the Guaranty and the Indemnity Agreement, and of all documents evidencing other necessary corporate action and governmental approvals, if any, with respect to the Guaranty and the Indemnity Agreement.
 - (vi) A certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of each of the Guarantors certifying the names and true signatures of the officers of such

Guarantor authorized to sign the Guaranty and the Indemnity Agreement and the other documents to be delivered hereunder.

- (vii) certificate of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Borrower certifying the names and true signatures of the officers of the Borrower authorized to sign this Agreement, the Notes and the Indemnity Agreement and the other documents to be delivered hereunder.
 - (viii) favorable opinion of King & Spalding LLP, counsel for the Borrower, substantially in the form of Exhibit G hereto.
 - (ix) favorable opinion of Shearman & Sterling, counsel for the Administrative Agent, in form and substance satisfactory to the Administrative Agent.
- SECTION 3.02. Conditions Precedent to Each Revolving Credit Borrowing The obligation of each Lender to make a Revolving Credit Advance on the occasion of each Revolving Credit Borrowing shall be subject to the conditions precedent that the Effective Date shall have occurred and on the date of such Revolving Credit Borrowing the following statements shall be true (and each of the giving of the applicable Notice of Revolving Credit Borrowing and the acceptance by the Borrower of the proceeds of such Revolving Credit Borrowing shall constitute a representation and warranty by the Borrower that on the date of such Borrowing such statements are true):
 - (a) the representations and warranties contained in Section 4.01 (except the representations set forth in subsection (f) thereof and in subsection (h) thereof) are correct in all material respects on and as of the date of such Revolving Credit Borrowing, before and after giving effect to such Revolving Credit Borrowing and to the application of the proceeds therefrom, as though made on and as of such date; and
 - (b) no event has occurred and is continuing, or would result from such Revolving Credit Borrowing or from the application of the proceeds therefrom, that constitutes a Default.
- SECTION 3.03. Conditions Precedent to Each Competitive Bid Borrowing The obligation of each Lender that is to make a Competitive Bid Advance on the occasion of a Competitive Bid Borrowing to make such Competitive Bid Advance as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing is subject to the conditions precedent that (a) the Administrative Agent shall have received the written confirmatory Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing with respect thereto, (b) on or before the date of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, but prior to such Competitive Bid Borrowing, the Administrative Agent shall have received a Competitive Bid Note payable to the order of such Lender for each of the one or more Competitive Bid Advances to be made by such Lender as part of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, in a principal amount equal to the principal amount of the Competitive Bid Advance to be evidenced thereby and otherwise on such terms as were agreed to for such Competitive Bid Advance in accordance with Section 2.03, and (c) on the date of such Competitive Bid Borrowing statements shall be true (and each of the giving of the applicable Notice of Competitive Bid Borrowing and the acceptance by the

30

Borrower of the proceeds of such Competitive Bid Borrowing shall constitute a representation and warranty by the Borrower that on the date of such Competitive Bid Borrowing such statements are true):

- (i) the representations and warranties contained in Section 4.01 (except the representations set forth in subsection (f) thereof and in subsection (h) thereof) are correct in all material respects on and as of the date of such Competitive Bid Borrowing, before and after giving effect to such Competitive Bid Borrowing and to the application of the proceeds therefrom, as though made on and as of such date; and
- (ii) no event has occurred and is continuing, or would result from such Competitive Bid Borrowing or from the application of the proceeds therefrom, that constitutes a Default.
- SECTION 3.04. <u>Determinations Under Section 3.01</u>. For purposes of determining compliance with the conditions specified in Section 3.01, each Lender shall be deemed to have consented to, approved or accepted or to be satisfied with each document or other matter required thereunder to be consented to or approved by or acceptable or satisfactory to the Lenders unless an officer of the Administrative Agent responsible for the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall have received notice from such Lender prior to the proposed Effective Date, as notified by the Borrower to the Lenders, specifying its objection thereto. The Administrative Agent shall promptly notify the Borrower and the other Lenders of the occurrence of any such objection. The Administrative Agent shall promptly notify the Borrower and the centers of the Effective Date.

SECTION 3.05. Labor Dispute. Notwithstanding any condition precedent to the contrary contained herein, a labor dispute of any sort involving employees of the Borrower or its Subsidiaries shall not prevent the Borrower from borrowing hereunder unless as a result thereof the Borrower is in violation of the covenant set forth in Section 5.02(d) or a Default exists under Section 6.01(a) or (e).

ARTICLE IV

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

SECTION 4.01. Representations and Warranties of the Borrower. The Borrower represents and warrants as follows:

(a) Each of the Loan Parties and the Subsidiaries of the Borrower (i) is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation, (ii) has the requisite power and authority to own its property and assets and to carry on its business as now conducted, (iii) is qualified to do business in every jurisdiction where such qualification is required, except where the failure so to qualify would not result in a Material Adverse Effect, (iv) in the case of each of the Loan Parties, has the corporate power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under each Loan Document to which it is or is to be a party and each other agreement or instrument contemplated thereby to which it is or is to be a party and (v) in

3

the case of the Borrower, has the corporate power and authority to borrow under this Agreement.

- (b) The execution, delivery and performance by each of the Loan Parties of each Loan Document to which it is or is to be a party and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby are within such Loan Party's corporate powers, have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action and, if required, stockholder action, and do not (i) contravene the charter or other constitutive documents or by-laws of such Loan Party or any Subsidiary of the Borrower, (ii) violate any law or order of any Governmental Authority or any provision of any indenture, agreement or other instrument to which any Loan Party or any Subsidiary of the Borrower is a party or by which any of them or any of their property is or may be bound or affected, (iii) conflict with, result in a breach of or constitute (alone or with notice or lapse of time or both) a default under any such indenture, agreement or other instrument or (iv) result in the creation or imposition of any Lien upon or with respect to any property or assets now owned or hereafter acquired by any Loan Partyor any Subsidiary of the Borrower.
- (c) No authorization, approval or other action by, and no notice to or filing with, any Governmental Authority is required for the due execution, delivery and performance by any Loan Party of this Agreement, the Notes or any other Loan Document to which it is or is to be a party, or for the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, except for such authorizations, approvals, actions, notices or filings that have been made or obtained and are in full force and effect.
- (d) This Agreement has been, and each of the Notes and each other Loan Document when delivered hereunder will have been, duly executed and delivered by each of the Loan Parties party thereto. This Agreement is, and each of the Notes and each other Loan Document when delivered hereunder will be, the legal, valid and binding obligation of each of the Loan Parties party thereto enforceable against such Loan Party in accordance with their respective terms (subject, as to the enforcement of remedies, to applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium and similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally).

- (e) (i) The Consolidated balance sheet of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2002, and the related Consolidated statements of income and cash flows of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries for the Fiscal Year then ended, all audited and certified by Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent public accountants, copies of which have been furnished to each Lender, fairly present the Consolidated financial condition of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries at such dates and the Consolidated results of the operations of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries on such dates, all in accordance with GAAP consistently applied. Such balance sheets and the notes thereto disclose all material liabilities, direct or contingent, of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries on a Consolidated basis as of the dates thereof.
 - (f) There has been no Material Adverse Change since December 31, 2002.

- (g) Each of the Borrower and its Material Subsidiaries has good and marketable title to, or valid leasehold interests in, all their material properties and assets, except for such properties as are no longer used or useful in the conduct of their businesses or as have been disposed of in the ordinary course of business and except for minor defects in title that do not interfere with the ability of the Borrower or any of its Material Subsidiaries to conduct its businesses as currently conducted. All such properties and assets are free and clear of Liens, other than Liens expressly permitted by Section 5.02(b).
- (h) Except as set forth in the financial statements referred to in subsection (e) of this Section 4.01, there is no pending or, to the knowledge of the Borrower, threatened action, suit, investigation, litigation or proceeding affecting the Borrower or any of its Material Subsidiaries or any business, property or rights of the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary (i) as to which there is a reasonable possibility of an adverse determination and which, if adversely determined, could reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect or (ii) that purports to affect the legality, validity or enforceability of this Agreement, any Note or any other Loan Document or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby. Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries is in violation of any law, rule or regulation, or in default with respect to any judgement, writ, injunction or decree of any Governmental Authority, where such violation or default could result in a Material Adverse Effect.
- (i) Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any agreement or instrument or subject to any corporate restriction that has resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries is in default in any manner under any provision of any indenture or other agreement or instrument evidencing Debt, or any other material agreement or instrument to which it is a party or by which it or any of its properties or assets are or may be bound, where such default could result in a Material Adverse Effect.
- (j) Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries is engaged principally, or as one of its important activities, in the business of extending credit for the purpose of purchasing or carrying Margin Stock. No part of the proceeds of any Advance will be used, whether directly or indirectly, and whether immediately, incidentally or ultimately, (i) to purchase or carry Margin Stock or to extend credit to others for the purpose of purchasing or carrying Margin Stock or to refund indebtedness originally incurred for such purpose or (ii) for any purpose which entails a violation of, or which is inconsistent with, the provisions of the Regulations of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, including Regulation T, U or X thereof.
- (k) Neither the Borrower nor any of its Subsidiaries is (i) an "investment company", as defined in, or subject to regulation under, the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended or (ii) a "holding company" as defined in, or subject to regulation under, the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended.
 - (1) The Borrower will use the proceeds of the Advances only as a commercial paper backstop and for lawful general corporate purposes.

33

- (m) each of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries has filed or caused to be filed all federal, state and local tax returns required to have been filed by it and has paid or caused to be paid all taxes shown to be due and payable on such returns or on any assessments received by it, except taxes that are otherwise permitted in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.01(b).
- (n) No information, report, financial statement, exhibit or schedule prepared or furnished by or on behalf of the Borrower to the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent, the Arranger or any Lender in connection with the negotiation of any Loan Document or included therein or delivered pursuant thereto contained, contains or will contain any material misstatement of fact or omitted, omits or will omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were, are or will be made, not misleading.
- (o) Each of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries is in compliance in all material respects with the applicable provisions of ERISA and the regulations and published interpretations thereunder that are applicable to the Borrower and its Subsidiaries. As of the date hereof, no Reportable Event has occurred as to which the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries was required to file a report with the PBGC, and no material unfunded vested liabilities exist under any Plan.
- (p) Each of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries is in substantial compliance with all applicable federal, state and local environmental laws, regulations and ordinances governing its business, properties or assets with respect to discharges into the ground and surface water, emissions into the ambient air and generation, storage, transportation and disposal of waste materials or process by-products, except such noncompliances as are not likely to have a Material Adverse Effect. All licenses, permits or registrations required for the business of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries under any federal, state or local environmental laws, regulations or ordinances have been secured, and the Borrower and each Subsidiary are in substantial compliance therewith, except such licenses, permits or registrations the failure to secure or to comply therewith are not likely to have a Material Adverse Effect.

ARTICLE V

COVENANTS OF THE BORROWER

SECTION 5.01. <u>Affirmative Covenants</u>. So long as any Advance shall remain unpaid or any Lender shall have any Commitment hereunder, the Borrower will, and will cause each of its Material Subsidiaries to, unless the Required Lenders shall otherwise consent in writing:

(a) Compliance with Laws, Etc. Comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and orders of any Governmental Authority, whether now in effect or hereafter enacted, such compliance to include, without limitation, compliance with ERISA and applicable environmental laws, except for such noncompliance as would not result in a Material Adverse Effect.

- (b) Payment of Taxes, Etc. Pay and discharge promptly when due all taxes, assessments and governmental charges or levies imposed upon it or upon its income or profits or in respect of its property, before the same shall become delinquent or in default, as well as all lawful claims for labor, materials and supplies or otherwise that, if unpaid, might give rise to a Lien upon such properties or any part thereof; provided, however, that such payment and discharge shall not be required with respect to any such tax, assessment, charge, levy or claim so long as the validity or amount thereof shall be contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings or where the failure to pay such tax, assessment, charge, levy or claim would not (i) result in a Material Adverse Effect or (ii) result in the imposition of any lien securing a material amount in favor of any party entitling such party to priority of payment over the Lenders, and the Borrower or such Subsidiary shall, to the extent required by generally accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis, have set aside on its books adequate reserves with respect thereto.
- (c) Maintenance of Insurance. (i) Keep its insurable properties adequately insured at all times by financially sound and reputable insurers, (ii) maintain such other insurance, to such extent and against such risks, including fire and other risks insured against by extended coverage, as is customary with companies in the same or similar businesses, including public liability insurance against claims for personal injury or death or property damage occurring upon, in, about or in connection with the use of any properties owned, occupied or controlled by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, in such amount as the Borrower or such Subsidiary shall reasonably deem necessary and (iii) maintain such other insurance as may be required by law or as may be reasonably requested by the Lenders for purposes of assuring compliance with this Section 5.01(c) (it being understood that the Borrower may self-insure against certain risks to the extent customary with companies similarly situated and in the same or similar lines of business).
- (d) Preservation of Corporate Existence, Etc. Preserve and maintain, and cause its Subsidiaries to preserve and maintain, its corporate existence; obtain, preserve, renew, extend and keep in full force and effect the rights, licenses, permits, franchises, authorizations, patents, copyrights, trademarks and tradename material to the conduct of its business (unless the failure to so preserve or renew would not result in a Material Adverse Effect); and maintain and operate, and cause its Subsidiaries to maintain and operate, its businesses in materially the same manner in which they are currently conducted and operated; provided, however, that the Borrower and its Subsidiaries may consummate any merger or consolidation permitted under Section 5.02(e).
- (e) <u>Visitation Rights</u>. At any reasonable time and from time to time, upon ten Business Days' prior notice, permit the Administrative Agent or any Lender (other than a Designated Bidder) or any agents or representatives thereof, to examine and make copies of and abstracts from the records and books of account of, and visit the properties of, the Borrower and any of its Subsidiaries, and to discuss the affairs, finances and accounts of the Borrower and any of its Subsidiaries (i) with any of their officers and (ii) with their independent certified public

extent that any such information becomes public or is required to be disclosed by law or requested to be disclosed by any Governmental Authority; provided that such information may be disclosed to the same extent that other Confidential Information may be disclosed pursuant to Section 8.08).

- (f) <u>Keeping of Books</u>. Keep, and cause each of its Subsidiaries to keep, proper books of record and account, in which full and correct entries shall be made of all financial transactions and the assets and business of the Borrower and each such Subsidiary in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in effect from time to time.
- (g) <u>Maintenance of Properties, Etc.</u> Maintain and preserve all of its properties material to the conduct of its business in good repair, working order and condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and from time to time make, or cause to be made, all needful and proper repairs, renewals, additions, improvements and replacements thereto necessary in order that the business carried on in connection therewith may be properly conducted at all times.
 - (h) Reporting Requirements. In the case of the Borrower, furnish to each Agent and each Lender (other than a Designated Bidder):
 - (i) within 120 days after the end of each Fiscal Year of the Borrower, Consolidated balance sheets of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries showing the financial condition of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries as of the close of such Fiscal Year and the related statements of Consolidated income and statements of Consolidated cash flow as of and for such Fiscal Year, all such Consolidated financial statements of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries to be reported on by Deloitte & Touche or other independent accountants acceptable to the Required Lenders, and to be in form reasonably acceptable to the Required Lenders;
 - (ii) within 60 days after the end of the first three fiscal quarters of each Fiscal Year, unaudited Consolidated balance sheets and statements of Consolidated income and statements of Consolidated cash flow showing the financial condition and results of operations of the Borrower as of the end of each such quarter and, with respect to statements of Consolidated cash flow, for the then-elapsed portion of the Fiscal Year, certified by a Financial Officer of the Borrower as presenting fairly the financial position and results of operations of the Borrower on a Consolidated basis and as having been prepared in accordance with GAAP, in each case subject to normal year-end audit adjustments;
 - (iii) promptly after the same become publicly available, copies of (A) such annual, periodic and other reports, and such proxy statements and other information as shall be filed by the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act and (B) such registration statements filed by the Borrower or any Material Subsidiary pursuant to the requirements of Securities Act of 1933, as

36

amended, other than any such registration statements filed on Form S-8 or any comparable form;

- (iv) concurrently with subsections (h)(i) and (h)(ii) of this Section 5.01, a certificate of a Financial Officer of the Borrower stating compliance, as of the dates of the financial statements being furnished at such time, with the covenants set forth in Sections 5.02(a) and (d);
- (v) concurrently with subsections (h)(i) and (h)(ii) of this Section 5.01, a certificate of the Person referred to therein (which certificate furnished by the independent accountants referred to in subsection (h)(i) of this Section 5.01 may be limited to accounting matters and disclaim responsibility for legal interpretations) certifying that to the best of his, her or its knowledge no Default or Event of Default has occurred and, in the case of a certificate of a Financial Officer of the Borrower, if such a Default or Event of Default has occurred, specifying the nature and extent thereof and any corrective action taken or proposed to be taken with respect thereto;
 - (vi) prompt written notice of any Default, specifying the nature and extent thereof and any corrective action taken or proposed to be taken with respect thereto;
- (vii) prompt written notice of the filing or commencement of, or any threat or notice of intention of any Person to file or commence, any action, suit, arbitration proceeding or other proceeding, whether at law or in equity or by or before any Governmental Authority, against the Borrower or any Subsidiary thereof that, if adversely determined, could result in a Material Adverse Effect:
- (viii) prompt written notice of any development in the business or affairs of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries that has resulted in or which is likely, in the reasonable judgment of the Borrower, to result in a Material Adverse Effect (it being understood that material provided to any Agent or Lender pursuant to this subsection (h)(viii) of this Section 5.01 shall be kept confidential except to the extent that any such material becomes public or is required to be disclosed by law or requested to be disclosed by any Governmental Authority having jurisdiction over such Agent or Lender; provided that such information may be disclosed to the same extent that other Confidential Information may be disclosed pursuant to Section 8.08);
- (ix) prompt written notice of the issuance by any Governmental Authority of any injunction, order, decision or other restraint prohibiting, or having the effect of prohibiting, the making of the Advances or the initiation of any litigation or similar proceedings seeking any such injunction, order or other restraint;
 - $(x) \hspace{1cm} \text{prompt written notice of any Change of Control;} \\$

37

- (xi) prompt written notice of any change in the identity of the Principal Properties from those set forth on the schedule to be delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(j) after the date such schedule is delivered to the Administrative Agent and each Lender; and
- (xii) prompt written notice of any change in the identity of the Restricted Subsidiaries from those set forth on the schedule to be delivered pursuant to Section 5.01(j) after the date such schedule is delivered to the Administrative Agent and each Lender.
- (i) Compliance with ERISA. Comply in all material respects with the applicable provisions of ERISA and furnish to the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent and each Lender (other than a Designated Bidder) (i) as soon as possible, and in any event within 30 days after any Financial Officer of the Borrower knows or has reason to know that any Reportable Event has occurred that alone or together with any other Reportable Event with respect to the same or another Plan could reasonably be expected to result in liability of the Borrower or any Subsidiary to the PBGC in an aggregate amount exceeding \$1,000,000, a statement of a Financial Officer setting forth details as to such Reportable Event and the action proposed to be taken with respect thereto, together with a copy of the notice, if any, of such Reportable Event given to the PBGC and (ii) promptly after receipt thereof, a copy of any notice the Borrower or any Subsidiary may receive from the PBGC relating to the intention of the PBGC to terminate any Plan or Plans or to appoint a trustee to administer any Plan or Plans.
- (j) <u>Principal Properties; Restricted Subsidiaries.</u> Promptly deliver to the Administrative Agent and each Lender (other than a Designated Bidder) on the date on which the Borrower's Public Debt Rating is lower than S&P AA- or Moody's AA3, a schedule setting forth each Principal Property and each Restricted Subsidiary as of such date.

SECTION 5.02. <u>Negative Covenants</u>. So long as any Advance shall remain unpaid or any Lender shall have any Commitment hereunder, the Borrower will not, and will not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, without the written consent of the Required Lenders:

(a) Secured Indebtedness. In the case of the Borrower and each of its Restricted Subsidiaries, create, assume, incur or guarantee, or permit any Restricted Subsidiary to create, assume, incur or guarantee (each such creation, assumption, incurrence or guarantee being an "Incurrence"), any Secured Indebtedness without making provision whereby all amounts outstanding under this Agreement and each other Loan Document shall be secured equally and ratably with (or prior to) such Secured Indebtedness (together with, if the Borrower shall so determine, any other Debt of the Borrower or such Restricted Subsidiary then existing or thereafter created that is not subordinate to such amounts outstanding under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents) so long as such Secured Indebtedness shall be outstanding, unless such Secured Indebtedness, when added to (i) the aggregate amount of all Secured Indebtedness then outstanding (not including in this computation (A) any Secured Indebtedness if all amounts outstanding under this Agreement and each other Loan

Document are secured equally and ratably with (or prior to) such Secured Indebtedness and (B) any Secured Indebtedness that is concurrently being retired) and (ii) the aggregate amount of all Attributable Debt then outstanding pursuant to Sale and Leaseback Transactions entered into by the Borrower after December 1, 1989, or entered into by any Restricted Subsidiary after December 1, 1989, or, if later, the date on which such Subsidiary became a Restricted Subsidiary (not including in this computation any Attributable Debt that is currently being retired) would not exceed 10% of Consolidated Net Tangible Assets at the time of such Incurrence.

- (b) <u>Liens, Etc.</u> In the case of the Borrower and each of the Restricted Subsidiaries, create, incur, assume or permit to exist any Lien on any property or assets (including stock or other securities of any Person, including any Subsidiary) now owned or hereafter acquired, or assign or convey any rights to or security interests in any future revenue, except:
 - (i) Liens on property or assets of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries existing on the date hereof and (A) disclosed in the financial statements referred to in Section 4.01(e) or (B) securing Debt in an aggregate principal amount not in excess of \$50,000,000; provided that such Liens shall secure only those obligations which they secure on the date hereof;
 - (ii) any Lien existing on any property or asset prior to the acquisition thereof by the Borrower or any Subsidiary; provided that (A) such Lien is not created in contemplation of or in connection with such acquisition and (B) such Lien does not apply to any other property or assets of the Borrower or any Subsidiary;
 - (iii) carriers', warehousemen's, mechanics', materialmen's, repairmen's or other like Liens arising in the ordinary course of business and securing obligations that are not due or which are otherwise allowed in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.01(b);
 - (iv) pledges and deposits made in the ordinary course of business in compliance with workmen's compensation, unemployment insurance and other social security laws or regulations;
 - (v) deposits to secure the performance of bids, trade contracts (other than for Debt), leases (other than Capital Lease Obligations), statutory obligations, surety and appeal bonds, performance bonds and other obligations of a like nature incurred in the ordinary course of business;
 - (vi) zoning restrictions, easements, rights-of-way, restrictions on use of real property and other similar encumbrances incurred in the ordinary course of business that, in the aggregate, are not substantial in amount and do not materially detract from the value of the property subject thereto or interfere with the ordinary conduct of the business of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries;

39

- (vii) Liens upon any property acquired, constructed or improved by the Borrower or any Subsidiary that are created or incurred contemporaneously with acquisition, construction or improvement to secure or provide for the payment of any part of the purchase price of such property or the cost of such construction or improvement (but no other amounts); provided that any such Lien shall not apply to any other property of the Borrower or any Subsidiary;
 - (viii) Liens securing the payment of taxes, assessments and governmental charges or levies, either (A) not delinquent or (B) permitted in accordance with Section 5.01(b);
 - (ix) Liens on the property or assets of any Subsidiary in favor of the Borrower or another Subsidiary;
- (x) extensions, renewals and replacements of Liens referred to in subsections (b)(i) through (b)(ix) of this Section 5.02 provided that any such extension, renewal or replacement Lien shall be limited to the property or assets covered by the Lien extended, renewed or replaced and that the obligations secured by any such extension, renewal or replacement Lien shall be in an amount not greater than the amount of the obligations secured by the Lien extended, renewed or replaced;
 - (xi) Liens in connection with Debt permitted to be incurred pursuant to subsections (a) and (c) of this Section 5.02;
- (xii) Liens in connection with Debt incurred in the ordinary course of business in connection with workmen's compensation, unemployment insurance and other social security laws or regulations;
- (xiii) any attachment or judgment Lien not in excess of \$50,000,000 unless (A) enforcement proceedings shall have been commenced by any creditor upon such attachment or judgment or (B) there shall be any period of 45 consecutive days during which a stay of enforcement of such attachment or judgment, by reason of a pending appeal or otherwise, shall not be in effect;
 - (xiv) other Liens securing Debt in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 1% of Consolidated Net Worth at any time outstanding; and
- (xv) Liens arising in connection with rights of setoff that commercial banks and other financial institutions obtain against monies, securities or other properties of the Borrower and its Restricted Subsidiaries in possession of or on deposit with such banks or financial institutions, whether in general or special deposit accounts or held for safekeeping, transmission, collection or otherwise; and
 - (xvi) Liens on aircraft, airframes or aircraft engines, aeronautic equipment or computers and electronic data processing equipment.

40

- (c) <u>Sale and Lease-Back Transactions.</u> In the case of the Borrower and its Restricted Subsidiaries, enter into any Sale and Leaseback Transaction unless at such time it would be permitted to enter into such Sale and Leaseback Transaction pursuant to Section 1006 of the Debenture Indenture.
- (d) <u>Consolidated Net Worth.</u> In the case of the Borrower, permit its Consolidated Net Worth at any time to be less than \$3.0 billion *provided, however*; that the Borrower shall be permitted to have a Consolidated Net Worth of not less than \$2.5 billion for a single period during the term of this Agreement of not more than 12 months' duration.
- (e) Mergers, Etc. Merge or consolidate with or into, or convey, transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of (whether in one transaction or in a series of transactions) all or substantially all of its assets (whether now owned or hereafter acquired) to, any Person, or permit another Person to merge into it, or acquire all or substantially all of the assets of any other Person, except that (i) any Subsidiary of the Borrower may merge into the Borrower or any other Subsidiary of the Borrower or any Subsidiary of the Borrower may merge or consolidate with or into any other Person so long as the Borrower or such Subsidiary is the surviving corporation, and (iii) the Borrower and any of its Subsidiaries may acquire all or substantially all of the assets of another Person; provided that any Subsidiary that is not a Guarantor may not acquire all or substantially all of the assets of a Guarantor unless such Subsidiary duly executes a guaranty in favor of the Lenders in substantially the form of Exhibit E hereto; and provided further, in each case, that no Default shall have occurred and be continuing at the time of such proposed transaction or would result therefrom.

ARTICLE VI

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

SECTION 6.01. Events of Default. If any of the following events ("Events of Default") shall occur and be continuing:

- (a) the Borrower shall fail to pay (i) any principal of any Advance when the same becomes due and payable or (ii) any interest on any Advance or any other amount payable under this Agreement or any Note when the same becomes due and payable and such failure to pay such interest or such other amount shall remain unremedied for three Business Days; or
- (b) any representation or warranty made or deemed made by any Loan Party (or any of its officers) in or in connection with any Loan Document or any Borrowing under this Agreement, or any representation, warranty, statement or information contained in any report, certificate, financial statement or other instrument furnished in connection with or pursuant to any Loan Document, shall prove to have been incorrect in any material respect when made or deemed made; or

- the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries shall fail to pay any principal of or premium or interest on any Debt that is outstanding in a principal amount of at least \$100,000,000 in the aggregate (but excluding Debt evidenced by the Notes) of the Borrower or such Subsidiary (as the case may be), when the same becomes due and payable (whether at maturity, by acceleration or otherwise), and such failure shall continue after the applicable grace period, if any, specified in the agreement or instrument relating to such Debt; or any other event shall occur or condition shall exist under any agreement or instrument relating to any such Debt and shall continue after the applicable grace period, if any, specified in such agreement or instrument, if the effect of such event or condition is to accelerate (with or without notice or lapse of time or both), or to permit the acceleration (with or without notice or lapse of time or both) of, the maturity of such Debt: or
- (e) the Borrower or any of its Material Subsidiaries shall generally not pay its debts as such debts become due, or shall admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally, or shall make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or any proceeding shall be instituted by or against the Borrower or any of its Material Subsidiaries seeking to adjudicate it a bankrupt or insolvent, or seeking liquidation, winding up, reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, protection, relief, or composition of it or its debts under any law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization or relief of debtors, or seeking the entry of an order for relief or the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar official for it or for any substantial part of its property and, in the case of any such proceeding instituted against it (but not instituted by it), either such proceeding shall remain undismissed or unstayed for a period of 60 days, or any of the actions sought in such proceeding (including, without limitation, the entry of an order for relief against, or the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar official for, it or for any substantial part of its property) shall occur; or the Borrower or any of its Material Subsidiaries shall take any corporate action to authorize any of the actions set forth above in this subsection (e); or
- (f) any final judgment or order for the payment of money in excess of \$50,000,000 in the aggregate shall be rendered against the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries or any combination thereof and either (i) enforcement proceedings shall have been commenced by any creditor upon such judgment or order or (ii) there shall be any period of 45 consecutive days during which a stay of enforcement of such judgment or order, by reason of a pending appeal or otherwise, shall not be in effect; or
 - (g) any Change of Control shall have occurred; or

- (h) a Reportable Event or Reportable Events, or a failure to make a required installment or other payment (within the meaning of Section 412(n)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code), shall have occurred with respect to any Plan or Plans that reasonably could be expected to result in liability of the Borrower or any Subsidiary to the PBGC or to a Plan in an aggregate amount exceeding \$25,000,000 and, within 30 days after the reporting of any such Reportable Event or Reportable Events to the Administrative Agent, the Administrative Agent shall have notified the Borrower, in writing that (i) the Required Lenders have made a determination that, on the basis of such Reportable Event or Reportable Events or the failure to make a required payment, there are reasonable grounds (A) for the termination of such Plan or Plans by the PBGC or (B) for the appointment by the appropriate United States District Court of a trustee to administer such Plan or Plans and (ii) as a result thereof, an Event of Default exists hereunder; or the PBGC shall have instituted proceedings to terminate any Plan or Plans with vested unfunded liabilities aggregating in excess of \$25,000,000; or a trustee shall be appointed by a United States District Court to administer any such Plan or Plans and the Borrower is being requested to make a payment with respect to vested unfunded liabilities aggregating in excess of \$25,000,000; or
- (i) (i) any senior debt securities of the Borrower shall become rated lower than BBB- (or the equivalent thereof) by S&P or lower than Baa3 (or the equivalent thereof) by Moody's and such ratings shall remain in effect for a period of 90 days (it being understood that if either S&P or Moody's (but not both such rating agencies) shall cease to rate the senior debt securities of the Borrower, then the occurrence of the event described in this subsection (i)(i) shall be determined solely by reference to the rating assigned to the senior debt securities of the Borrower by the rating agency continuing to rate such securities) or (ii) the senior debt securities of the Borrower shall cease to be rated by both S&P and Moody's; or
- (j) this Agreement, the Guaranty or any other Loan Document shall for any reason cease to be, or shall be asserted by the Borrower, any Guarantor or any other Subsidiary of the Borrower not to be, a legal, valid and binding obligation of any party thereto (other than the Administrative Agent or any Lender), enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as otherwise permitted by Section 5.02(e);

then, and in any such event, the Administrative Agent (i) shall at the request, or may with the consent, of the Required Lenders, by notice to the Borrower, declare the obligation of each Lender to make Advances to be terminated, whereupon the same shall forthwith terminate, and (ii) shall at the request, or may with the consent, of the Required Lenders, by notice to the Borrower, declare the Notes, all interest thereon and all other amounts payable under this Agreement to be forthwith due and payable, whereupon the Notes, all such interest and all such amounts shall become and be forthwith due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest or further notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived by the Borrower; provided, however, that in the event of an actual or deemed entry of an order for relief with respect to the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries under the Federal Bankruptcy Code, (A) the obligation of each Lender to make Advances shall automatically be terminated and (B) the Notes, all such interest and all such amounts shall automatically become and be due and payable,

43

without presentment, demand, protest or any notice of any kind, all of which are hereby expressly waived by the Borrower.

ARTICLE VII

THE AGENTS

SECTION 7.01. Authorization and Action. Each Lender hereby appoints and authorizes (a) the Administrative Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise such powers and discretion under this Agreement as are delegated to the Administrative Agent by the terms hereof, together with such powers and discretion as are reasonably incidental thereto, and (b) the Documentation Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise such powers and discretion under this Agreement as are delegated to the Documentation Agent by the terms hereof, together with such powers and discretion as are reasonably incidental thereto. As to any matters not expressly provided for by this Agreement (including, without limitation, enforcement or collection of the Notes), the Administrative Agent shall not be required to exercise any discretion or take any action, but shall be required to act or to refrain from acting (and shall be fully protected in so acting or refraining from acting) upon the instructions of the Required Lenders, and such instructions shall be binding upon all Lenders and all holders of Notes; provided, however, that the Administrative Agent shall not be required to take any action that exposes the Administrative Agent to personal liability or that is contrary to this Agreement or applicable law. The Administrative Agent agrees to give to each Lender prompt notice of each notice given to it by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

SECTION 7.02. Administrative Agent's Reliance, Etc. Neither the Administrative Agent or the Documentation Agent nor any of its respective directors, officers, agents or employees shall be liable for any action taken or omitted to be taken by it or them under or in connection with this Agreement, except for its or their own gross negligence or willful misconduct. Without limitation of the generality of the foregoing, the Administrative Agent and the Documentation Agent: (i) may treat the payee of any Note as the holder thereof until the Administrative Agent receives and accepts an Assignment and Acceptance entered into by the Lender that is the payee of such Note, as assignor, and an Eligible Assignee, as assignee, as provided in Section 8.07; (ii) may consult with legal counsel (including counsel for the Borrower), independent public accountants and other experts selected by it and shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted to be taken in good faith by it in accordance with the advice of such counsel, accountants or experts; (iii) make no warranty or representation to any Lender and shall not be responsible to any Lender for any statements, warranties or representations (whether written or oral) made in or in connection with this Agreement; (iv) shall not have any duty to ascertain or to inquire as to the performance or observance of any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement on the part of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries; (v) shall not be responsible to any Lender for the due execution, legality, validity, enforceability, genuineness, sufficiency or value of this Agreement or any other instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto; and (vi) shall incur no liability under or in respect of this Agreement by acting upon any notice, consent, certificate or other instrument or writing (which may be by

44

telecopier, telegram or telex) believed by it to be genuine and signed or sent by the proper party or parties.

SECTION 7.03. Citibank, B of A, Bank One and Their Affiliates. With respect to its Commitment, the Advances made by it and the Note issued to it, each of Citibank, B of A and Bank One shall have the same rights and powers under this Agreement as any other Lender and may exercise the same as though it were not the Administrative Agent or a Co-Documentation Agent, respectively; and the term "Lender" or "Lenders" shall, unless otherwise expressly indicated, include each of Citibank, B of A and Bank One in its individual capacity. Citibank, B of A, Bank One and their Affiliates may accept deposits from, lend money to, act as trustee under indentures of, accept investment banking engagements from and generally engage in any kind of business with, the Borrower, any of its Subsidiaries and any Person who may do business with or own securities of the Borrower or any such Subsidiary, all as if Citibank, B of A, Bank One and their Affiliates were not the Administrative Agent or a Co-Documentation Agent, respectively, and without any duty to account therefor to the Lenders.

SECTION 7.04. <u>Lender Credit Decision</u>. Each Lender acknowledges that it has, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent or any other Lender and based on the financial statements referred to in Section 4.01 and such other documents and information as it has deemed appropriate, made its own credit analysis and decision to enter into this Agreement. Each Lender also acknowledges that it will, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent or any other Lender and based on such documents and information as it shall deem appropriate at the time, continue to make its own credit decisions in taking or not taking action under this Agreement.

SECTION 7.05. Indemnification. The Lenders (other than the Designated Bidders) agree to indemnify each of the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent and their respective Affiliates (to the extent not reimbursed by the Borrower), ratably according to the respective principal amounts of the Revolving Credit Notes then held by each of them (or if no Revolving Credit Notes are at the time outstanding or if any Revolving Credit Notes are held by Persons that are not Lenders, ratably according to the respective amounts of their Commitments), from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, expenses or disbursements of any kind or nature whatsoever that may be imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent or such Affiliate in any way relating to or arising out of this Agreement or any action taken or omitted by the Administrative Agent or the Documentation Agent under this Agreement (collectively, the "Indemnified Costs"), provided that no Lender shall be liable for any portion of such Indemnified Costs resulting from the Administrative Agent's, the Documentation Agent's or such Affiliate's gross negligence or willful misconduct. Without limitation of the foregoing, each Lender (other than the Designated Bidders) agrees to reimburse the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent and their respective Affiliates promptly upon demand for its ratable share of any out-of-pocket expenses (including counsel fees and disbursements) incurred by the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent or such Affiliate in connection with the preparation, execution, delivery, administration, modification, amendment or enforcement (whether through negotiations, legal proceedings or otherwise) of, or legal advice in respect of rights or responsibilities under, this Agreement, to the extent that the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent or such Affiliate is not reimbursed for such expenses by the

45

Borrower. In the case of any investigation, litigation or proceeding giving rise to any Indemnified Costs, this Section 7.05 applies whether any such investigations, litigation or proceeding is brought by the Administrative Agent, any Lender or a third party.

SECTION 7.06. Successor Agents. The Administrative Agent or the Documentation Agent may resign at any time by giving written notice thereof to the Lenders and the Borrower and may be removed at any time with or without cause by the Required Lenders. Upon any such resignation or removal, the Required Lenders shall have the right to appoint a successor Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent, as the case may be, with the approval of the Borrower so long as no Event of Default exists, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed. If no successor Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent, as the case may be, shall have been so appointed by the Required Lenders, and shall have accepted such appointment, within 30 days after the retiring Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent may, on behalf of the Lenders, with the approval of the Borrower, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, appoint a successor Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent, as the case may be, which shall be a commercial bank organized under the laws of the United States of America or of any State thereof and having a combined capital and surplus of at least \$500,000,000. Upon the acceptance of any appointment as Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent hereunder by a successor Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent, as the case may be, such successor Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent hereunder by a successor Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent, and the retiring Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent, and the retiring Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent, and the retiring Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent, the provisions of this Article VII shall inure to its benefit as to any actions taken or omitted to be taken by it while it was Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent under this Agreement.

SECTION 7.07. <u>Documentation Agent</u>. The Documentation Agent shall not have any duty in connection with this Agreement and the other Loan Documents except as expressly set forth herein or in the other Loan Documents.

ARTICLE VIII

MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 8.01. Amendments, Etc. No amendment or waiver of any provision of this Agreement or the Revolving Credit Notes, nor consent to any departure by the Borrower therefrom, shall in any event be effective unless the same shall be in writing and signed by the Required Lenders, and then such waiver or consent shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for which given; provided, however, that no amendment, waiver or consent shall, unless in writing and signed by all the Lenders (other than the Designated Bidders), do any of the following: (a) waive any of the conditions specified in Section 3.01, 3.02 or 3.03, (b) except as permitted in accordance with Section 2.16, increase the Commitments of the Lenders or subject the Lenders to any additional obligations, (c) reduce the principal of, or

46

interest on, the Revolving Credit Notes or any fees or other amounts payable hereunder, (d) except as permitted in accordance with Section 2.16, postpone any date fixed for any payment of principal of, or interest on, the Revolving Credit Notes or any fees or other amounts payable hereunder, (e) change the percentage of the Commitments or of the aggregate unpaid principal amount of the Revolving Credit Notes, or the number of Lenders, that shall be required for the Lenders or any of them to take any action hereunder, (f) except as permitted in accordance with Section 5.02(e), release any Guarantor under the Guaranty or (g) amend this Section 8.01; and *provided further* that no amendment, waiver or consent shall, unless in writing and signed by the Administrative Agent or the Documentation Agent in addition to the Lenders required above to take such action, affect the rights or duties of the Administrative Agent or Documentation Agent, as the case may be, under this Agreement or any Note.

SECTION 8.02. Notices, Etc. All notices and other communications provided for hereunder shall be in writing (including telecopier, telegraphic or telex communication) and mailed, telecopied, telegraphed, telexed or delivered, if to the Borrower, at its address at 55 Glenlake Parkway, N.E., Atlanta, Georgia 30328, Attention: Financial Resources Department (telecopier number (404) 828-6562); if to any Initial Lender, at its Domestic Lending Office specified opposite its name on Schedule I hereto; if to any other Lender, at its Domestic Lending Office specified in the Assignment and Acceptance pursuant to which it became a Lender; if to the Administrative Agent, at its address at Two Penns Way, Suite 200, New Castle, Delaware 19720, Attention: Pat Dimery (telecopier number (302) 894-6120), with a copy to 400 Perimeter Center Terrace, Suite 600, Atlanta, Georgia 30346, Attention: Bruce Simmons (telecopier number (770) 668-8137); if to B of A as a Co-Documentation Agent, at its address at 901 Main Street, 14th Floor, Dallas, Texas 75202, Attention: Betty Canales (telecopier number (214) 290-8377); and if to Bank One as a Co-Documentation Agent, at its address at 1 Bank One Plaza, Chicago, Illinois 60670, Attention: Mark Gibbs (telecopier number (312) 732-1117; or, as to the Borrower or the Administrative Agent, at such other address as shall be designated by such party in a written notice to the other parties and, as to each other party, at such other address as shall be designated by such party in a written notice to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent. All such notices and communications shall, when mailed, telecopied, telegraphed or telexed, be effective when deposited in the mails, telecopied, delivered to the telegraph company or confirmed by telex answerback, respectively, except that notices and communications to the Administrative Agent pursuant to Article II, III or VII shall not be effective until received by the Administrative Agent.

SECTION 8.03. No Waiver: Remedies. No failure on the part of any Lender, the Administrative Agent or the Documentation Agent to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right, power or privilege hereunder or under any Note shall operate as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, power or privilege preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. The remedies herein provided are cumulative and not exclusive of any remedies provided by law.

SECTION 8.04. Costs and Expenses. (a) The Borrower agrees to pay on demand all reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses of the Administrative Agent and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. in connection with the preparation, execution, delivery, administration, modification and amendment of this Agreement, the Notes, each other Loan Document and the other documents to be delivered hereunder, including, without limitation, (i)

47

all due diligence, syndication (including printing, distribution and bank meetings), transportation, computer, duplication, appraisal, consultant, and audit expenses and (ii) the reasonable fees and expenses of counsel for the Administrative Agent with respect thereto and with respect to advising the Administrative Agent as to its rights and responsibilities under this Agreement. The Borrower further agrees to pay on demand all costs and expenses of the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent and the Lenders, if any (including, without limitation, reasonable counsel fees and expenses), in connection with the enforcement (whether through negotiations, legal proceedings or otherwise) of this Agreement, the Notes, each other Loan Document and the other documents to be delivered hereunder, including, without limitation, reasonable fees and expenses of counsel for the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent and each Lender in connection with the enforcement of rights under this Section 8.04(a).

(b) The Borrower agrees to defend, protect, indemnify and hold harmless the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent, the Arranger, each Lender, each of their Affiliates and their officers, directors, employees, agents and advisors (each, an "Indemnified Party") from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses (other than loss of profits), damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, claims, costs, expenses and disbursements of any kind or nature whatsoever (excluding any taxes and including, without limitation, the reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel for such Indemnified Party in connection with any investigative, administrative or judicial proceeding, whether or not such Indemnified Party shall be designated a party thereto), imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against such Indemnified Party in any manner relating to or arising out of this Agreement, the Notes, the other Loan Documents, any of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, the Commitments, the use of proceeds, or any act, event or transaction related or attendant thereto (collectively, the "Indemnified Matters"); provided, however, the

Borrower shall have no obligation to an Indemnified Party hereunder with respect to Indemnified Matters directly caused by or directly resulting from the willful misconduct or gross negligence of such Indemnified Party, as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction.

(c) If any payment of principal of, or Conversion of, any Eurodollar Rate Advance or LIBO Rate Advance is made by the Borrower to or for the account of a Lender other than on the last day of the Interest Period for such Advance, as a result of a payment or Conversion pursuant to Section 2.08(c) or (d), 2.10 or 2.12, acceleration of the maturity of the Notes pursuant to Section 6.01 or for any other reason, or by an Eligible Assignee to a Lender other than on the last day of the Interest Period for such Advance upon an assignment of rights and obligations under this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.07 as a result of a demand by the Borrower pursuant to Section 8.07(a), the Borrower shall, upon demand by such Lender (with a copy of such demand to the Administrative Agent), pay to the Administrative Agent for the account of such Lender any amounts required to compensate such Lender for any additional losses, costs or expenses that it may reasonably incur as a result of such payment or Conversion, including, without limitation, any loss (including loss of anticipated profits), cost or expense incurred by reason of the liquidation or reemployment of deposits or other funds acquired by any Lender to fund or maintain such Advance.

SECTION 8.05. Right of Setoff. Upon (a) the occurrence and during the continuance of any Event of Default and (b) the making of the request or the granting of the consent specified by Section 6.01 to authorize the Administrative Agent to declare the Notes due

48

and payable pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.01, each Lender and each of its Affiliates is hereby authorized at any time and from time to time, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to set off and apply any and all deposits (general or special, time or demand, provisional or final, but excluding any accounts designated as collateral accounts securing other Debt) at any time held and other indebtedness at any time owing by such Lender or such Affiliate to or for the account of the Borrower against any and all of the obligations of the Borrower now or hereafter existing under this Agreement and the Note held by such Lender, whether or not such Lender shall have made any demand under this Agreement or such Note and although such obligations may be unmatured. Each Lender agrees promptly to notify the Borrower after any such setoff and application, provided that the failure to give such notice shall not affect the validity of such setoff and application. The rights of each Lender and its Affiliates under this Section 8.05 are in addition to other rights and remedies (including, without limitation, other rights of setoff) that such Lender and its Affiliates may have.

SECTION 8.06. <u>Binding Effect</u>. This Agreement shall become effective (other than Sections 2.01 and 2.03, which shall only become effective upon satisfaction of the conditions precedent set forth in Sections 3.01 and 3.03) when it shall have been executed by the Borrower, the Administrative Agent and the Documentation Agent and when the Administrative Agent shall have been notified by each Initial Lender that such Initial Lender has executed it and thereafter shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent and each Lender and their respective successors and assigns, except that the Borrower shall not have the right to assign its rights hereunder or any interest herein without the prior written consent of the Lenders.

SECTION 8.07. <u>Assignments, Designations and Participations</u> (a) Each Lender (other than a Designated Bidder) may, with the consent of the Borrower, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed, and shall, so long as no Default has occurred and is continuing and if demanded by the Borrower (pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.17) upon at least five Business Days' notice to such Lender and the Administrative Agent, assign to one or more Persons all or a portion of its rights and obligations under this Agreement (including, without limitation, all or a portion of its Commitment, the Revolving Credit Advances owing to it and the Revolving Credit Note or Notes held by it); provided, however, that:

- (i) each such assignment shall be of a constant, and not a varying, percentage of all rights and obligations under this Agreement (other than any right to make Competitive Bid Advances, Competitive Bid Advances owing to it or Competitive Bid Notes),
- (ii) except in the case of an assignment to a Person that, immediately prior to such assignment, was a Lender or an assignment of all of a Lender's rights and obligations under this Agreement, the amount of the Commitment of the assigning Lender being assigned pursuant to each such assignment (determined as of the date of the Assignment and Acceptance with respect to such assignment) shall in no event be less than \$10,000,000 or an integral multiple of \$1,000,000 in excess thereof,
 - (iii) each such assignment shall be to an Eligible Assignee,

49

- (iv) each such assignment made as a result of a demand by the Borrower pursuant to this Section 8.07(a) shall be arranged by the Borrower at the Borrower's expense, shall be to an Eligible Assignee acceptable to the Administrative Agent (which acceptance shall not be unreasonably withheld) and shall be either an assignment of all of the rights and obligations of the assigning Lender under this Agreement or an assignment of a portion of such rights and obligations made concurrently with another such assignment or other such assignments that together cover all of the rights and obligations of the assigning Lender under this Agreement,
- (v) no Lender shall be obligated to make any such assignment as a result of a demand by the Borrower pursuant to this Section 8.07(a) unless and until such Lender shall have received one or more payments from either the Borrower or one or more Eligible Assignees in an aggregate amount at least equal to the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Advances owing to such Lender, together with accrued interest thereon to the date of payment of such principal amount and all other amounts payable to such Lender under this Agreement, and
- (vi) the parties to each such assignment shall execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent, for its acceptance and recording in the Register, an Assignment and Acceptance, together with any Revolving Credit Note subject to such assignment and a processing and recordation fee of \$3,000,
- (vii) if such assignment shall be made as a result of a demand by the Borrower pursuant to this Section 8.07(a) to an assignee that, immediately prior to such assignment, was neither a Lender nor an Affiliate of a Lender, an administrative fee of \$3,000 shall have been paid by the Borrower to the Administrative Agent upon its demand,
- (viii) notwithstanding any other provision set forth in this Agreement, a Lender may assign to any of its Affiliates all or a portion of its rights and obligations under this Agreement (including, without limitation, all or a portion of its Commitment, the Revolving Credit Advances owing to it and the Revolving Credit Note or Notes held by it) upon notice to the Borrower and the Administrative Agent, with or without the consent of the Borrower), so long as such assignment is otherwise in compliance with this Agreement, and
- (ix) notwithstanding any other provision set forth in this Agreement, a Lender may assign to any assignee all or a portion of its rights and obligations under this Agreement (including, without limitation, all or a portion of its Commitment, the Revolving Credit Advances owing to it and the Revolving Credit Note or Notes held by it) upon notice to the Administrative Agent, with or without the consent of the Borrower, so long as any Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing.

Upon such execution, delivery, acceptance and recording, from and after the effective date specified in each Assignment and Acceptance, (A) the assignee thereunder shall be a party hereto and, to the extent that rights and obligations hereunder have been assigned to it pursuant to such Assignment and Acceptance, have the rights and obligations of a Lender hereunder and (B) the

50

Lender assignor thereunder shall, to the extent that rights and obligations hereunder have been assigned by it pursuant to such Assignment and Acceptance, relinquish its rights and be released from its obligations under this Agreement (and, in the case of an Assignment and Acceptance covering all or the remaining portion of an assigning Lender's rights and obligations under this Agreement, such Lender shall cease to be a party hereto).

- (b) By executing and delivering an Assignment and Acceptance, the Lender assignor thereunder and the assignee thereunder confirm to and agree with each other and the other parties hereto as follows:
 - (i) other than as provided in such Assignment and Acceptance, such assigning Lender makes no representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with respect to any statements, warranties or representations made in or in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan Document or the execution, legality, validity, enforceability, genuineness, sufficiency or value of this Agreement or any other Loan Document or any other instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto or thereto;
 - (ii) such assigning Lender makes no representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with respect to the financial condition of any Loan Party or the performance or observance by any Loan Party of any of its obligations under this Agreement, any other Loan Document or any other instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto or thereto;
 - (iii) such assignee confirms that it has received a copy of this Agreement and each other Loan Document, together with copies of the financial statements referred to in Section 4.01 and such other documents and information as it has deemed appropriate to make its own credit analysis and decision to enter into such Assignment and Acceptance;
 - (iv) such assignee will, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent, such assigning Lender or any other Lender and based on such documents and information as it shall deem appropriate at the time, continue to make its own credit decisions in taking or not taking action under this Agreement or any other Loan Document:

- (v) such assignee confirms that it is an Eligible Assignee;
- (vi) such assignee appoints and authorizes (A) the Administrative Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise such powers and discretion under this Agreement and each other Loan Document as are delegated to the Administrative Agent by the terms hereof and thereof, together with such powers and discretion as are reasonably incidental thereto and (B) the Documentation Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise such powers and discretion under this Agreement and each other Loan Document as are delegated to the Documentation Agent by the terms hereof and thereof, together with such powers and discretion as are reasonably incidental thereto; and

- (vii) such assignee agrees that it will perform in accordance with their terms all of the obligations that by the terms of this Agreement and each other Loan Document are required to be performed by it as a Lender.
- (c) Upon its receipt of an Assignment and Acceptance executed by an assigning Lender and an assignee representing that it is an Eligible Assignee, together with any Revolving Credit Note or Notes subject to such assignment, the Administrative Agent shall, if such Assignment and Acceptance has been completed and is in substantially the form of Exhibit C hereto and has been consented to by the Borrower if such consent is required, (i) accept such Assignment and Acceptance, (ii) record the information contained therein in the Register and (iii) give prompt notice thereof to the Borrower. Within five Business Days after its receipt of such notice, the Borrower, at its own expense, shall execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent in exchange for the surrendered Revolving Credit Note a new Note to the order of such Eligible Assignee in an amount equal to the Commitment assumed by it pursuant to such Assignment and Acceptance and, if the assigning Lender has retained a Commitment hereunder, a new Revolving Credit Note to the order of the assigning Lender in an amount equal to the Commitment retained by it hereunder. Such new Revolving Credit Note or Notes shall be in an aggregate principal amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of such surrendered Revolving Credit Note or Notes, shall be dated the effective date of such Assignment and Acceptance and shall otherwise be in substantially the form of Exhibit A-1 hereto.
- (d) Each Lender (other than the Designated Bidders) may designate one or more banks or other entities to have a right to make Competitive Bid Advances as a Lender pursuant to Section 2.03; provided, however, that (i) no such Lender shall be entitled to make more than five such designations, (ii) each such Lender making one or more of such designations shall retain the right to make Competitive Bid Advances as a Lender pursuant to Section 2.03, (iii) each such designation shall be to a Designated Bidder and (iv) the parties to each such designation shall execute and deliver to the Administrative Agent, for its acceptance and recording in the Register, a Designation Agreement. Upon such execution, delivery, acceptance and recording, from and after the effective date specified in each Designation Agreement, the designee thereunder shall be a party hereto with a right to make Competitive Bid Advances as a Lender pursuant to Section 2.03 and the obligations related thereto.
- (e) By executing and delivering a Designation Agreement, the Lender making the designation thereunder and its designee thereunder confirm and agree with each other and the other parties hereto as follows:
 - (i) such Lender makes no representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with respect to any statements, warranties or representations made in or in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan Document or the execution, legality, validity, enforceability, genuineness, sufficiency or value of this Agreement or any other Loan Document or any other instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto or thereto;
 - (ii) such Lender makes no representation or warranty and assumes no responsibility with respect to the financial condition of any Loan Party or the performance or observance by any Loan Party of any of its obligations under this

52

Agreement or any other Loan Document or any other instrument or document furnished pursuant hereto or thereto;

- (iii) such designee confirms that it has received a copy of this Agreement and each other Loan Document, together with copies of the financial statements referred to in Section 4.01 and such other documents and information as it has deemed appropriate to make its own credit analysis and decision to enter into such Designation Agreement;
- (iv) such designee will, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent, such designating Lender or any other Lender and based on such documents and information as it shall deem appropriate at the time, continue to make its own credit decisions in taking or not taking action under this Agreement or any other Loan Document;
 - $(v) \hspace{1cm} \text{such designee confirms that it is a Designated Bidder;} \\$
- (vi) such designee appoints and authorizes (A) the Administrative Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise such powers and discretion under this Agreement and each other Loan Document as are delegated to the Administrative Agent by the terms hereof and thereof, together with such powers and discretion as are reasonably incidental thereto and (B) the Documentation Agent to take such action as agent on its behalf and to exercise such powers and discretion under this Agreement and each other Loan Document as are delegated to the Documentation Agent by the terms hereof and thereof, together with such powers and discretion as are reasonably incidental thereto; and
- (vii) such designee agrees that it will perform in accordance with their terms all of the obligations which by the terms of this Agreement and each other Loan Document are required to be performed by it as a Lender.
- (f) Upon its receipt of a Designation Agreement executed by a designating Lender and a designee representing that it is a Designated Bidder, the Administrative Agent shall, if such Designation Agreement has been completed and is substantially in the form of Exhibit D hereto, (i) accept such Designation Agreement, (ii) record the information contained therein in the Register and (iii) give prompt notice thereof to the Borrower.
- (g) The Administrative Agent shall maintain at its address referred to in Section 8.02 a copy of each Assignment and Acceptance and each Designation Agreement delivered to and accepted by it and a register for the recordation of the names and addresses of the Lenders and, with respect to Lenders (other than Designated Bidders), the Commitment of, and principal amount of the Advances owing to, each Lender from time to time (the "Register"). The entries in the Register shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes, absent manifest error, and the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent and the Lenders shall treat only the Person whose name is recorded in the Register as a Lender from time to propose of this Agreement and each other Loan Document. The Register shall be available for inspection by the Borrower or any Lender at any reasonable time and from time to time upon

53

reasonable prior notice. The Administrative Agent shall be considered to act as the agent of the Borrower in connection with its duties in respect of the Register.

- (h) Each Lender may sell participations to one or more banks or other entities in or to all or a portion of its rights and obligations under this Agreement (including, without limitation, all or a portion of its Commitment, the Advances owing to it and the Note or Notes held by it); provided, however, that (i) such Lender's obligations under this Agreement (including, without limitation, its Commitment to the Borrower hereunder) shall remain unchanged, (ii) such Lender shall remain solely responsible to the other parties hereto for the performance of such obligations, (iii) such Lender shall remain the holder of any such Note for all purposes of this Agreement, (iv) the Borrower, the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent and the other Lenders shall continue to deal solely and directly with such Lender in connection with such Lender's rights and obligations under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents and (v) no participant under any such participation shall have any right to approve any amendment or waiver of any provision of this Agreement, any Note or any other Loan Document, or any consent to any departure by the Borrower therefrom, except to the extent that such amendment, waiver or consent would reduce the principal of, or interest on, the Notes or any fees or other amounts payable hereunder, in each case to the extent subject to such participation, or postpone any date fixed for any payment of principal of, or interest on, the Notes or any fees or other amounts payable hereunder, in each case to the extent subject to such participation.
- (i) Any Lender may, in connection with any assignment, designation or participation or proposed assignment, designation or participation pursuant to this Section 8.07, disclose to the assignee, designee or participant or proposed assignee, designee or participant shall agree to preserve the confidentiality of any Confidential Information relating to any Loan Party received by it from such Lender.
- (j) Notwithstanding any other provision set forth in this Agreement, any Lender may at any time create a security interest in all or any portion of its rights under this Agreement (including, without limitation, the Advances owing to it and the Note or Notes held by it) in favor of any Federal Reserve Bank in accordance with Regulation A.

SECTION 8.08. Confidentiality. None of the Administrative Agent, the Documentation Agent, or any Lender shall disclose any Confidential Information to any Person without the consent of the Borrower, other than (a) to the Administrative Agent's, the Documentation Agent's, or such Lender's Affiliates and their officers, directors, employees, agents, advisors, auditors and accountants and to actual or prospective assignees and participants, and then only on a confidential basis, (b) as required by any law, rule or regulation or judicial process, (c) to any rating agency when required by it, provided that, prior to any such disclosure, such rating agency shall undertake to preserve the confidentiality of any Confidential Information relating to the Borrower received by it from

uch Lender and (d) as requested or required by any state, federal or foreign author tenders may disclose to any and all Persons, without limitation of any kind, the U.	rity or examiner regulating banks or banking. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Agents and the .S. tax treatment and tax structure of the
	54
ransactions contemplated hereby and all materials of any kind including opinions tructure.	or other tax analyses) that are provided to the Agents or any Lender relating to such U.S. tax treatment and tax
SECTION 8.09. Governing Law. This Agreement and the Note	es shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.
	ay be executed in any number of counterparts and by different parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which r shall constitute one and the same agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page to this nterpart of this Agreement.
ew York State court or federal court of the United States of America sitting in No greement or any other Loan Document to which it is a party, or for recognition or laims in respect of any such action or proceeding may be heard and determined in lat a final judgment in any such action or proceeding shall be conclusive and may	o hereby irrevocably and unconditionally submits, for itself and its property, to the nonexclusive jurisdiction of any ew York City, and any appellate court from any thereof, in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this or enforcement of any judgment, and each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably and unconditionally agrees that all a any such New York State or, to the extent permitted by law, in such federal court. Each of the parties hereto agrees be enforced in other jurisdictions by suit on the judgment or in any other manner provided by law. Nothing in this tion or proceeding relating to this Agreement or any other Loan Document to which it is a party in the courts of any
the laying of venue of any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or relating to	ally waives, to the fullest extent it may legally and effectively do so, any objection that it may now or hereafter have this Agreement or any other Loan Document to which it is a party in any New York State or federal court. Each of the defense of an inconvenient forum to the maintenance of such action or proceeding in any such court.
	55
	Amendment and Restatement to be executed by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized, as of the date first
oove written.	
	UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC., a Delaware corporation, as Borrower
	By Name: Title:
	UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC., a New York corporation, as Guarantor
	By Name: Title:
	UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC., an Ohio corporation, as Guarantor
	By: Name: Title
	UNITED PARCEL SERVICE CO., a Delaware corporation, as Guarantor
	By Name:
	Title:
	56
	THE AGENTS
	CITIBANK, N.A., as Administrative Agent and Syndication Agent
	By Name: Title:
	BANK OF AMERICA, N.A. as Documentation Agent
	By Name: Title:
	BANK ONE, NA as Documentation Agent
	By Name: Title:

By Name: Title:	_
57	
THE INITIAL LENDERS	
Citibank, N.A., as Lender By	_
Name: Title:	
	_
Ву	_
Name: Title:	
59	

SCHEDULE I APPLICABLE LENDING OFFICES 5-YEAR FACILITY

Name of Lender	Commitment	Domestic Lending Office	Eurodollar Lending Office
Citibank, N.A.	\$125,000,000	Citibank, N.A. 2 Penns Way Suite 200 New Castle, DE 19720 Attn: Pat Dimery	Citibank, N.A. 2 Penns Way Suite 200 New Castle, DE 19720 Attn: Pat Dimery
Bank of America,	\$100,000,000	Attn: Pat Dimery T: (302) 894-6023 F: (302) 894-6120 Bank of America	Attn: Pat Dimery T: (302) 894-6023 F: (302) 894-6120 Bank of America
Bank of America, N.A.	\$100,000,000	901 Main Street, 14 th Floor Dallas, TX 75202 Attn: Betty Canales T: (214) 209-2131 F: (214) 290-8377	901 Main Street, 14 th Floor Dallas, TX 75202 Attn: Betty Canales T: (214) 209-2131 F: (214) 290-8377
Bank One, NA	\$100,000,000	Bank One, NA 1 Bank One Plaza Chicago, IL. 60670 Attn: Mark Gibbs T: (312) 732-7624 F: (312) 732-1117	Bank One, NA 1 Bank One Plaza Chicago, IL 60670 Attn: Mark Gibbs T: (312) 732-7624 F: (312) 732-1117
ABN AMRO Bank, N.V.	\$75,000,000	ABN AMRO Bank N.V. 208 South LaSalle St., Suite 1500 Chicago, IL 60604-1003 Attn: Loan Administration T: (312) 992-5160 F: (312) 992-5155	ABN AMRO Bank N.V. 208 South LaSalle St., Suite 1500 Chicago, IL 60604-1003 Attn: Loan Administration T: (312) 992-5160 F: (312) 992-5155
JP Morgan Chase Bank	\$75,000,000	JP Morgan Chase Bank 1 Chase Manhattan Plaza 8th Floor New York, NY 10081 Attn: May Fong T: (212) 552-7314 F: (212) 552-5650	JP Morgan Chase Bank 1 Chase Manhattan Plaza 8th Floor New York, NY 10081 Attn: May Fong T: (212) 552-7314 F: (212) 552-5650
BNP Paribas	\$75,000,000	BNP Paribas 1200 Smith Street, Suite 3100 Houston, TX 77002 Attn: Leah Evans-Hughes T: (713) 982-1126 F: (713) 659-5305	BNP Paribas 1200 Smith Street, Suite 3100 Houston, TX 77002 Attn: Leah Evans-Hughes T: (713) 982-1126 F: (713) 659-5305
Mellon Bank, N.A.	\$75,000,000	Mellon Bank, N.A. One Mellon Bank Center Pittsburgh, PA 15258-0001 Attn: Daniel Lenckos T: (412) 234-0733 F: (412) 236-1914	Mellon Bank, N.A. One Mellon Bank Center Pittsburgh, PA 15258-0001 Attn: Daniel Lenckos T: (412) 234-0733 F: (412) 236-1914

Name of Landau	Committee and	Domestic Lending Office	Eurodollar Lending Office
Name of Lender Wells Fargo Bank, National Association	Commitment	Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 201 Third Street — 8th Floor MAC A0187-081 San Francisco, CA 94103 Attn: Maria Belle Garcia T: (415) 477-5471 F: (415) 979-0675	Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 201 Third Street — 8th Floor MAC A0187-081 San Francisco, CA 94103 Attn: Maria Belle Garcia T: (415) 477-5471 F: (415) 979-0675
Barclays Bank Plc	\$50,000,000	Barclays Bank Plc 222 Broadway New York, NY 10038 Atn: Eddie Cotto Jr. T: (212) 412-3701 F: (212) 412-5306	Barclays Bank Plc 222 Broadway New York, NY 10038 Attn: Eddie Cotto Jr. T: (212) 412-3701 F: (212) 412-5306
Dresdner Bank AG, New York and Grand Cayman Branches	\$50,000,000	Dresdner Bank 1301 Avenue of the Americas New York, NY 10019 Attn: Deborah Carlson T: (212) 895-1763 F: (212) 895-1766	Dresdner Bank 1301 Avenue of the Americas New York, NY 10019 Attn: Deborah Carlson T: (212) 895-1763 F: (212) 895-1766
Royal Bank of Canada	\$50,000,000	Royal Bank of Canada, New York Branch One Liberty Plaza, 3rd Floor New York, NY 10006-1404 Attn: Manager, Loans Administration T: (212) 428-6322 F: (212) 428-2372	Royal Bank of Canada, New York Branch One Liberty Plaza, 3rd Floor New York, NY 10006-1404 Attn: Manager, Loans Administration T: (212) 428-6322 F: (212) 428-2372
Standard Chartered Bank	\$50,000,000	Standard Chartered Bank 1 Madison Avenue Third Floor New York, NY 10010-3603 Attn: Vijayant Jain T: (212) 667-0499 F: (212) 667-0251	Standard Chartered Bank 1 Madison Avenue Third Floor New York, NY 10010-3603 Attn: Vijayant Jain T: (212) 667-0499 F: (212) 667-0251
Credit Suisse First Boston, acting through its Cayman Islands branch	\$25,000,000	Credit Suisse First Boston 11 Madison Avenue New York, NY 10010-3629 Attn: Sonya Shillingford T: (212) 538-3361 F: (212) 538-6851	Credit Suisse First Boston 11 Madison Avenue New York, NY 10010-3629 Attn: Sonya Shillingford T: (212) 538-3361 F: (212) 538-6851
Merrill Lynch Bank USA	\$25,000,000	Merrill Lynch Bank USA 15 W. South Temple, Suite 300 Salt Lake City, UT 84101 Attn: Butch Alder T: (801) 526-8324 F: (801) 531-7470	Merrill Lynch Bank USA 15 W. South Temple, Suite 300 Salt Lake City, UT 84101 Attn: Butch Alder T: (801) 526-8324 F: (801) 531-7470
UBS AG, Stamford Branch	\$25,000,000	UBS AG, Stamford Branch 677 Washington Blvd. Stamford, CT 06901 Attn: Vladimira Holeckova T: (203) 719-6403 F: (203) 719-3888	UBS AG, Stamford Branch 677 Washington Blvd. Stamford, CT 06901 Attn: Vladimira Holeckova T: (203) 719-6403 F: (203) 719-3888

Name of Lender	Commitment	Domestic Lending Office	Eurodollar Lending Office
State Street Bank and Trust Company	\$25,000,000	State Street Bank and Trust Company	State Street Bank and Trust Company
		2 Avenue De Lafayette	2 Avenue De Lafayette
		Boston, MA 02111	Boston, MA 02111
		Attn: Ms. C. Jaynelle Landy	Attn: Ms. C. Jaynelle Landy
		T: (617) 662-3677	T: (617) 662-3677
		F: (617) 662-4201	F: (617) 662-4201

TOTAL OF COMMITMENTS

\$ 1,000,000,000

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and in connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of United Parcel Service, Inc. (the "Corporation") for the period ended March 31, 2003, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), the undersigned, the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation, certifies that:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Corporation.

/s/ Michael L. Eskew		

Michael L. Eskew Chairman and Chief Executive Officer May 15, 2003

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to United Parcel Service, Inc. and will be retained by United Parcel Service, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and in connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of United Parcel Service, Inc. (the "Corporation") for the period ended March 31, 2003, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), the undersigned, the Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation, certifies that:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Corporation.

/s/ D. Scott Davis	
D. Scott Davis	
Chief Financial Officer	

May 15, 2003

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to United Parcel Service, Inc. and will be retained by United Parcel Service, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.